
 
 

 HOUSING  AUTHORITY 
OF  THE 

CITY  OF  AUSTIN 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Michael G. Gerber, President & CEO 

 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting 

 

Thursday, July 13, 2017 
at 12:00 noon 

 
HACA’s Central Office 

1124 S. IH 35 
Austin, Texas 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Chairperson - Carl S. Richie, Jr. 

    Charles Bailey                        Tyra Duncan-Hall 
    Isaac Robinson                    Edwina Carrington 



*The Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) Board of Commissioners reserves the right to discuss and consider items out of order on the agenda on an as needed basis. 
 

The Housing Authority of the City of Austin is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disability Act.  Reasonable modifications and equal access to the communications will be provided upon request.   
Meeting locations are planned with wheelchair access.  If requiring Sign Language Interpreters or alternative formats, please give notice at least 2 days (48 hours) before the meeting date.  Please call Judy 
Paciocco or Nidia Hiroms at HACA at 512.477.4488, for additional information; TTY users route through Relay Texas at 711.  For more information on HACA, please contact Nidia Hiroms at 512.477.4488 x 2104. 

Page 1 of 2 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF A MEETING 
TAKE NOTICE OF A BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN  

 
TO BE HELD AT  

HACA Central 
1124 S. IH 35, Austin, Texas 

(512.477.4488) 
 

COMMENCING AT 12:00 NOON ON THURSDAY, JULY 13, 2017, TO CONDUCT BUSINESS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL             Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Citizens Communication - (Note: There will be a three-minute time limitation) 
 
Citywide Advisory Board Update 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Items on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any Commissioner and considered at another appropriate time on this agenda.  
Placement on the Consent Agenda does not limit the possibility of any presentation, discussion, or action at this meeting.  Under no circumstances 
does the Consent Agenda alter any requirements under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, Texas Open Meetings Act.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS:  
ITEM 1A:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of a Board Minutes 

Summary for the Board Meeting held on May 18, 2017 
Michael Gerber 

President & CEO 

 
ITEM 1B:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2505:  Authorizing 

Signatories for Agency Bank Accounts 
Thomas Cherian 
Chief Financial Officer  

 
ITEM 1C:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2506:  Approval of the 

Award of Contract for Legal Services Pertaining to Employment Law and Litigation 
Judy Paciocco 

Director of Operations 

 
ITEM 1D:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2507:  Approval of the 

Award of Contract for Agency Wide Pest Control Services 
Michael Roth 

Dir. Housing Operations & 
Policy 

 
ACTION ITEMS  
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS:  
ITEM 2:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2508:  Approval of the 

Revision to the 2017 PHA Annual Plan to incorporate the Disposition Activity for Lot 2 of 
Meadowbrook Courts 

Judy Paciocco 
Director of Operations 

 
ITEM 3:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2509:  Approval to Submit 

a Disposition Application for Lot 2 of the Meadowbrook Courts located at 1100 Live Oak Austin, 
Tx  78704 to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the Conveyance of 
Ownership to Austin Affordable Housing Corporation 

Judy Paciocco 
Director of Operations 

 
ITEM 4:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2510:  Approval to submit 

an Amendment to the Disposition Application DDA0003968 to Request the Disposition of 1640 A 
& B East 2nd Street and to ground lease 1640 A & B East 2nd Street to Pathways at Chalmers 
Courts, LLP at Less than Fair Market Value for the Creation of Additional Affordable Housing 
Units 

Judy Paciocco 
Director of Operations 

 
ITEM 5:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2511:  Approval of the 

updates to the Tenant Selection Plans for PBRA Family properties, PBRA and LIHTC Family 
properties, and PBRA and LIHTC Elderly / Disabled properties. 

Michael Roth 
Dir. Housing Operations & 

Policy  



Page 2 of 2 

 

ITEM 6: Presentation, Update and Discussion on HACA’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) 
Modernization and Redevelopment program (Chalmers Courts presentation) 

Ann Gass 
Dir. of Strategic Housing 

Initiatives 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION                                                                                                                                                    Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
The Board may go into Executive Session (close its meeting to the public) Pursuant to:  

 a. § 551.071, Texas Gov’t Code, consultations with Attorney regarding legal advice, pending or 
contemplated litigation; or a settlement offer; 

 

 b. §551.072, Texas Gov’t Code, discussion about the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property; 
  

 c. §551.074, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer 
or employee, including but not limited to evaluation of the President/CEO. 

 

 d. §551.087, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss certain economic development negotiations. 
 
OPEN SESSION 
If there is an Executive Session, the Board will return to Open Session for discussion, consideration and possible action of matters 
discussed in Executive Session.   
 
REPORTS 
The Board accepts the following reports:  
• President’s Report   
• Other Staff Reports    
• Commissioners’ Reports/Questions to the Department Staff  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
“Pursuant to § 30.06, Penal Code, (trespass by holder of license with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government 
Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a concealed handgun.” 
 
“Pursuant to § 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by holder of license with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government 
Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a handgun that is carried openly.” 
 
"En virtud del § 30.06, Código Penal, (traspaso titular de licencia con una pistola), una persona bajo el subcapítulo H, capítulo 411, código de gobierno (Ley de 
licencia de arma or pistola), no se permiten en este reunión con una arma o pistola. 
 
"En virtud del § 30.07, Código Penal (prevaricación por titular de la licencia con un arma o pistola abiertamente llevado), una persona bajo el subcapítulo H, 
capítulo 411, código de gobierno (Ley de licencia de arma o pistola), no se permiten en esta reunión con un arma o pistola que lleva abiertamente. 

 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
AND 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

 Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson                  _____ 

 Charles Bailey, Vice-Chairperson      _____ 

                     Tyra Duncan-Hall, 2nd Vice-Chairperson       _____ 

 Edwina Carrington, Commissioner      _____ 

                     Isaac Robinson, Commissioner      _____ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

United States Pledge of Allegiance 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Citizens Communication 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Citywide Advisory Board Report 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

CONSENT AGENDA 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1A 

Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the 
Approval of a Board Minutes Summary for the Board 
Meeting held on May 18, 2017 



May 18, 2017 
Page 1 of 4

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 18, 2017 

SUMMARY OF MINUTES 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN (HACA) BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC MEETING 
NOTICE WAS POSTED FOR 12:00 NOON ON THURSDAY, MAY 18, 2017, AND WAS HELD AT HACA’s CENTRAL 
OFFICE, 1124 S. IH 35, AUSTIN, TEXAS 

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
The Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin, of May 18, 2017, was 
called to order by Charles Bailey, HACA Vice Chairperson, at 12:09 p.m. The meeting was held at HACA’s Central Office, 
1124 S. IH 35,  Austin, Texas 

Roll call certified a quorum was present. 
MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBER(S) ABSENT: 
Charles Bailey, Vice Chairperson Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
Tyra Duncan-Hall, 2nd Vice Chairperson 
Edwina Carrington, Commissioner 
Isaac Robinson, Commissioner   

STAFF PRESENT:  
Ann Gass, Andrea Galloway, Kelly Crawford, Jimi Teasdale, Lisa Garcia, Michael Gerber, Michael Roth, Nick Wakem, Nidia 
Hiroms, Nora Morales, Pilar Sanchez, Ron Kowal,  Sylvia Blanco and Thomas Cherian. 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
Jim Ewbank, Cokinos, Bosien & Young 
Arthur Troilo, Troilo Law Firm 

CITIZENS COMMUNICATION – None. 

CITYWIDE ADVISORY BOARD (CWAB) REPORT –  •Rachel Martinez, CWAB President, reported on behalf of the Citywide 
Advisory Board. •Ms. Martinez commented that the 2017 Annual Senior Mayfest event went really well, and acknowledged 
that the committee did a good job coordinating this well-organized, service-oriented event.  Congressman Lloyd Doggett, 
Mayor Steve Adler and Council member Ann Kitchen were in attendance and each encouraged residents to continue to share 
important input as members of their communities and neighborhoods. •Michael Roth,  Senior Director of Housing Operations 
and Policy, provided RAD updates on Gaston Place and Georgian Manor regarding construction and relocation, and indicated 
that Shadowbend and North Loop are still undergoing renovations.  •Barbara Jackson – Jobs Plus Director, shared that HUD 
representatives from Washington DC conducted a Jobs Plus Site Visit on May 16th and 17th and the site visit was very 
successful.  •Felisa Jones, Youth Educational Success Manager, discussed summer programming and shared information on 
the review and deadline of scholarship applications. •Eileen Schrandt, Director of Community Development, provided HCD 
staffing updates. •The next CWAB meeting will be held on Tuesday, June 13, 2017 at Booker T. Washington. •Seventh grader 
and Georgian Manor resident, Joseph Williams, was accepted to, and will be attending a STEM Camp at West Point Military 
Academy at the end of May. 

Mr. Gerber, announced award winners from the Texas Chapter of the National Association of Housing and Redevelopment 
Officials (TX NAHRO).   

Scholarship winners (for exceptional accomplishments and commitment to education) 
 Ndabitezimana “Sophie” Asifiwe, Santa Rita Courts resident
 Youself Yournes, Bouldin Oaks resident

Resident of the Year 
Bill Alexander, Northloop resident, received Resident of the Year.  

Southwest NAHRO $500.00 Scholarship Award winners: 
Australia Nelson, Housing Choice Voucher program client 
Roshonda Smith Livingston, Housing Choice Voucher program client 



May 18, 2017 
Page 2 of 4

CONSENT AGENDA 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS: 
ITEM 1A:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of a Board Minutes Summary for 

the Board Meeting held on April 20, 2017 
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to approve the Board Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on April 20, 2017 as 
presented.   Commissioner Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-Nays).   

ITEM 1B:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action of Resolution No. 2498:  Approval of a Contract for Phase II 
Parking and Site Renovations at Thurmond Heights Apartments  

This award is to approve a contract for Phase II demolition and removal of parking lot asphalt in four areas to be replaced with 
new asphalt.  Additionally, curbs and sidewalks being replaced or repaired in designated areas and new striping will be 
provided for all spaces including the addition of new handicap parking areas. 
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to approve Resolution No. 2498:  Approval of an Award of Contract for Phase II Parking 
and Site Renovations at Thurmond Heights Apartments to Lone Star Paving in the amount of $319,054.00.  Commissioner 
Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-Nays).   

ACTION ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS: 
ITEM 2: Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2499:  Approving the submittal of 

the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) 

The Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) became effective October 13, 1998 (24 CFR Part 985).  This rule 
establishes SEMAP to objectively measure Public Housing Authorities' (PHAs') performance in fourteen (14) key performance 
areas and a Deconcentration Bonus indicator.  HUD will independently assess HACA's performance under SEMAP using 
annual audit reports for indicators 1-7 and the deconcentration bonus indicator and information maintained in HUD’s Public 
and Indian Housing Information Center (PIC) for indicators 8-14.  The Lease-up rate is obtained from HUD's Financial 
Management Center.  HACA’s Assisted Housing Department received a score of 100 percent during its annual Section Eight 
SEMAP audit. In addition to achieving a score of 100, zero errors were identified for Indicator #3: Determination of Adjusted 
Income.  Public housing agencies with SEMAP scores of at least 90 percent are rated high performers. HACA's Assisted 
Housing Department has received a high performer SEMAP score for 18 consecutive years.  
Commissioner Robinson moved to approve Resolution No. 2499:  Approving the submittal of the Section 8 Management 
Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  Commissioner 
Carrington seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-Nays).   

ITEM 3:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2500:  Approval to Enter into a 
Multiple Party Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the Procurement of Consulting Services Related to 
An Assessment of Fair Housing, not to exceed $50,000.  

HUD requires cities, counties and public housing authorities that receive federal funds for housing and community 
development to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing, partly by conducting an Assessment of Fair Housing.  To fulfill this 
requirement of these funds, HACA wishes to conduct a joint-regional Assessment of Fair Housing in collaboration with the 
City of Austin, Travis County, and other regional counties, cities and PHAs. 
Commissioner Carrington moved to approve Resolution No. 2500:  Approval to Enter into a Multiple Party Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement for the Procurement of Consulting Services Related to An Assessment of Fair Housing, not to exceed 
$50,000.  Commissioner Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-Nays).   

ITEM 4:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2501: Award of a Contract to 
Covered Wagon Moving for resident moving services at Gaston Place and Georgian Manor in an amount 
not to exceed $394,596.  

Covered Wagon Moving submitted the lowest responsive bid and has previously provided satisfactory moving services for 
HACA residents. 
Commissioner Carrington moved to approve Resolution No. 2501: Award of a Contract to Covered Wagon Moving for 
resident moving services at Gaston Place and Georgian Manor in an amount not to exceed $394,596.  Commissioner Duncan-
Hall seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-Nays).   

ITEM 5:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2502: Awarding a contract for 
Architectural and Engineering services for RAD rehabilitation work at Booker T. Washington and 
Meadowbrook Apartments to Tyson and Billy Architects in an amount not to exceed $150,000.  

A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was issued on March 13, 2017 for architectural, engineering and related professional 
services to be utilized by HACA for anticipated rehabilitation work in connection with RAD and for various other needs as is 
regularly done on a periodic basis.  HACA received a total of seven responses, three of which were specifically from 
architectural firms. In order to perform the RAD rehabilitation work at Booker T. Washington Terraces and Meadowbrook 
Apartments, HACA reviewed the qualifications of the three architectural firm respondents, most qualified to perform such 



May 18, 2017 
Page 3 of 4

work. As a result of this review, HACA found Tyson and Billy Architects’ qualifications to be exemplary and consistent with 
HACA’s objectives. 
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to approve Resolution No. 2502: Awarding a contract for Architectural and Engineering 
services for RAD rehabilitation work at Booker T. Washington and Meadowbrook Apartments to Tyson and Billy Architects 
in an amount not to exceed $150,000.  Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-
Nays).   

ITEM 6:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2503: Approving Resolution of 
Austin Affordable PFC, Inc. Providing For The Issuance of Its Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
(Pathways at Gaston Place) Series 2017A and Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Pathways at Gaston 
Place) Series 2017B and To Take Such Other Actions Necessary Or Convenient To Facilitate The 
Development of the Pathways at Gaston Place  

The RAD conversion and associated real estate transaction for Gaston Place is expected to close in early June, and residents 
will be temporarily relocated very soon after closing.  HACA, along with our relocation consultant Overland, Pacific and 
Cutler (OPC) has already begun working with the residents to prepare for their moves. HACA will provide moving service and 
cover all related expenses. In order to minimize the inconvenience and displacement associated with relocation, HACA is 
employing a combination of methods, including offsite as well as onsite relocation.  The construction work at Gaston Place 
will include full rehabilitation of the units, including new walls, appliances, cabinetry, bathrooms, floors and paint.  Site work 
will include new plumbing and electric, improvements to the elevators, community space, landscaping and common areas. 
Total construction costs are estimated to be just over $8 million.  The repairs and renovations will be financed using 4% tax 
credits through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs and Tax Exempt Bond proceeds issued by the 
Austin Affordable PFC, Inc. Resolution 2503 approves a resolution by Austin Affordable PFC providing for the issuance of its 
multifamily housing revenue bonds (Pathways at Gaston Place), and to take such other actions necessary or convenient to 
facilitate the development at Pathways at Gaston Place.  
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to approve Resolution No. 2503: Approving Resolution of Austin Affordable PFC, Inc. 
Providing For The Issuance of Its Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Pathways at Gaston Place) Series 2017A and 
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Pathways at Gaston Place) Series 2017B and to take such other actions necessary or 
convenient to facilitate the Development of the Pathways at Gaston Place.  Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. (4-Ayes and 0-Nays).   

ITEM 7:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2504: Authorizing The Housing 
Authority of the City Of Austin (the "Authority") To Take Such Actions Necessary or Convenient to 
Facilitate the Development and Rehabilitation of the Pathways at Gaston Place (the "Project")  

The RAD conversion and associated real estate transaction for Gaston Place is expected to close in early June, and residents 
will be temporarily relocated very soon after closing.  HACA, along with our relocation consultant Overland, Pacific and 
Cutler (OPC) has already begun working with the residents to prepare for their moves. HACA will provide moving service and 
cover all related expenses. In order to minimize the inconvenience and displacement associated with relocation, HACA is 
employing a combination of methods, including offsite as well as onsite relocation.  The construction work at Gaston Place 
will include full rehabilitation of the units, including new walls, appliances, cabinetry, bathrooms, floors and paint.  Site work 
will include new plumbing and electric, improvements to the elevators, community space, landscaping and common areas. 
Total construction costs are estimated to be just over $8 million.  The repairs and renovations will be financed using 4% tax 
credits through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs and Tax Exempt Bond proceeds issued by the 
Austin Affordable PFC, Inc. Resolution 2504 authorizes HACA to take such action as needed to facilitate the renovations for 
Gaston Place, and to take such other actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the development and renovations of Gaston 
Place.   
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to approve Resolution No. 2504: Authorizing The Housing Authority of the City Of 
Austin (the "Authority") To Take Such Actions Necessary or Convenient to Facilitate the Development and Rehabilitation of 
the Pathways at Gaston Place (the "Project")    Commissioner Robinson seconded the motion.  The motion passed. (4-Ayes 
and 0-Nays).   

THE BOARD DID NOT RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

REPORTS 
The Board accepts the following reports: 
• Michael Gerber, HACA President reported that Martha Ross has been hired as the new HACA Chief Financial Officer.
• AAHC is ready to move forward with the intent to purchase Nichols Park, a property at Convict Hill and Mopack.
• Jim Ewbank gave a status update on the outline of the Interlocal Agreement with the Travis County Housing Authority.
• There will not be a HACA Board Meeting in the month of June.  The next meeting is tentatively set for July 13th.  That

date will be firmed up over the next week.



May 18, 2017 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Duncan-Hall moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion. The Motion 
passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned  at 2:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Chuck Bailey, Vice-Chairperson 
____________________________________ 
 Michael G. Gerber, Secretary 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 1B 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2505:  Authorizing Signatories for Agency 
Bank Accounts  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 

BOARD ACTION REQUEST 

RESOLUTION NO. 2505 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

MEETING DATE: July 13, 2017 

STAFF CONTACT: Thomas Cherian, Chief Financial Officer 

ITEM TITLE: Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action of Resolution No. 2505: 
Authorizing Signatories for Agency Bank Accounts 

BUDGETED ITEM: Not Applicable 

TOTAL COST: Not Applicable 

ACTION 

Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2505 Authorizing Signatories for Agency Bank Accounts  

SUMMARY 

General Information: JP Morgan Chase Bank and Horizon Bank and Texas Capital Bank were selected as 
depositories for the funds of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin and its subsidiary corporations. 
The banking institutions require Board-approved Resolutions to govern handling of accounts.   

Due to the impending retirement of current CFO Thomas Cherian, HACA underwent a nationwide search 
and selected Martha Ross as its new Chief Financial Officer.   

A new Resolution is required by HACA's financial institutions to reflect any change in authorized 
personnel with signatory authority.  Therefore, HACA requests Board approval of Resolution No. 2505, 
which serves to update and  authorize the following persons as Signatories: Michael G. Gerber, President 
and CEO; Martha Ross, Chief Financial Officer; and Sylvia Blanco, Executive Vice President. 

EXHIBITS 

None. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2505 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SIGNATORIES FOR AGENCY’S BANK 
ACCOUNTS          

WHEREAS, JP Morgan Chase Bank and Horizon Bank and Texas Capital Bank were 
selected as depositories for the funds of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin and its 
subsidiary corporations; and 

WHEREAS, the banking institutions require Board-approved Resolutions to govern 
handling of accounts; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Financial Officer Thomas Cherian who has signatory authority, is 
retiring after 22 years of service with the Housing Authority of the City of Austin; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin has selected Martha Ross as 
its Chief Financial Officer effective May 30, 2017, and will replace Mr. Cherian as an authorized 
signatory; 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
the Housing Authority of the City of Austin authorizes the following persons: Michael G. 
Gerber, President and CEO; Martha Ross, Chief Financial Officer; and Sylvia Blanco, Executive 
Vice President as signatories on the Housing Authority of the City of Austin bank accounts.    

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of July 2017. 

_______________________________ 
Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 

___________________________ 
Michael G. Gerber, Secretary



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 1C 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2506:  Approval of the Award of Contract 
for Legal Services Pertaining to Employment Law and 
Litigation  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 

BOARD ACTION REQUEST 

RESOLUTION NO. 2506 

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 

MEETING DATE: July 13,.2017 

STAFF CONTACT: Judy Paciocco, Senior Director of Operations 

. ITEM TITLE: Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 2506: Approving the Award of a 
Contract for Legal Services pertaining to Employment Law and J:,itigation. 

BUDGETED ITEM: Yes 

TOTAL COST: $100,000 per year not to exceed five years. 

ACTION 

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2506: Authorizing the Housing Authority of the City of Austin to award a 
contract to CokinosN oung. · 

SUMMARY 

The Housing Authority of the City of Austin issued a Request for Proposal for Legal Services/Employment 
Law & Litigation HACA-17-P-0217. It was advertised in the Austin American Statesman on Sunday, March 
12, 2017, and again on Sunday, March 19, 2017, with a due date of April 19, 2017. The proposal was also 
posted on our website, www.hacanet.org. Ten proposals were emailed and two responses were received. 
The evaluation committee reviewed both proposals and made the recommendation to award this contract to 
CokinosN oung Law Firm. CokinosN oung have had a satisfactory performance on previous contracts with 
HACA. -

Exhibit 1: Distribution 
Exhibit 2: Tabulatfons 
Exhibit 3: Evaluations 
Exhibit 4: Bidders' Qualifications 

EXHIBITS 

Item No. 1C, page 1



J 

RESOLUTION NO. 2506 

·RESOLUTION REGARDING THE APPROVAL OF THE A WARD OF CONTRACT FOR 
LEGAL SERVICES PERTAINING TO EMPLOYMENT LAW AND LITIGATION 

WHEREAS, the Hbusing Authority of the City of Austin has received a proposal under the HACA 
bid specifications (HA CA-1 7-P-0217) for services necessary for the proper performance of this 
contract; 

WHEREAS, -the Housing Authority of the City of Austin hereby desires to enter into a contract for 
legal servfo~s pertaining to employment law and litigation with Cokinos/Young; · 

WHEREAS, this contract shall bereviewed annually not exceed five year for services rendered; 

Now, ther~fore, it is hereby 

RESOLVED, that effective the 13th day of July, 2017-theHousing Authority of the City of Austin 
Board of Commissioners hereby authorize the President & CEO to enter into a contract with 
Cokinos/Y oung for legal services pertaining to employment law and litigation not to exceed 
$100,000 a year. 

Michael G. Gerber, Secretary Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 

\ 

Item No. 1C, page 2



EXHIBIT 1 

Item No. 1C, page 3



RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION-INVITATION FOR BID/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

Contract: HACA-17-P-0217 
Description: Legal Services 

BID OPENING OT/HR: April 19, 2017 lO:OOAM/CST 
Location: 1124 South IH35 Austin Texas 78704 

1 & L'. . ) (EmP o 1ment Law 1t1gat1on 

Date Organization Addendum 

Company: Co kin o >/Vo u n '} Addendum#: 
Address: L2-lO Aluee.es Date Notified: 

l !'6.7Df Received by: 

';[ ?--\ Phone:s/J.47&.i .1050 Fax: . · 
Email: jewtoa.:ttlC..@:ok-11-'JD~la.w 1 ton--, 

Date: 

., Contact Person: 'Same$ g E LUi.Jo.mJ:::::.. 

Company:S+n-vsovtd~ LaM.da-r1 LLP Addendum#: 

( Address: <61G,4ftvs.sAllt'' s.k /&,oo Date Notified: 
Received by: 

3 J ?-( 
1g]DI 

Phone:J-Jfo.Cfqol · Fax:J.-3<o·Cf9o'f Date: 
Email: .S-fref/~rtdl 5-lreusQ.ndtandcn .oz,m 

Contact Person Sctb r 1 V\C- L SkusCW\.J 

Company: Bctk..A Botts Addendum#: 

e Address: g ~ C£w-3~ Blii d Date Notified: 

'7/v\ 
Received by: 

Phone: Fax: Date: 
Email:EvQn. '/ o un)@.ha.ke_rbo-fls·~Y'rl. 
Contact Person: f v l\lh y 0 u r\ a.... 

Company: \,()h°Jht- ~ ~-e.~ htl \ ? C Addendum#: 

e_ Address: 9._oo C..0--n.'j'll?SS. S-le s-o O Date Notified: 
. · r'+v~o I~ 7'?:.7o,I Received by: 

11-'!J Phone:51V,o~ sz..'-10 Fax: Date: 
Email: L-L on CJ Q w·-3• UoYYI 
Contact Person: Lo I o. Lo-Ko. 
Company: ~lo/.'.'..i e;JU!AAcls.s...-n Lc:k.v+.rvn Addendum#: 
Address: ~I 2-. SDv1rl ~n 1 :0 3ao Date Notified: 

~s-ho /1.. Received by: 
Phone: 4 7d..- s-1 oo Fax: Date: 
Email: bob@ 6ob n d .. ~s.DV( l G(_LL)~(YI •< .om 
Contact Person: 1:3~ 1Z ch~.s.f:)/(\ 
Company: /-fo-'l nfs ~Boone. · Addendum#: 
Address: (e- v Q Ul-vtr.ui.ss A-u~ J 30 o Date Notified: 

1 7rz,]ol Received by: 
Phone: '6~ ( !'>Lf OO Fax: 't(Ql rt, lf70 Date: 
Email: de.OJ\. sc,h.a neA €"1a__yne.~ ~one,., etJ.m 
Contact Person: ·\ol\a+ho.¥1.wr bovi Q het.HMS. !Joo n e . Cl .Ai rY\. 

I I 

Item No. 1C, page 4



RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION-INVITATION FOR BID/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

Contract: HACA-17-P-0217 
Description: Legal Services 

BID OPENING OT/HR: April 19, 2017 IO:OOAM/CST 
Location: 1124 South IH35 Austin Texas 78704 

( I L & L'. . ) Emo ovment aw 1hgat10n 

Date Organization Addendum 

b ~[ $ '+h Company:C..Onsiovl'l~ '{~ ro Y"YJ1 Addendum#: 
Address: :1~ Swn °S~Vlte2 5 ~ 7 2o Date Notified: 

·1/i- I 
/f5.7o( Received by: 

Phone:~2d.,· '680u Fax: 3'-6?-·"6~0/ Date: 
Email: (YI -Pl o vo. ~ ~ S;i-Ouvt-') '/' ~'D rY\. 

. Contact Person: VVla v-k t=:I orlA-

Company: Bou le:He ~ Gv! c/€/Vl Ll-P Addendum#: 
I 

Address:--11:._2 I S.V\i\oPi:t.c. Etpvfo3 Do Date Notified: 
Received by: 

~ /i-1 
. 7 tg7l{ 

Phone: 7 3 i .qCj o 2- Fax: I 3 2-. 3 9 oS- Date: 
Email: ra.00.ad e_ bou le..tl~ 9 olc/en.~fl.1 
Contact Person kat.C-haei \it:JY'!ec:.., 
Company: W d5oY\ Cc ro5eviV.,~L&-t.hc. 1"ac:oh ~Addendum#: 
Address: D. o . Bb ~ iS-8"-l Date Notified: 

7;;/ /87to]. Received by: 
21 Phone: '·-n '6·10~ 7 Fax: Lf 7~ • q Dl (o Date: 

Email: ~oh n ,,,,L l..s~V\ e. LU Sm j . L-'{lvYI 

Contact Person: -:r oh n \.J._) t \s ~ /"\ 

Comp~ny: //o..f+rnCVfl JLt-i!J; L '- P . 
Address: 4 ~I f!J E' i3w. . I re -tt-104 

Addendum#: 
Date Notified: 

1, 7K7'iJ Received by: 
1-·l Phone: 9ta-3 ~ft ;)..S~ Fax: S /~32/p J-c:;,'10 Date: 

Email: 
Contact Person: f)m ,n f<..e. /(~ 

I 
Company: Addendum#: 
Address: Date Notified: 

Received by: 
Phone: Fax: Date: 
Email: ' 

Contact Person: 

Company: Addendum#: 
Address: Date Notified: 

Received by: 
Phone: Fax: Date: 
Email: 
Contact Person: 

Item No. 1C, page 5



EXHIBIT 2 

Item No. 1C, page 6



.-

Tabulation 
Legal Services (Employment Law and Litigation) 

HACA-17-P-0217 
April19, 2017 lO:OOAM/CST 

Company Name Senior Counsel 
per hour 

. Hoffman Kelley Lopez LLP 175 
' 

Cokinos I Young 

-

Official Witness:~~~ r . 

300 

Date: A/(1 9 H 7 
I 

Associates Paralegal 
per hour per hour 

150 65 
-

250 125 

' 

Item No. 1C, page 7



EXHIBIT 3 

Item No. 1C, page 8



Evaluation HACA-17-P-0217 
legal SeNices Employment Law Litigation 

April 19, 2017 lO:OOAM/CST 

Vendor#l 
EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Hoffman Kellev Lonez LLP 

A. Qualifications of Contractors (30 Points) rr:J The response should address all points in the proposal, be well Comments 
organized, clear,and include all requested and supporting information. Most work performed is for insurance claims 
The response must clearly state what is offered and what will be done. i.e. Workers Comp, personal injury, and 
We will be looking at specialized knowledge, experience and technical property damage. Limited employment law. 
competence that the proposer displays in the type of work required, 
(based on work history, especially in the public housing industry) and 
the resumes submitted. 

B. Past Performance (20 Points) 

~ Past performance will be evaluated based upon references and lists of Comments 
formerclients serviced and the results of any consultations Has experience with government entities to 
HACNSHCCIAAHC conducts with such references and former include the El Paso Housing Authority. 
clients. 

C. Cost (20 Points) 

~ The extent to which the services will be provided in a cost-effective Comments 
manner. Cost per hour is almost half of the competing 

bidder. 

D. Quality Of Proposal (10 Points) ~ Overall quality of the proposer's submission. Comments 
Provided CVs of principal owners oflaw firm. 
Experience is mainly insurance claims. 

E. Business/Resident Owned Business/Section 3 Contractor LJ (15 points) Comments 
No 

F. Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned Points 

(5 points) 0 Comments 
No 

TOTAL ~ 
Evaluator Judy Paciocco Date 05/02/17 

Vcndor#2 

Cokinos I Youna 

~ Comments 
Employment law and litigation. Work for 
HACA has included successfully resolving 
lawsuits, preparation of acquisition of 
properties, and staff training. 

~ Comments 
Has provided legal services to 
HACNSHCC/AAHC for over 15 years. 

~ Comments 
Cost is nearly double of competing bidder. 

~ Comments 
Large law firm composed of9 principals. Jim 
Ewbank assigned to represent HACA. 

w Comments 
Yes, one staff qualifies as Section 3. 

Points 

0 Comments 
No 

~ 0 

recommended Cokinos/Young 

Item No. 1C, page 9



EVALUATION CRITERIA 

A. Qualifications of Contractors (30 Points) 
The response should address all points in the proposal, be well organized, clear, 
and include all requested and supporting information. The response must clearly 
state what is offered and what will be done. We will be looking at specialized 
knowledge, experience and technical competence that the proposer displays in the 
type of work required, (based on work history, especially in the public housing 
industry) and the resu~es submitted. 

B. Past Performance (20 Points) 
Past performance will be evaluated based upon references and lists of former 
clients serviced and the results of any consultations HACNSHCC/AAHC 
conducts with such references and fonner clients. 

C. Cost (20 Points) 
The extent to which the services will be provided in a cost-effective manner. 

D. Quality Of Proposal (10 Points) 
Overall quality of the proposer's sllbmission. 

E. Business/Resident Owned Business/Section 3 Contractor (15 points) 

F. Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned (5 points) 

Evaluation.HACA-17-P-0217 

Legal Services Employment Law Litigation 
April 19, 2017 lO:OOAM/CST 

Vendor#l 

Hoffman Kellev Lonez LLP 

~Comments 
Response to proposal centered around legal 
services performed in the area of Worker's 
Compensation and insurance claims. Not clear 
what legal serivces were performed in other 
areas relating to employment law, EEOC, 
grievances or other matters. 

LJcomments 

Having no prior dealings with the agency 
unable to determine past performance. Scored 
5 based upon list of rerferences and working 
with other housing authorities. \ 

Llcomments 

This firms cost is significantly lower than the 
other proposal 

LJcomments 

The proposal was handwritten and not 
submitted in a professional manner. Proposer 
did not seem to take the time to put much effort 
into submitting a quality proposal. 

r:Jcomments 

.t::J Comments 

I ( 

Vendor#2 

Cokinos I Youn1> 

~Comments 
Response to proposal addressed areas requested 
in the RFP. 

[;:j Comments 

Cokinos I Young has worked with HACA over 
several years and is fimilar with the needs of 
the agency. 

Llcomments 

Cokinos/Y oung's cost were higher than the 
other proposals submitted for review. 

~Comments 
Proposal was submitted in professional 

manner. Proposer took the time to provide a 
quality submission. 

r:Jcomments 

r'.::Jcomments 

One of the owners of the firm is a female. 

u 

Item No. 1C, page 10



EVALUATION CRITERIA 

A. Qualifications of Contrnctors (30 Points) 
The response should address all points in the proposal, be well organized, 
clear, 
and include all requested and supporting infonnation. The response must 
clearly 
state what is offered and what will be done. We will be looking at. 
specialized 
knowledge, experience and technical competence that the proposer displays 
in the· 
type of work required, (based on work history, especially in the public 
housing 
industry) and the resumes submitted. 

B. Past Performance (20 Points) 
Past performance will be evaluated based upon references and lists of 
former 
clients serviced and the results of any consultations HACNSHCC/ AAHC 
conducts with such references and former clients. 

C. Cost (20 Points) 
The extent to. which the services will be provided in a cost-effective 
manner. 

D. Qnality Of Proposal (IO Points) 
Overall quality of the proposer's submission. 

E. Business/Resident Owned Business/Section 3 Contractor (15 points) 

F. Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned (5 
points) 

Evaluat!on HACA-17-P-0217 
Legal Services Employment Law Litigation 

April 19, 2017 lO:OOAM/ciT 

Vendor #I 

Hoffman Kellev Looez LLP 

Points \ '2..Cl Comments 

u&~~ ~~\.\ 

Q_'t~~~ o-.r 
\~ ,,~~~ \'1'\ 
~~~c._\. 

Poi!B I \ Comments 

Points I 
:l....D Comments 

~\ ':\-'s;:-S,~"('.\O-C Cr:i~ 
~ ls:Q -~SS.~,~~~ 
~c;;.~ -\b...~\~\~ . 

Points-=\-\ Comments 

~Comments 

~Comments 

TOTAL~ 

Date 

Vendor #2 

Cokinos I Youil!! 

Points \ 
L.:::i,.. Comments 

\IQ~\a..6 <Z...'f.~~~<....e.. 

~ \D\ ~~~ 5\ .. 1,CJ2. .. \.°'C\""= 

Poi~o !comments 

' ~O\f!l.. ~S. '?__ 
u'\..~<;... 

Points I comments \r-. 

$ 3t:::;t:::) s COJJ-.....<O,Q_ \ 
I 

S. ~so -i\~'-o....\e-\ 
~ \ 'L °' - ~CA \:z~~\.'"'-
Points \.O\comments 

Points 0 !Comments . 

Points ol Comments 

6-::\- I 

Item No. 1C, page 11



EVALUATION CRITERIA 

• Qualifications of Contractors (30 Points) 
The response should address all points in the proposal, be well organized, clear, 
and include all requested and supporting information. The response must clearly 
state what is offered and what will be done. We will be looking at specialized 
knowledge, experie~ce ~d technical c~mpetence that the proposer displays in the 
type ofwork. required,: (based on work history, especially in the public housing 
industry) and the resumes submitted. · 

B. Past Performance (20 Points) 
Past performance will be evaluated based upon references and lists of former 
clients serviced and the results of any consultations HACA/SHCC/ AAHC 

: conducts with such references and former clients. 

C. Cost (20 Points) 
:. The extent to which the services will be provided in a cost-effective manner. 

Evaluation HACA-17-P-0217 

Legal Services Employment Law Litigation 

April 19, 2017 10:00AM/CST 

Vendor#l 

Hoffman Kelle Lo ez LLP 

Collllllents 

- Serii'~ D L>--f!J~ 
.£p; D, ...... a.ss~Ct"t.-J--e.s 

Vendor#2 

Cokinos I Youn 

Item No. 1C, page 12



D. Quality Of Proposal (10 Points) 
Overall quality of the proposer's submission. 

E. Business/Resident Owned Business/Section 3 Contractor (15 points) 

F. Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned (5 points) 

Evaluation HACA-17-P-0217 

Legal Services Employment Law Litigation 

' April 19, 2017 lO:OOAM/CST 

Points 

5~:~e~:i~ h.tl~, uuj il'rn1htl 

'"t(l'Ndi:tm 

Points 

o· Comments 

(\ C1f fY\ :l'\)f \~ ur ~cl e._ 
. C)\)JY\~~- . ,. '. 

Date 

Comments 

j\Jof S--e ttt~U'f\ 3 bi.\rr"~ 
. . . 

l. . ' 

10 .. -! 

"'•,' 

Item No. 1C, page 13



Legal Services Evalution Tally HACA17-P-0217 

April 19th, 2017 

Evaluators Hof~man Kelly Lopes LLP Cokinos I Young 

Sylvia Blanco 
Executive Vice President 29 70 

Subra Narayaniyer 
Director of Finance 59 67 

Gloria Morgan 
Human Resources Director 45 72 

Judy Paciocco 
Senior Operations Director 50 80 

Total for Directors: 183 289 

Item No. 1C, page 14



EXHIBIT 4 

Item No. 1C, page 15



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 

Name of Bidder: Cokinos I Young 

Permanent main office address: 1210 Nueces 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Organized as Cokinos, Bosien & Young since 1989. Former firm of Ewbank & Harris, 
P.C. merged into Cokinos, B.osien & Young in 2014. 

Bidder is a professional association. 

Date of incorporation: 1989, State of Texas 

Equity Partners: 
Gregory Cokinos 
Brian Bosien 
Marc Young 
Richard Flake 
Craig Power 
Patrick Wielinski 
Stephanie O'Rourke 
J. Parker Faulteroy 
James B. Ewbank 

white male, over 40 (43.64% owner) 
white male, over 40 (24.48% owner) (Retired) 
white male, over 40 (24.48% owner) 
white male, over 40 (7.2% owner) (Retired) 
white male, over 40 (7.2% owner) 
white male, over 40 (1.0% owner)· 
white female, over 40 (1.0% owner) 
white male, over 40 (1.0% owner) 
white male, over 40 (1.0% owner) 

The former firm of Ewbank & Harris, P.C. has been engaged as a contracting business with 
HACA for 17 years, and merged into Cokinos, Bosien & Young in 2014. 

Contracts in progress: 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin - $100,000/Yr. 

Legal representation - Employment Law and Litigation 

No failures to complete work awarded 
No default on any contracts 

Bonding Company: NI A 
Professional Liability Insurance with Catlin 
$2 Million I $4 Million 

Completed Projects 2000 -2017 
(A) Multiple lawsuits with HACA, resolved successfully 
(B) Multiple acquisitions of properties for Austin Affordable Housing Corporation 
(C) Multiple training sessions delivered to HACA employees 

Item No. 1C, page 16



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

13. 

(D) PBCA Proposals for SHCC 

Previous Contracts: 
1997 -1999 HACA Contract for Legal Services 
1999 - 2002 HACA Contract for Legal Services 
2002 - 2004 HACA Contract for Legal Services 
2004' - 2008 HACA Contract for Legal Services 
2009 - 2012 HACA Contract for Legal Services 
2012-2017 HACA Contract for Legal Services 

/ 

Item No. 1C, page 17



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

l. · · AREAS OF PRACTICE AND SCOPE OF SERVICES . 

'" . • . ~· ! . 

For the last riineteen ( 19) years, Jim Ewbank and his related· law firms (now merged into · · 
Cokinos I Young) has provided legal services t() the Housing Authority of the.City of Austin and has · 
enj oyeci. an ex<;:eHent working relationship with the Board, management and staff..' ' 

Cokinos I Young has developed a specialized area bf practice in Public IIousing Authorify. · • 
legal m~tters an~ employment law. We have.handled a wide variety oflegal mattersJ'or HACA. We 
have also represeiited.the Ro_und Rock Housing· Authority, thelfousing Authority.of Travis County, . . · 
and have. assisted.the Winter J?ark (Fla.) Housing Authority plus the Ho.using Authority of the City of · · 

· · •· Harlingen in creating no1,1.;profit subsidiaries s.iniilar to Southw~stHousing Compliance Corporatibn. 
Cl Y. also recently wa.s awarded- the Jegal services contract for the Housing Authority of Bexar 

. County and San Antonio Housing Authority. 

RepresentationOfHACA can generally be grouped into the following categories: 

(1)' 
(2) 
(3) 
_(4} 

- (5) 
(6) 

Employment issues. 
General.litigation· 
Contract review 
Property acquisition and property tights 

• Governance issues 
Construction Law· 

OVERVIEW 

. Thallk you for the. opportunity to respond to the Housing Authority of the City of Au,st).ii 
("HACA") Request for. Proposal ("RFP") for legal services. • Respondent· Cokip.o's I Y ouilg is a 

· leading Jaw firm that ·delivers sophisticated legal_ advice and exceptional client ·service .. With ov~r . 
fifty (50) la\Vyers practicing in four (4)'offices across the state of Texas, CIY serves a dynamic client 
base in virtually every area oflaw. . . · · · · · 

Legal controversies in.the PublicHousing Authority workplace can, ifnothandled properly, 
dominate the Authority's business and detract from its primary :mission "'.- providing affordable 

·• housing .. Successful practice in this area ~equires a "cradle to grave" approach, with attention being 
given not only to the_tec4cical accuracy o~the legala_dvice provided,. but also its: practical/political -

- consequences, and the ability to defend it before any administrative body and in the courthouse.· A 
PHA law specialist must,. therefore, be both counselor and -litigator, combining the greatest strengths 
of each. 

qy is particularly qualified to provide this type• o;f representationtb HACA. The Firni has a 
unique blend of attorneys who specialize .in public and private sector general counsel work, labor and : . 

· .HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR' LEGAL SERVICES PAGE 1 -

Item No. 1C, page 18



employment law and civil litigation. Jim Ewbank is Board Certifiedjn Civil Trial L~w·a:nd Personal . 
Injury Trial Law, is an active members of the legal division of NAHRO; -an active member and 
speaker of the Housing & Development Law Institute (HDLI), and has over thirty (30) years' . 
experience in counseling and defending public entities in labor and employment law matters. Shelly 
Masters· also has experience counseling public and private entities in all types of legal issues and 

.. employment disputes, and has first-chair experience defending public and private entities in both . 
. administrative proceedings and litigation. . 

· qy confirms that it will have an:Illdependent·Contract status with HACA, and itis· solely 
. responsible and liable for all labor and ,expense; equipment and supplies, as well as any and all 
damag_ es (personal or otherwise) in connection with the performance oflegal supplies .. qy is not an 

. . . . . . . . . . 

agent or employee of HACA/SHCC/AAHC, nor is it entitled to any periefits provided by those 
·entities. 

The Firm's point of contact for questions regarding this proposal, is: 

James B. Ewbank II, Principal 
COKINOS I YOuNG 
1210 Nueces 
Austin, Te.xas 78701 
Tel: 512-476-1080 

· Fax: 512-610-1184 
E-mail: JEwbank:@cokinoslaw.com 

Jim Ewbank is _a Principal at qy and will coordinate the contract. Should anyone at HACA 
have any questions regarding this response to RFP, please feel free ~o call Jim at your convenience. 

CIY ctirrently anticipates that no more than 2 or 3 professionals, and clerical staff will be 
11eeded to work on this project, whichtheyhave already employed fµll time. No hiring of attorneys is 
anticipated; as qy is fully staffed at this time. The same is true for subcontracting and we currently 
have the needed expertise at the iawyer level t_o perforni this contract. 

' qy is committed to diversification. The firm has five'( 5) ~omen and 4 minority Principals. · 
out of 27 total (equity and non-equity ·Principals). 

SPECIALIZED PRACTICE IN PUBLIC HOUSING AUTHORITY LAW 

A partial list of legal services provided to HACA and other PHAs include: 

. 1. Empfoyment Issues 

• Significant civil rights/employment litigation .. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OFAUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE2· 

D 

n 
D 
D 

D 
D 
D 
D 
D 

D 
D 
.D 
D 

0 
D 

D 

D 

D Item No. 1C, page 19



n 
n 
n 
n. 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n I 
n 
n 
n 
n 

• · Review. and advice to Human. Resourc.es regarding disciplinary adions and. other 
federal, state and local laws and regulation_s·(includip.g~ but not limited to, FLSA, 
FMLA:, TitleVII,ADEA,QSHA, Worker.'s Compensation, etc.) . In~grievane:e·· 
hearings · · ... _·· ··· · ·· 

• Drafting/revisl.on of Internal _: policies .. and procedures '(Employee . Manual, 
. procurement, griev.ance, etc;) 

• Consultation with Vice-Presidents on public housing-and employee issues in thei! .· 
. departments~ including evah1ati,ons, growth plans, investig(ltions and FLSA questions 

• . . . . Consuitation ori immerous ADA reques:ts·for accorrim.oda,tiori : · ; ' 

. • Consultation on Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 197 4 (as amended) 

• · Consultation on Civil.Rights.Act of,1964 (as amended) 
. . 

•. Coordination of investigations of employee ·misconduct with Human Resources .. · 
department 

• Very high success· rate in responding to EEOC, TWC, TCHRA .and AHRC .. : · 
complaints 

• Training . for all· employees on dis.criminaticiri :- and. haraSS!Ilent and proper 
documentation training to all supervisors 

·. • Experience with all forms .. ofWhistleblower. statiites 

. 2. · . General Litigation 

• Significant litigation and negotiation With non:-responsib1e. vendors with successful .. 

~~- . ) . . . 

·. ! . • ,-,, ·Negotiations with sureties fornon-responsible;contractors, with.successful results 

• Significant ad valorem taxation li~i.gation involving tax exempt status (100%succes·s) 

• Successful negotiations with City ofAustin involving. assess:i:nent of fees 

, 3: : . Contract Review 

• . Drafting, review and approval of 30+ annual Partner contracts . 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR-LEGAL SERVICES PAGE3. 

Item No. 1C, page 20



4. 

.. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

.. 

• 

• 

:Drafting multiple documents and· providing legal advice for PBCAproposals: RLO, 
SL, s11bcontractor ·agreement 

- - . - . 

· Developed working relationships with a~omeys in other states for PBCA NOP A and 
RFP 

Drafting/negotiating/revision of a large number of vendor contracts (equipment 
leases, softWare. contracts, cellular tower, etc.) · 

Review and evaluation of insurance proposals · . . . . . 

Drafted and· negotiated Interlocal Agreements with the Cit)r. of Austin, . Housing · 
Authority ofTravis County and the Office of the Attorney General to jointly sponsor 

. programs ,, . 

Drafted and reviewed documents ·for tenant home ownership programs - Lea,se to 
· Own, Downpayment Assistance Prograrri, etc. 

Worked on Co.mmunity Land Trust developments 

• Provided legal advice in connection with numerous AIA contracts for architectural . . 

services, project;.manager services and general contractors; 

· Property.Acquisition and Property Rights 

• 

•. 

•· 

., 

.. 
• 

. Negotiations for large real estate acquisitions (Summers Grove,· Sweetwater 
Apartments, Leisure Time Village Condos, etc.) . 

Review, negotiate and draft numerous loan documents. 

Review numerous title policies · 

·. Negotiated· numerous commercial leases (Eastland Plaza tenants, City of Austin at 
HACA main building, GHCC incubator, etc.) . 

. ( 

Numerous commercial landlord-tenant issues 
. . 

Assisting and advising the implementation of RAD conversion at multiple locations, 
for HACA, including major construction projects, tenant relocatibns and overseeing 
HUD approvals; . · 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES · PAGE4 

D 

D 
0 
D 
D 
0 
n 
D 
D 
D 

. ... D 

D 
D 

D 

D 

·D 

D Item No. 1C, page 21



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n-

n 
n 
n 

n 

5. 

• 

·- -

• 

-· 

' .. 

~;. 

... 
• 

Providing legal -guidance ·Of major _lead base paint and asbestos remediation, 
including negotiatfons of remediation contracts and OSHA reporting; 

Providmg legal services in connection with multiple tax credit property acquisitions -
-and redevelopments,-including reviewing and negotiating ail real estate documents, 
-partnership agreements, loan documents • and oversaw negotiations with partners 
through closing; 

Overseeing all facets of property acquisition and advising"PHA' son property rights; _ 

petailed.involvementin the public policy and feasibility o~acq:uisitions, conversion 
and developmentof a wide variety of affordable.housing; 

_ Negotiated numerous.right-of-way and wastewater easements{HACA main buildirig, 
-Meadowbrook, etc:) -

-_ Pra:ftirig andreviewing development documents, including design and construction • 
. . . . . . . 

·contracts; 

Advising on _existing real estate relationships :regarditigavailable.rights and remedies; -

Compliance _ with -- governmental._ or ·private• land _ use · regulations, induding 
Environmental issues; __ · -

- • Management of liability risks -for real estate development issues; 

• Structure analysis for real estate business combinations like condominiums or real -
estate pqrtnerships. -

Governance ISsues 

• 

• 

• 

Attendance at monthly Board meetings 'and Executive sessions to provide advice and 
counsel to the Board; 

- . 
1Review all Agendas for Open Meetings Act.compliance; 

. . . - . . . . 

Incorporation, By'-laws and General Counsel advice: for PHA's and their subsidiaries, 
to ensure compliance with all Federal, St~te, and Local regulatic,ms. and laws; . 

Presentations tO Board members and staff at agency retreats regarding Open Meetings 
Act, Ethics, etc.; 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITYOF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGES 

Item No. 1C, page 22



6. 

• 

.. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

. . 

• 

• 

( 

Reviewing and responding to numerous. Public Information Requests - no court 
challenges; · 

Presentations to· TXNAHRO .Conference regarding Public Housing Authority 
. Litigation and Ethics issues; 

Speaker at Housing Development Law Institute conferences on PHA litigation issues; · 

HUD OIG investigation responses; 

Development and Interpretation of Procurement Policies, and successful defense to . . . ' 

challenges to bid awards. 

By.:laws and General Coilnsel advice for HACA, Austin Affordable Housillg 
Corporation and Southwest Housing Compliance Corporation 

Provided legal guidance and services in connection with drafti_ng and implementation 
of Ethics & Conflict oflnterest Practl.ce& for Board members and employees; · 

Review of operations and adviCe to reduce risk of PHA's . 

Advice .on application of Code of Federal Regulations; Texas Local Government 
Code, TD HCA regulations, Municipal· Codes, HUD regulations · · (includh1g 
. Procurement Standards) to the business of the PHA. 

Advice and representation of the Section 8 vouchers department; 

Advice and development of PHA Policies for VAWA, ICE, concealed/open carry, 
on-site solicitation, smoke-free housing, etc.; · 

Construction Law 

• 
• 
• 
• .. 
• 
• 

• 
• 

Contract drafting and negotiation; · 
Construction defect claims; 
Change order and scope claims; 

. . . 
Performance and warranty disputes; 

. Defaults and termination; 
Surety claims; 
Payment issues; 
Defective desigi+;. 

· Delay arid liquidated damage _issues; 
Lien arid bond claims;· 

.HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE6 

D 
D 

D 
D 
0 

. D 

D 
0 
D 
D 

D 

D 

D Item No. 1C, page 23



n 

n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n .> 

n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

. . . .. 
•: 

. . 
• 
•. .. 
• 

Jobsite injuries; 
. OSHA compliance issues; .• . 
Insurance coverage; 
Risk management; 
Bankruptcy issues; 
Employment iss~es; 
Governmental regulation ,and complianceissues; 

•Project delivery systems; 
• Bidding and.bid disputes; . 

Safety ·and independent contractor issues;.·· . . . ' ' ' .. 

Preventative Advice :and Counseling - Procurement and Other Departments 

We routinely field calls from upper management at HACA, SHCC and AABCfor day'."to..:day 
. advice on a wide variety of legal and busiriess matters. qy -strives to return every call C;Uid inquiry 
. ••promptly; and make OUJ:'selves availabk according to the needs of management. 

- . . . 

· Preventive Advice and Counseling - Employment 
. . . . . . 

In our experience, counsel is.most likely to. devote considerable tinie pro~iding day;,. to-day 
advice on personnel matters. .There will. ·be times; however, where a particular issue or matter. 
requires specialized. research, consultation or handling and necessitates referral to spedalized . 

· counsel. Such representation may.indude: 

(1) . · investigation of employee misconduct and the provision of advice regarding 
disCipiiriary action; . · · · · · · 1 · · · 

(2) · revie\v and advice regarding discipline or discharge of personnel; 

(3) · handling of employee grievances, includfog on~going advice with respect to 
problem .grievances and attendance. at grievance copferehces or hearfogs, as 
requested; 

.. { . ~ . . . . 

(4). specialized advice With . .r.espect to _personnel actions _implicatitig variou~' 
federal, state,· and local laws and regulations (e.g.< Title VII of the <=:jvil 
Rights Act of 1964 ("Title VII"), the Age Discri1Ilination in Employment Act 
("ADEA''), the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"); Section504 of the 

.. 1 Rehabiiitation Act of 1974 ("Sec. 504;'), Title IX of the Educational 
Amendments ofl.972.("Title IX"), the Fair Labor Standards.Act("FLSA"),. 

. the Family and Medical Leave Act ('iFMLA"), DOT regulations rngarding 
drug/akohol testing, the Texas Commission on Human : Rights · Act 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES ! .PAGE7 

Item No. 1C, page 24



(5) 

(6) 

("TCHRA"), the Texas Workers' Compensation Anti-Retaliation- statute; the-. 
Texas Whistle blower Act and the City of Austin Human Rights Ordinance), 
as well as the free speech, privacy and due process provisions of the U.S>and 
Texas Constitutions; 

defending against charges, complaints or claims filed with the EEOC, Texas 
Conun1ssion on Human Rights, City of Austin Human Rights 'Commission, 
US. Department of Labor (Wage and Hour Division), Texas Employment 
Commission, and the Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education 
and the Department of Justice, including preparation of statements-of position 
and attendance at fact-finding conferences, witness interviews, hearings, and . 
·settlement conferences; 

review and modification of emplOyment contracts and HACA policies or 
administrative regulations pertaining to personnel. 

Between 2000 and 2017, we assisted HACA i11 the following signifi,cant employee issues: 

Over 200 terminations 

_Over 100 EEOC claims, 100% success rate 

·.Numerous Texas-Workforce Commission claims, with overwhelming success rate 

Numerous discrimination and sexual harassment investigations 

Numerous internal grievance hearings, 100% success rate 

-Training and Legal Updates 

Ancillary to the provision of preventive advice and· counseling, qy proposes periodic 
. training of staff in new and established areas of labor and employment law which can· or do create 
on-going problems for housing authorities. C\Y is uniquely qualified to provide effective training to 
the HACA staff in every relevant personnel area. qy~ at the Housing Authority's request, can and . ' . . . 

has provided periodicin-ser\rice training on a wide variety of persoi:mel topics, including: 

(1) _ the grievance process; 

(2) haJidling hearings and appeals; 

(3) _ . effe~tive documentation for personnel actions; 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGES 

D 
,o 

D 

0 
D 

D 
D 
·o 

D 
D 

D 
D 
D 
D 

D 

D 
Item No. 1C, page 25



n 
n 

n 
n 
n 
n 
n .. -.. 

n 

n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

·· · (4) · compliance with EEOC aildADA.reqriirements; .. 

(5) investigation ofsexual harassment cl<:timsand 0therdaiins ofemployee.iniscondl:[ct; 

(6) - . compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act; 
(7) . · · preventing claims under the Texas Whistleblower Act; . · 

(8) -prepar.atfon for discipline or terminations; anci · 
. : -\ 

(9) · _ preventing sexual harassment, age discrimination or other forins of discrimination in 
· -the workplace · 

. ' -

. Iri addition to training, C[Y has advised.HA CA on significant legal developmentS (includ~g 
statutory and regulatory changes, . and develOpments. in case: law, EEO_C · and Attorney General 
Qpillions) tlirough the use oflegal updates. · · 
. l - . . . 

Grievance Hearings 

In regard to persomiel-related hearings, including grievance appeals and due process hearings -
(i . .e. ~-demotion, discipline or discharge of perso:pnel), qy will present Management;s case to the 

. Board or advi'se the . .Grievance Officer. It is CjY' s philosophy that.its lawyers .inust bring those . : 
advocacy: ~kills acq1;1ired in th~ courtroom to the .boardroom, with due regard for the political . 
sensitivity that must be shown inpartiCular cases. qy will be candid with Management on advising 
as to .. the s_trengths and weaknesses of the -c.ase, and ~ill work closely with Management and 
witnesses to: present-the most effective:casepossible to the Board .. 

· Administrative Agency Actions ·. . = 

Consistent with the "cradle to grave" approach inherent in CjY' s employment law practiee, 
· · we have had: excellent success in. upholding decisions before the EEOC, Texas Workforce 

Commission, .tCHR and AHRC; in all types of appeals, ranging from terminations to reassigninents 
and salary disputes. Consistentwith·CjY's approachto employment litigation, described below, CJY 
also strongly believes. in an aggressive pre-heanng motion strategy before the. agency designed to 
obtai~ summary 'disposition of clajms whenever po~,sible. bringing prompt resolution for JIA.CA. at 
the lowest possible cost. · 

Litigation 

CIY has had extensive experience in representirig public hbusing authorities arid other 
goveriJinental entities throughout Texas in all forms of litigatiqn; in state arid federal court,_at:both 

. .the trial-and appellate levels,-both.directly and as members of insurance pane_ls .. -Litigation against : .. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITYOF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES .. PAGE9 

Item No. 1C, page 26



· housing authorities can include and the Texas Constitution, (1) suits in federal court under Title VII, 
Title ix: ADEA, ADA, FMLA, FLSA, COBRA, and.42 U.S.C S~c. 19S3 (for viofation of federal 
constitutional or statutory rights), (2) negligence or premises liability claims ; {3) breach ofcontract .. 
claims involving vendors, (4) appeals froin]3oard decisions into state district court, and (5) suits in · 
state court under the Texas Whistlebfower Act, the TCHRA, various provis!ons of the Texas Labor 

. Code (right to work, the filing ofempioyee grievan~es, retaliation for filing a worker's compensation 
claim). There may also be situations in which a housing authority brings suit for declaratory or 
injunctive relieve in order to challenge the constitutionality or application: of a particular statute or 

. regulation, or to obtain relief against a governmental agency or other thfrd party. The. scope of 
litigation services C\Y will provide is best described by its· litigation philosophy: 

. . 1. Investigation and Pre-Trial Discovery - Firm members understand and appreciate 
•:the need to-evaluate the merits of a claim at the earliest opportunity,- in order to properly assess the· 
HACA's exposure and defensive strategy. Once suit is· threatened or filed, the Firm's lawyers 
routinely evaluate potential exposure and· settlement. value, design a discovery plan and. motion 
strategy," develop a ht;idget with the Housing Authority and/or its insurance· carrier, and :provide 

·regular status reports and constant evaluation and re-evaluation of the Housing AtJ.thority's chances 
of prevailing, thus enabling the Housing Authority to make informed decisions . with current 
information and to control litigation expenses. ' . . 

. 2. Pre-Trial Disposition - C\Y stfongly'believes in the early use of dispositive motions 
that result in dismissal prior to trial,. thereby ·saving HACA significant time and· expense. In state 
court this includes the aggressive use· of special exceptions designed to. pierce the plaintiffs 

. pleadings, and the filing of pleas _to the jurisdiction (e.g., for failure: to exhaust administrative 
. remedies) or motions for summary judgment, either on the merits,. or based on affirmative defenses 
such as imniunity odimitatiOns. In federal courtthis-inc hides "the filing of motions for more defiriite ' ' 

· statement as to vague or ambiguous claims, motions to dismiss for lack of subject matterjurisdiction, 
or for failure to state a claim, or motions for summary judgment, again, either on the merits.or based 
on affirmative defenses . 

. C\Y has taken a particularly aggressive posture with respect to the filing:of dispositive 
motions based. on immunity grounds, for the agency itself, as to any state tort claims ·under the Texas . 
·Tort Claims Act; and for government ~fficials sued in their individual capacities, ·based on common 
law official irmilunity and/or statutory imniunity, or qtiallfied immunity as to federal claims brought 

• under 42 U.S~C. ·Sec. 1983: C\Y has found that the plaintiffs' bar is generally unkllowledgeabfo of 
the immunities enjoyed by public agencies and officials in this state, and that individual officials are . 

· frequently sued for the· sole purpose ·of placing pressure· on the authority to settle, or to wield the 
threat of punitive damages. An early dispositive motion base mi immunity defenses will l_imit the 

. pfaintiffs' discovery until the motion is decided, as.well as plaintiffs ability to drag officials "through . 
the mud'' of litigation. 

3. Alternative l)ispute ResQlutiori (ADR) - Increasingly,.both state and federal judges· . 

. HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE IO 

0 
D 

.. o 
'0. . 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
n 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 

D 
Item No. 1C, page 27



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

.·· are requiring parties to mediate, regardless of the· merits of a case. Mediation serves a useful purpose 
if the HACA has .exposwe .and is ilnable, directly, to secure ari advantageous settlement; or. if the 
~ase is frivolous and itappears that a third party may. be able to conyince plaintiff or his .counsel of 
that fact.· · · · · · . 

4. Trial ai:J.d Appeal - The hallmark of CIY's approach to trial arid appeal' like its . • 
approach to the litigation process, genenilly,.is one of thoroughness arid preparation. As experienced 
litigators, the Firffi believes that it can offer J-IACA the highest .quality of prudent and aggressive 
advocacy at both the trial and appellate leyels. Mr. Ewbank has tried upwards of one hundred jury 
'.mid non-jury cases in state and federal courts, and the firm has handled.more than one hundred (100) · 
appeals at all appellate.levels. Each of CJY's· other attorneys has also had first or sec_ond chair 
experience in the· trial of jury· and non-jury cases,· as well as appellate expedence . 

. 5. . Frivolous Claims - Given the large number of frivolous lawsuits that are filed against 
governmental employers .in Texas, qy believes that the final :prong in any successful litigation 

. strategy is to seek sanctions against the Plaintiff, as well as his counsel, if possible, in suits that are 
.. truly without merit- -.While the current movement-for. tort reform at the state $id national level may 

provide some relief in this area, it is: always wise for an employer, particularly a iarge one such as 
HACA, to putpotential litigants on notice that it will aggressively combat frivolous claims. ·Should 

. HACA be desirous of this approach, qy would file counterelaims fot attomey"s fees in most suits, 
and file fee applications with the_ Court followihgjudgment, where-the circumstances merit.· W'hlle, . 

· · a<lmittedly; it is oftentimes difficult to collect-a judgment against' a plaintiff in srich instances, the 
prophylactic effectinay pay dividends in deterring future litigation:-

, 

2. · · IDENTIFICATION AND. CREDENTIALS OF KEY MEMBERS OF THE . 
TEAM.,. 

The individual who will direct the overall legal activity performed on behalf of HA CA is Jim 
Ewbank, assisted primarily by Shelly-Masters (Principal) ·and Thomas-Bleich (Senior.Associate). 

JIM EWBANK 

HOUSING AUTHORJTY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES · PAGEll 

Item No. 1C, page 28



. . Jim Ewbank is an. equity partner of Cokinos I Young. He has represented· governmental 
entities throughout the state in. conriedion with all fonris of general counsel, labor-and erriploynient 
.disputes, (,)ivil rights, school faw and civil litigation: He has had extensive trial experience in both 
state ~.d federal courts (both jury and non-jury), and substantial state and federal appellate 
experience. He 1:,ias tried. in excess of 125 cases to ver<iict, and has been elected to the Anierican 
Board of Trial Advocates (less than 0. i % o:f all triallawyers are eligible). He has been the primary 

. contact with HACA during the last seventeen (17) years. . . . 

- Mr. Ewbank was· admitted to the Texas bar in 1980; he is also admitted_ to ·practice :before 
U.S. District Courts'in the Western, Southern and Eastern·Districts of Texas: He obtained his 
preparatory education at Southwestern University (B.S. Social Science, 1977) and legaI education at 
Baylor University (J.D,, 1980). Hi:ds Board Certified in both. Civil Trial Law and Personal Injury 
Trial Law by the Texas Board- of Legal Specialization since 1987. He was selected as a Briefing -

. Attorney'for Hon: Bob E . .Shannon, Austin Court of Civil Appeals in 1980-8L He and Judge 
Shannon received the Outstanding Law Review Award by the Texas B~ Foundation in 1982. Mr. . 

. Ewbank served as ari Adjunet Professor of Law· at the University of Texas School Of Law between . 
1986 and 2000, teaching Trial Tactics~ He speaks regularly at various seminars on topics including . 
trialtactics, employment law, evidence, etc. H~ was elected as an Advocate to the Anierican Bpard 
of Trial Advocates in 2000. He is. a member of the legal division of NARRO. and the Housing and 
Development Law. :institute. ·He is a member :b:t the following .Bar Associations:. Austin Bat 
Association (Civil Litigation and Employment Law- Sections); State Bar of Texas (Litigation and 
Employment Law Sections); Texas Association of Defense Counsel; and the Defense Research 
Iristitute. He has been AV rated by Martindale-Hubbel since 1987. H~ has been named.a "Texas. 

· Super Lawyer" by Thompson Reuters for over 10 years. 
. . -

Given his ex.tensive and notyworthy experience in representing gover:timent bodies and their 
entities,)ifu is a sought after speaker; presenter and author. Such experience .andwor.k in6ludes:: 

A. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

.• 

PUBLiC HOUSING AUTHORITY I EMPLOYMENT-/ CIVIL RIGHTS LAW -. 

-Housing and DevelopmentLaw institute (HDLI) General Counsel.Formn,_2008-2016; 

_ NAHRO, 2008 and 2015, "Rec.ent Fe~eral & State Cases Which Could Impact 
Liabilify of Commissioners, Trustees ~d. Officers"; 

HDLI Conference 2011,Litigation Update Panel;. 

HDLI Conference 2008/'Juiy Sele9tion in PHA Cases"; 

TXNAHRO 2008, "Ethics of Commissioners"; 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE12 · 

-o 

D 
:n 
D 

D 

D 
D 
D 

·. D 

0 
.o 
.0 
D 

D 
D 

Item No. 1C, page 29



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

·n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

' . 
• 

• 

.. 

• 

... 

• 

.. 

• 

.. 

• 

• 

B. 

• 

• 

TXNAHRO 2005 "Do's and Don'ts of PILOT"· ., . ' 

TXNAHRO 2004, "Managing Records, HiringfFiririg, and LegalLiability Issues the 
Right Way"; . . - . . . . . 

TXNAHRO 2000, Risk ManagemelitforExecutive Directors; 
. ' . . . . . . 

Risk Mfil}agement Cohference;::1997·~~-1998 "lmntunities !or Governillental 
· Employees·; : 

• ·, ;<. 

. •'• . 
TASB/TASA Convention, 1993 - 2008,_Piesentations on Topics inchiding Due 
Process; Avoiding and Defending Whigtf Jblow~r Claims, Open Meetings/Open 
Records, and Investigatio'rt of Auto Cla!n:i-s; .: . . . 

Texas ~simciation of SchoolBoard~-Co~cil of School.Attorneys,' Educati_oriLaw 
Coi1fel'.ence F orUin Discµssion Hqw to Build a Defens¢ Around Individti~l fu1munity' 
in Civil Right~_Litigation; . ' · - · · · 

Council of Sch9ol Attorneys Semimrr, Effective Motions for Sunimary Judgment; · 
. ., .... ' ., . . . . .· ·' . ... . .. 

Texas Ass6Ciation of School Boards Seminar, J>reve~ting and Defending. Due Process 
Lawsuits; , . . . · · ·. . . . · . . . . . .. 

. · __ Texas Association of School B~ards Seminar, Avoiding the Co~ouse; . 

Texas Associatio~ of Defense Col1Jlsel, Spring Meetit1.g, "Defense of Se~t1al 
Harassment/Discrimination Cases"; 

Risk Management Selll,inar, A Discussion of Tort Claims, Statutes and Immunities, . 
APIE;and . . . -

In-service training to vario_us local eµiployers, 1992-2017, ·"Prevention of Sexual 
H£1!assment/Discrimimition in the Workplace"; "Prevention of Age Discriinination ill 
.the Workplace;" "Internal fuvestigatfo11s of-Employment Disputes;" A Proper 
Documentation and Tei'minatfon Procedlires. 

' ·,,• I 

TEACHING POSITIONS 

Adjunct Professor, UniyJr~ity of Texas_ S_chool of Law; and 

Jrial Ta¢tics, taught 1986 - :woo, four hour intensive trial advocacy course for third 
year law students. · · 

.HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE13-' 

Item No. 1C, page 30



· SHELLY MASTERS 

· ·Shelly Masters has more than fifteen years of experience representing clients in multiple 
' .. ' ' . . ' . ': '' ': ' . " ' ' : \ .• ' ' ' '' . . •' 

areas of htigat10n, with a particular focus on construct10n, commercial and product habihty related 
matters. She handles a wide range oflegalissu.es as outside general counsel for companies such as 
drafting and negotiating contracts and employment agreements, resolving disputes, perfecting lien 
and borid claims, and litigating breach ~f contract, personal illjury, consfructfon defect, employment : ' 
discrimination and wrongful termination matters and much more. She also trains client supervisors · 
on'a variety of topics designed to ininimize risks so that her clients will have the .. tools to protect 
against future disputes and litigation. She. keeps abreast of national and state litigation trends and .. 

. legislation.· She passes this knowledg~ along to clients as an active member and speaker at local, state 
and national trade associations and· seminars~ Shelly works with clients and opposing parties to 
resolve matters as efficiently and, economically as possible. Her education ineludes the University of 
Texas, B.A., 1995;UniversifyofHoustonLaw School, J.D., 1998; UniversityOfTexasLaw School, 
visiting ·student (1997-1998). 

THOMAS BLEICH 

Thomas handles civil and business litigation matters in state and federal courts, arbitration . 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE14 

Item No. 1C, page 31



n· 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

proceedings, and before administrative agencies. He represents employers and businesses in a 
variety of commercial and employment disputes, including breach of contract and employment 
aweements; wrongful termination, discrimination, retaliation, and harassment claims;. an.d wage and 
hour issues, including .prpper overtime ,calculation and .employee classification. Thomas also 
regularly assists clients.with drafting, negotiating and review of business contracts and _employment 
policies, procedures and agreements. His education includes the University of Texas, B.A., 2000; 
Brooklyn Law School, J.D., 2006. 

3. PROFILE OF THE FIRM 

A. MANAGERIAL CAPACITY 

While.Jim Ewl:>ank: will be the,manager oflegal services to HACA, he will be supported by 
an experienced professional staff of other attorneys and legal assistants, ,listed below .. _ Legal 
assistants are relied upon for a wide range of discovery and investigative purposes, thereby providing 
the appropriat~ level oflegal service at the most cost effective rate. Associate attorneys are utilized 
for research and writing and other legal matters of lesser concern, again at the lower rate. 

OTHER SERVICING PERSONNEL 

Principal 

Shelly Masters (See Above) 

Senior Associate 

Thomas.Bleich (See Above) 

l:egal Assistants· 

Debbie Spector has been a litigation paralegal in the Austin area for thirty years at both 
national and lo<;al law firms with trial, administrative and appellate practices .. Her experience 
includes case .management of personal injury, property, product liability, medical and legal 
malpractice cases as well as commercial litigation, including real estate and corporate matters, 

Cristie Montgomery has thirty years' experience as a litigation paralegal. She began her 
career in commercial litigation but has experience in tort law, anti-trust litigation, municipal law, 
water/environmental law;- contracts, construction, sonie medical malpractice and personal injury 
(primarily defense) and school law. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL· SERVICES PAGE15 

Item No. 1C, page 32



B. TECHNICAL CAP ABILITIES 

, Cokinos I Young strives to excel as a leader in utilizing advancements in new technology. 
Our team prides itself on its knowledge and expertise in using digital discovery for research and 
evidence in defending our clients' best interests, from small scalematters such as individual personal 
injury cases, to large scale cases with catastrophic ,damages and hundreds of plaintiffs, with the 
assistance of such e-discovery programs as DISCO by Cornerstone. Our staff has extensive 
knowledge of the issues surrounding the use of mobile data, social media, and other non-traditional 
modes of collecting evidence. 

Our dedicated IT department is on call 24/7 for emergencies and to run our server, so that our 
trial commitments run smoothly and securely, and we are ·always available for our clients' needs . 
. We utilize a secure, private FTP connection to share files with clients. We also have a network of 
individuals and companies we are familiar with inthe Austin area whose expertise.have assisted us 
in creating state of the art trial and mediation presentations. 

CIYutilizes its own secure connections for the protection of our clients' confidentiality. Firm 
members can travel at a moment's notice and remain connected to the database. Our system is 
Microsoft-based, and we have access to all Microsoft professional programs (such as Outlook, Excel, 
and Word), and we utilize PDF editing software such as Adobe Pro to create, edit and· maintain 
documents for our clients. 

4. REFERENCES 

Jim Ewbank, through Ewbank & Harris, P.C. (now merged into Cokinos I Young),_ has 
previously represented the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. However, qy also has 
extensive representation of other governmental entities with similar employment related issues, 
including PHA's, school districts and Capitol Metropolitan Transportation Authority. Furthermore, 
the Firm serves as general counsel on employment issues to several mid-size private employers in the 
Austin area. 

A. GOVERNMENT AL ENTITIES 

1. James Hargrove 
President and CEO 
Housing Authority of Bexar County 
(210)225:.0017 ,1\ 

Has prior knowledge of PHA representation; recently retained CIY as outside General 
Counsel 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE16 

·D 
D 
D 

D 

D 

n 

n 
D 
[l 

D 

n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n Item No. 1C, page 33



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
l 
1 
l 
1 
l 
l 
1 

.2. 

3. 

.R 

L 

2. 

3. 

Cecilia Prieto 
Executive Director . 
Round Rock Housing Authority 

· . :e.o. Box 781 
. Round Rock, TX 78~80 
(512)'255-9159 
Performed a wicie variety of outside General Counsel activities 

TimAlcott · 
San Antonio Housing Authority . 
818 South Flores 

· San Antonio, TX 78204 
(210) ~77-6262 
San Antonio Housing:Authority recently Jetained CJY as one of SAHA's outside 
counsel .. · 

PRIVATE EMPLOYERS 

Fox Service Company, Inc.. (200+ Employees) 
Contact Person:· Robert Nagel. 

•President 
(512) 442-6782 

Activities: General Colinsel on all employment matters, empfoyment contracts, · 
.and succe~sful 'defei:ise of sexual harassment/di~crlmination/wrongful 
termination/ ADA jury trial. 

Casa Mechanical (200+ Employees) 
Contact Person: · Cqdy Christianson · 

Vfoe President 
(512) 334-7300 

Activities·: General Counsel on.all employment matters, employment contracts, · 
· and successful defense of sexual harassment/discrimination/wrongful . 
termination/ADA jury .trial. · 

Brown Distributing Co. (300+ Employees) 
Contact.Person: Laurie Brown· 

Activities: 

Executive Vice-President 
(512) 478-'9353 

General colinsel-type work with multiple employment and contract 
issues, EEOC responses, advice on FMLA, APA and FLSA, 
.successful defense ofemployment cases 

HOUSING AUTHORJTY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES PAGE17 

Item No. 1C, page 34



n 
n 
n 
n 
n. 

n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
n 
1 
1 
1 
l 
l 
l 
l 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 

Purchasing Department 
1124 S. IH 35 
Austin, Texas 78704 

PROJECT# HACA-P-17-0217 
LEGAL SERVICES 
(EMPLOYMENT LAW AND LITIGATION) 

BID PROPOSAL 

, HACNSHCC/AAHC will pay Attorney fees for said legal services atthe hourly rate or 
rates set forth below: 

1. $ 300 
2. $ 250 

per hour for senior counsel 
per hour for associates 

3. $ 1 25 per hour for paralegals 

All legal services provided by the Attorney under this contract shall be performed by the 
appropriate personnel at the above hourly rates depending upon the complexity of the 
work and whether novel issues are presented. HACNSHCCIAAHC reserves the right to 
disallow charges for hours and/or services and any cost which it deems to be 
unreasonable and/or unnecessary. In the event of any dispute over any charges for hours, 
services, or item of cost, such dispute shall be resolved as described in paragraph 3,I. 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: 

Number Number ----- -----

Respectfully Submitted of: 

CompanyName: Cokinos I Young 
Address: 1 21 o Nueces 
By: <l """-- E''-J c ~ ~ 
Telephone: 512-4 76-1 080 

Title: Principal 
Fax: 512-61 0-1184 

Item No. 1C, page 35



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 1D 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2507:  Approval of the Award of Contract 
for Agency Wide Pest Control Services  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 

BOARD ACTION REQUEST 

RESOLUTION NO. 2507 

HOUSING OPERATIONS 

MEETING DATE: July 13, 2017 

STAFF CONTACT: Michael Roth, Director of Housing and Policy 

ITEM TITLE: Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 2507: Approving the Award of 
Contracts for Integrated Pest Management Services to multiple contractors. 

BUDGETED ITEM: Yes 

. TOTAL COST: · $ 81,388.80 per year reviewed annually not to exceed five years. This amount will 
be divided between two contractors. 

ACTION 

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2507: Authorizing the Housing Authority of the Ciy of Austin to award 
contracts to Kil-A-Bug and Oliver's Termite and Pest Management. 

SUMMARY 

. The Housing Authority of the City of Austin issued a Request for Proposal for Integrated Pest Management 
Services HACAMl 7-P-0216. It was advertised in tb,e Austin American Statesman on Sunday, March 5, 2017, 
and Sunday, March 12, 2017, with a due date of March 30, 2017. Fifteen proposals were emailed and three 
responses were received. The evaluation committee reviewed the proposals and HACA is exercising its right to 
award multiple contracts. Housing Operations Department staffs' recommendation is to award this contract to. 
two Contractors, Kil-A-Bug and Oliver's Termite and Pest Control. Housing Operations and the evaluation 
committee see a need to have two contractors providing pest control services. The properties will be divided 
equally and contractors will be monitored for effectiveness and efficiency. 

Exhibit 1: Distribution 
Exhibit 2: Tabulations 
Exhibit 3: Evaluation 
Exhibit 4: Bidders Qualifications 

EXHIBITS 

Item No. 1D, page 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2507 

Approving the Award of Contracts for Agency Wide Integrated Pest Management Services 

WHEREAS, on March 30th, 2017, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin opened and publicly read 
bids for Integrated Pest Management Services; 

WHEREAS, HACA sees a need to exercise its right to award to multiple conracts to increase 
effectiveness and efficency; 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the President & CEO that the proposals submitted by Oliver's 
Termite & Pest Manangement and Kill-A-Bug in the amount of $81,388.80 divided equally be accepted 
as the most responsible and responsive bids; 

WHE~AS, this contract will be reviewed anually not to exceed five years 

Now, therefore, it is hereby 

RESOLVED, Housing Authority of the City of Austin Board of Commissioners authorize the President 
& CEO to accept the bids as submitted by Oliver's Termite & Pest Management and Kill-A-Bug and 
award such contracts this 13th day of July, 2017. 

Michael G. Gerber, Secretary Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 

Item No. 1D, page 2



\ 

EXHIBIT 1 

Item No. 1D, page 3



t} 

RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION-INVITATION FOR BID/REQUES FOR PROPOSAL 

Contract: HACA-17-B-0216 
Description: Integrated Pest Management 

Services 

BID OPENING DT/HR: March 30, 2017 2:00PM 
Location: 1124 South IH35 Austin Texas 78704 

Date Organizatiqn 

Company: t'.ebt t1'\Cll..S.~ 
Address: 91 / (p S. lit c31 ~ I=. 

{l.flLh.e Ai wruaJ-0 8 ~ f / 
Phone: ?7~ &'S'b '7 37'8Fax: 
Received by: 

Email: -;r W\ e.. '2_ es: ~ .~· 

Company: <Jf'tin Pe~ ~01t/Y a1. Sv C..
Address: -----------

Company: ol 1
1 

litns 
Address: -----------

Phone: Fax: 
Received by: B~v-v~ 6ohon·vne_ 
Email:: b ron@_ol1'ver · .es,); 

Company:{ei pf Cc <; 

Address: 
---------~-

Phone: Fax: 
Received by: Dt>u] Br-~~-e 
Email: d y- e.,e.. Ot. • ta:irYI 

Company:{ Yl'.ll u, ·s /)e_ s.+ 
Address: -----------

Phone:~S-<:o/I q Fax: C/:5'300'1'~1111 
Received by: t.owri.e..,'UW) TvQv is 

Email: pe_~-J. C4'ld. ( a..1.Un Q_ hoo. 

Addendum 

Addendum#: I 
Date Notified: )jl~ 
Received by: , 
Date: 

Addendum #: \ 
1 
I 

Date Notified: 3{ '1 
Received by: 
D~te: 

Addendum #: ( 
Date Notified:?J!14 
Received by: 
Date: 

Addendum#: 
Date Notified: 
Received by: 
Date: 

Addendum#: 1 J 
Date Notified: 3j 1 · 
Received by: 
Date: 

Addendum#: I 
Date _Notified: ~fit./ 
Received by: / 
Date: 

Item No. 1D, page 4



·:. ~t 
RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION-INVITATION FOR BID/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

Contract: HACA- l 7-B-0216 
Description: Integrated Pest Management 

Services 

BID OPENING DT/HR: March 30, 2017 2:00PM 
Location: 1124 South IH35 Austin Texas 78704 

Date Organization 

Company: r.; L, A--B v 7 
Address: ;J/-fef9 e. 12-~ 

Austin T~ , 
Phone: 5JJ. 4 ~I· os:s-L Fax:s1 -:J-L[ ~ ( -V~s;t( 
Received by: ~11v1ti.z.W 'lh.ovna.s,. Sc...u,,<Sf 

Addendum 

Addendum#: 
Date Notified: 
Received by: 
Date: 

I 

Em~il: be. rb ~/'?:/./Se r- ) I n I I (). c)< a..h{,).-0 .~ 

l 
?/i 

Company:f:>e..s,,i-t'Y\(}J(l~ 
Address: 5°'32} J:naiusfr.,·a.J2oajt:..-s.Blvd 

A-vs+n n 1~73S: 
Phone:5J;;t?-~fs 1007 Fax:sJ '.1Js0 /. 0002-

Received by: ~Vll...h Yvl C. El we..e_ 

Email: S.O\,Y-ctJ1 'Pes. vn 

Company:!ft_e Me.ru.;f'y ~6ul-l-W-~e up 
Address: l o '2-- CJ -Pead!l-ire e_ P kw!~ J- 3 4 
. ?e..~e.;h +-re t c.i ~ c, A <J z <P 9 
Phone: goo /Cf J. ;:t.((, ?:> o F : 0 7<;{.·3fcl:-r g;o o 
Received by: :JeS£1'ee._., ra...ndo..l l@-+fv.mu.~ 9 
Email::::fessi·c:.b-. ~Ja_QJ . 

Addendum#: 
Date Notified: 
Received by: 
Date: 

Addendum#: 
Date Notified: 
Received by: 
Date: 
ouiJ. uJ. 

Company: !"Vt Cl. H ·=ry Itson s.Je..,irrkch & oup;r:rc__ Addendum #: 
Address: Date Notified: 

Phone:q-7~.g9g·)322.. Fax:210 ..s<o<6.4CJ?.Co 
Received by: W'.Gttf It / I 5.>v h 

Email: v')t\ Q iti-h /I so V1 s-J-e..r;-J.t.<:..h . (oyY1 

Phone: S"/Jc-7<tS-n'69 Fax: 
Received by: ·;so.ivne. Cor-h'no.. s. 
Email: ~ IA.t m-e.c. €2, wwpes+, wrn 

Company: DR.i;t>'V\.n.s-k>-, Sexvi~ 
Address: 

~~~~~~~~~~~-

Phone: Fax: 
Received by: NI dct V"I 

1
e_ /i\J ol fS 

Email: 1 _ 
pe £,TVV\ Sd'f'\ e 5 e 

Received by: 
Date: 

Addendum#: 
Date Notified: 
Received by: 
Date: 

Addendum #: l 
Date Notified: 1> \ t ~ 
Received by: 
Date: 

Item No. 1D, page 5



;:', 

RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION-INVIT ATIQN FOR BID/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

Contract: HACA-l 7-B-0216 BID OPENING DT/HR: March 30, 2017 2:00PM 
Location: 1124 South IH35Austin Texas 78704 Description: Integrated Pest Management 

Services 

Date Organization Addendum 

Cornpany:-rl'U-Bus V\-'lCi.c;;,.k.A Addendum #: 1 

Address: l '.j I 2 Svn d---h 12.d Date Notified: ? / J ~ 
1 Cf:,7 :2.. I Received by: 

Phone: $1 2. s-o I s<..f 2-2--Fax: Date: 
Received by: ~ 0hnn~ Ff ores,. · 
Email· -S oh n'f'\~, e_ -Vne lo v ~ vn tt& -k_,, • f\ €.-f · • ~orei, · 

·company: A-6C...- tl & me ~ Covnme>i.~ Addendum#: . 
Address: Date Notified: 

,. Received by: 
Phone:s/ 1.$37- qc;;o a ·Fax: Date: 
Received by: fV\Ct-f"'?--r ch n<;~ 
Email: rh0.1"~\ohnsf.-e (\ @_ ~O Qn,+.e.GL-kh .<' _i.)A1 ""' 

J . '.J. ~ 

Company: v'~ I Pe's+~ Addendum#: 
Address: -PD~ ?3lc; I Date Notified: 

. Rn vrid. ·l?vr .fie i'?{p'f:.O Received by: 
Phone: Fax:' Date: 
Received by: ~ ~S:. 
Email:: sk.,...el/<£ ,'#~f:ues;I-.~ 

l • 
Company: Addendum#: 
Address: Date Notified: 

J Received by: 
Phone: Fax: Date: 
Received by: 
Email: 

Company: Addendum#: 
Address: Date Notified: 

Received by: 
Phone: Fax: Date: 
Received by: 
Email: 

Company: Addendum#: 
. Address: Date Notified: 

Received by: 
Phone: Fax: Date: 
Received by: 
Email: 

Item No. 1D, page 6



EXHIBIT 2 

Item No. 1D, page 7



lntegra " est Management Services H 
I . 

17-P-0216 
March 29, 2017 2:00PM/CST 

' 
Company #1 Company#2 Company#3 

Location of Treatment Olivers Termite &Pest 
Kil-A-Bug Pest Master Control 

1124 South I-35 $ 95.00 $" 720.00 $ 465.00 

1100 South I-35 $ 40.00 $ 480.00 $ 85.00 

1640.A & B East 2nd Street ·$ 50.00 $ 480.00 $ 125.00 

205 Chicon Street $ 40.00 $ 480.00 $ 55.00 

1507 S. IH 35 $ 40.00 $ 480.00 $ 70.00. 

1503 S.IH35 .. $ 50.00 $ 480.00 $ 70.00 

1144 S. Airport $ 50.00 $ 360.00 $ 175.00 

1801 East 4th Street $ 290.00 $ 15,168.00 $ r 402.90 

2001 Rosewood/ Yale Street $ 315.00 $ 11,100.00 $ 313.65" 

2341 Corta Street $ 195.00 $ 8,700.00 $ 247.35 

1201 w. Live Oak $ 320.00 $ 14,400.00 $ . 523.00 

905 Bedford $ 390.00 $ 25,920.00 $ 665.00 

85 Trinity Street $ 280.00 $ 9,840.00 $ 513.00 . 

1143 Salina $ 110.00 $ 1,920.00 $ 81.60 

1941 Gaston Place $ 170.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 255.00 

1203 Cumberland $ 305.00 $ 17,280.00 $ 367.20 

8426 Goldfinch $ 285.00 $ 12,960.00 $ 367.20 

110 Boles $ 290.00 $ 11,280.00 $ 239.70 

2126 Goodrich $ 290.00 $ 3,600.00 r $ 102.00 

2300 W. Northloop $ 175.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 331.50 

9120 North Gate Blvd. $ 335.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 127.50 

6328 Shadowbend $ 360.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 127.50 

6328 Buffalo Pass. $ 210.00 $ . 3,960.00 $ 84.15 

3628 Manchaca $ 345.00 $ 3,960.00 $ 84.15 

l438 Coronado Hills $ 225.00 $ 5,760.00 $ 122Ab 

Scattered Sites (22) $ 1,760.00 $ 9,240.00 $ 550.00 

Total Monthly Bid: $ 7,015.00 $ 179,568.00 $ 6,549.80 
·: ,_ · ·. ·TotaJAnntial_.Bid: $' 84, 180;00 ,, $: 2,154,816.00 $·. . .. . . 78j~9J'.q0: . 

Additional Services Bed Bu2s: 
0 Bedroom $ 150.00 $ 60.00 $ . 225.00 

1 Bedroom $ 180.00 ., $ 75.00 $ 225.00 

2 Bedroom $ 250.00 $ 85.00 $ 245.00 

3 Bedi-oom $ 350.00 $ 95.00 $ 275.00 

4 Bedroom $ 400.00 $ '125.00 $ 295.00 

5 Bedroo~ $ 450.00 $ 150.00 $ 325.00 

Additional Services Fleas inside: $ 70.00 $ 60.00 $ 125.00 

Additional Services Wasps/Bees: $ 60.00 $ 75.00 $ 225.00 

Annual percentage increase ~· 1 3 3 

. Bid OfficiaA~vl Date: 3/30/;7 
v 

Official Witness~!&& ~k=: 

Item No. 1D, page 8



.,, 

Integrated Pest Management Services - HACA-17-P-0216 

March 30, 2017 

Evaluators Olivers Termite & Pest 
Kil-A-Bug Pest Master 

Control 

Frank Garcia 

Community Director 80 66 97 
Cecilia Vargas 

Community Director 80 65 98 
Judy Paciocco 

Senior Operations Director 89 52 96 

Total: 249 183 291 

Recommended: Split Contract between Kil-A-Bug and Olivers Termite I alternating 6 month schedule 

Item No. 1D, page 9



EXHIBIT 3 -

Item No. 1D, page 10



L Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned (5) 

' 

,_ Busloen/Resldent OWned Bu•lness/Seetion 3 Contractor (15) 

~ 

C. Past Eaperlence and performance (15 point•) 

( 

' i 
! 

I 
H· 

.. 

~Evaluator f;.o.V'IJ< Co..j(,i D.. 

Evaluation HACA-17-P--0216 
Integrated Pest M1nagement5ervlces 

March 30, 2017 Z:DDPM/CST 

:t.J Comments :!:j, Comments 

k;il-14-,;~ 4. "'" It,, .. ~ A,...,,"""" (hi- ~/./ 

()W~,.j( (3<..i.i,..~~- f?,~"14... 

Poin~J 1 0. Comments, ~no'.Jcomments 

k~\ A y;~ clJ. ,.._,,~ C-j?~ .. ~ Ped ,.,,.,.~}.,. 

~c..d·;·~ > 13 .... ~ '"' c~ 1. Cw/, (, r.o. h.a-. C..~~r .. d·"~. 

ffij, Comments }!J, Comm~ts 
p~ ~u C-,,.,.j, ~- ~r'r A, f~ 

p.;.,.~ ;:1. 

TOTAL ·ilJ I ~~I 

i~ "" 

i~ ._,,~ 

Se~ 

Date ~-/'I· 11 Date 
q .. /Ll·I 7 

wcomments 

I.Jo .... .,,_ Ow.,.J DL:vui r~r .... ;}e ~ f.s~ e.,,.~,.1 jj 

""" II~'"'· 11 .... ,;i.... o,,,~e.J· e.,...;,.,,s;_ 

~· . Comments --

0.. So!.c,1-;..., ) 0 Ii Vtr$ T-u,..:J.., ' f~1t Ca._j.-.) 
i.i .. '>.,.d-;..,.., ] eo ... +,~, Jor. 

~ 

~J Comments 

c..,... .... ,,~+~ (',.,,...., tle.-. ~~ C..,i-...,..,_~, ~,.,.,.,. 

fru->r A.· 

ql I 
.. 

Date· 11-J~-/l 

Item No. 1D, page 11



EVALUATION CRITERIA 

a. Demonstrated Capabillty to pro•ide the servlceo requested In the propos,al(JO points) 

"'-

,. 

b: Cost .rrect1-.en ... (lO points) 

c.. Staff Qualiflcatlon1 and •llJl•ri•nce (IS points) 

', 

Evaluation HACA-11-P·OZ16 
Integrated Pesi: Management services 

',, ,:. March,30, 2017 2:oOPM/CST 

Vendor#!"· Vendor #2 

Kil-A-Bug Pest Master 

~c omments ~I Comments 

J(il·P. -e,"'& Cl.ffe,,.,.J h Ju..,( )~ .. Pe•t ~ .... Of~""''• 
j,, 

"""'< J.\w. 
c..., .. 1.,1:1 ,,, ,,..,;j(. J<.c. 5""""'""' (~''""~""'· Go..f.,.\,;\;l-t to p,~:.i~ 11..t. ~;"l 

"""l<GJ w·,\I.. ftU., g...,.,.~ .. i-.. rt t'-< ,~.J. s..i .... , .~ ;!, t,,.,j t;ct\l\t-tl '""""'-' 7l.r.. c.. ... 1-1 
f ... \,\G 1.-•b.-Qv,~ 'J: $ b I o,,,.J w.,1.~~ e..; .. ~ f,f+. b~I' ,.... 1.<-:rcJ ~I~ A.ul;~ 

c.:·~r .~ ~ rt..~ ,<VJ A .... ,1>. C.....v....h"" 
c. .... i,y. 

Jrj,"' " ~' C~mments Comments. 

K;\ A 1)~ i~ lo.I~ "Hc.t.1-;'-'<. iht. Pe.st /)lus}., I~ i<of ~f e.ff,._i.:..ie.. 

~""°''"'i h.i.1 j.i.., 'l.J h.:~1. .. 1 i,.:J q~ 7),, Co""i"'-f ho.~ .J~ J.t.i.~k$+ h;J 

'?>41<. ""+ ?..l .... 1~.1. 

Lill Comments ~,' Comments 

1).e,: st..H o • .'r )l.;\l .,...~ ~~ ... i & >lo. f~ ... f ... ,~ 1'1o.1 I-..- )....,_ ""°""'( 

Yt.>.,,, oF .Wf"''~. c.,_,,,~tl~ a.\\ 1e-1 "~ e.x~1~~"". C..;v .. ~ ~"1 ~ 

'sh.U ... +. ~;ll· A·J3~, l<..vt ... Cc,,.,)...,cr~ 
$1-.H ... ~ "'' ~ l'l<oJ~.: • lvwr.. II\ 

Ct.t~d;eJ Affl; c...!ur /_;.,~ .. ~e.. '" 

L; '~'·· e,,,.,..,...~rv...1. C,u+;f;.J Af/l•~ .. 

Vendor#l 

Olivt:rs Tcnnite & est Control 

~' ' c.;omments 

Dl<vtr; Te~ ... :i-e f-f'~ l!o...:J.,.,/ tl./>f'-
J-o ~V(. fl., e._,.; .. i,;L;.Jy Jo (¥.v;~ 

-/I.e. ~~;~~ '"iu-.J..,J, 14 a-.,"[ ;.i 
c...,,c..'""f "'"'""'i w.~<. /-IJ!t!/4-1 biv.·!,'o.. lr:.11·~ 

~ 
°'44..,,J-~e-J. .~ 7f.o. .. (,-f,J-~ ... 

I '4.J"'~ .. l;..bJ.r.. 
'/t.;~-'to.i-' ~~ ... +-
1£j' Comments 

o{;vt~s 1-t..o1 .... ;}. ~ f.,~ C,.,J..o( i.f 

C..>~ dt<.<~vc. ~ <!.,, .... p-y' ~, 
f k t. ...... ~ J,jJ "t 18 J<. 

QrJ Comments 

TJ.-t.. s).~}~ ""} ot.:~e,J htw,.;H 4, p ... ~ 

c...:.t-•1 h,,,i;~ ,,.,_,,,,, •F e..-~--· ... ~-
~W-tlfti~", i°" }l.f.. P..i.I Pr->fas,4 r J;J.i~' 

rµ,J Cuht.c...'\;..;,,,, r+~.....,;.,J. 

Item No. 1D, page 12



1. Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned (5) Poi~jr 
h Comments 

•· Business/Resident Owned Bu1iness/Secllon 3 Contractor (IS) 
Comments 

f. Past Esperlence and performance (IS points) Points 

TOTAL 0 
iEwluator Date 

Evaluation HACA-17-P-0216 
Integrated Pest Management Services 

Morch 30, 2017 2:00PM/CST 

Pojpls-
> Comments -_ _ _[ 

\;'..JJ N\fl\ Q \~'fltO 

Date 

/ 

P!!i!Jl:; 
Comments 

Q\·,\)-f'r ~-\ Q:)1'd.\'O\ '1:$ Ct.. /OD"'1c:, 

"' \<11'•~'--f 0-v"-<>ci 1.:>0\S.1-.v-.a. 

'('fJt;Crti" (M\,,(;ii,(~) 

Poin)O Comments ~·10l' · ?.. Cb~\rot::!oc. 
""\vJO o.C -ILe.1eVV'f'lcyee'_s ~~ ~,,. 

.e1,T1.,f:J\Q.f€C1 \c-r µo<'e-\ror' q 1p-s. 
( 1pl9013 ·~ I) \l)lf~ 

Points 

)S Comments 

µo i"c•,\;r<s o" ('(,\""\~ 
W)fl(. 

l'0'V'~,0.!:; .i; \('.>IV°' S!le-· ~. 

Datt LJ ;;;1 I 

Item No. 1D, page 13



EVALUATION CRITERIA 

a. Dtmonstrated Capablllty to provide the servic01 requested In the proposal(JO pol•!•) 

b. Cost effectiveness (20 points) 

<- StalfQualiflcatlono and experience (I~ points) 

Evaluation HACA-17-P-0216 
Integrated Pest Management Services 

March 30 2017 2:00PM/CST 

Vtndor#I Vtndor #2 Vcndor#l 

p . Pc.-st Master OJivm Tcnnite & est Control Kil-A-BUR 

~Comments , , 

\\ ~s ~ 1::-y._:;. -\C> (o•~\ e 
Se<-<>- W::. G.,;:; re c1~.JecL 

('c1'-.\rt.e.-\s LJ\ \\Q..<L tl4eoriJ~uwn 
j_:; 1:> r '-W\~i.1\- ~ r-oz!l. cfc.r-4i.vJ2> 

?r(<iQJ~ \ll'C~ {.'£;\>.;.\l'C{!..\- I'\ Vf{I 
, , 1. ~ ,\,.,1..'J.'""1(\ -\\wt \..~'-€. ~1\d l'D·i--__,..,,.., --r• f·eu&J· 

jPoin~j Of'~ ·,"' icfllf 
~C01nments \..) 

\))~C\2_l\o..Q Q_.ef'\. h\J~XCe.k.f 

fl l±S {]Gpvf <Pi like® 
&>f>· l/ 

~Comments .. 

'r\Cl\ C'oSt P-f *-•h'tC. 
j, / J..ltl/'.cn 

L!!J~omments [)r-~(A(l;i,eJ 1 ~l dm~ 
QOf\' li\{'1"C·,,J, 0tt·h CL p?I; Ndor 

1. i (~f" •:.( 

~Comments 

Points I TI" t;,u\Stw- <'~S 'O.·.r"\U l q 'l '5 
J..3.Jcomments QJ_.11riei-.J HAQA QD"--\ll'.,;,l. 

l'JO ~r>..·,-010:...I.~ C<...-..\-kci,J 

Item No. 1D, page 14



cl Participation by any of the following: Minority/Female owned (5) 

e. Business/Resident Owned Business/Section 3 Contractor (15) 

f. Past Experience and performance (15 points) 

,~ 

~Evaluator Judy Pacioceo 

Evaluation HACA-17-P-0216 

Integrated Pest Management Services 
March 30, 2017 2:00PM/CST 

~ Comments t:j Comments 
Yes. minority owned. Yes, female owned. 

~ t:J Comments Comments 
Yes, one new hire is Section 3 qualified. No Section 3 participation. 

tJ Comments ~ 2 Comments 
Owner bas been in the business for 42 years. Has provided pest B.Siness organized in 2006 (over 10 years). Has government 
control services to Ausitn Community College, Georgetown ISO, experience with City of Austin, City of Round Rock, and Ft Hood. 
and Walnut Creek Apartments. 

TOTAL 891 s2I 
recommnded for ancillacy services-bed bugs, fleas, wasp~ 

Date 05/02117 

w Comments 
Yes, minority owned . 

. 

Li Comments 
Yes, all three technicians are Section j qualified. 

Ll Comments 
Owner bas 30 years of experience. Provided a list of current/past 
contracts to include HACA. 

961 

recommnded for general pest conirol services 

Item No. 1D, page 15



EVALUATION CRITERIA 

~ Demonstrated CapabiUty to provide the services requested in the proposal(30 points) 

b. Cost effectiveness (20 points) 

c. Staff QuaUficatloos and experience (15 points) 

Evaluation HACA-17-P-0216 
Integrated pest Management Services 

March 30, 2017 2:00PM/CST 

Vendor#! Vendor#2 Vendor#3 

Kil-A-Bu« Pest Master Oliver. Tennite & est Control 

I ~~ints I ;~ints I ~~ints I 
.:_jC'omments ~Comments ~Comments . 
Provided various applicator licenses. Has multi~family and Provided various applicator licenses. Types of buildings not Did not provide a list of current applicator licenses. Has multi-
commercial experience. Did not provide a list of products used for specifically stated. but a list of current and past contracts provided. fariiily, duplex, and commercial office building experience~ 
treatment 

LI Comments 
$84,!80-2nd lowest bid. 

~Comments' l~~ints !comments 

$2, 154,816-highest bid. Monthly and annual costs exceed that of tl ~.60-lowest bid. 
lowest bidder by 2J times. However. ancillary services for bed bug , 
tleas and wasps are the lowest 

~Comments' LJcomments 
Owner has more than 40 years of experience and technicians range Not stated-just number of years the compnay has been in business 
from 7 to 20 ye.,. with company. (owner). 

Ucomments 
Three technicians and owner. Technicians range from less than on 
year to 2S years with company. 

Item No. 1D, page 16



EXHIBIT 4 

Item No. 1D, page 17



Statement of Bidder's Qualifications 

1. Oliver Termite and Pest Control Inc. 
2 .. 111 West Anderson Lane E-306 Austin Texas 78752 
3. September 01, 1985 
4. Bidder is Texas "C"Corporation 
5. September 01, 1985 
6. Black American 100% ownership 
7. Under present name 30 years 
8. Present HACA contract $64,286.52 
9. Complete Pest and Termite Control Services; Oliver Termite and Pest Control is a company that 

promote IPM, We have a form to help explain our views when it comes t_o educating our clients. 
Our beliefs are education comes first in any pest control services. When you educate your client 
then work together, it then helps keep the bldg free of insects while at the same time using the 
least amount of chemicals. 

10. No Failures as of this time 
il. Dexter & Company I 3601 Cedar Springs Road I Dallas TX 75219 

Phone: 214.526.5646 I Fax: 214.526.6926 smccay@dexterinsurance.com 

12. P~dernales Electric Cooperative (current) 
Procurement Specialist II; Tia Owens, CPP 
P. 0. Box 1 Johnson City, Texas 78636 
888.554.4732 ext. 5075 I Fax: 830.868.4963 
Monthly Pest Control Service; all locations 

DivisionTexas Dept. of Transportation (current) 
Erasmo (Sal) Salazar CTPM, CTPPurchaser v, Services SectionProcurement Phone: (210) 615-
5955F~x: (210) 615-5963 sal.salazar@txdot.gov; ivlontflly and Quarterly pest control Services 

.Reliable Property Management, Inc. (current) 
Bobbi LoveBookkeeper/ Asst. ManagerRPM 
Phone 512~732-8388 Bobbi@landlordaustin.com;General pest control for all properties 

13. Housing Authority of the City of Austin (current) 
Nora Morales 
Director of Purchasing1124 S. IH 35Austin Texas 78704 
Office: (512) 477-1496 Ext. 2119Fax: (512) 477-3979 
Email: noram@hacanet.orgWebb: www.hacanet.org 

Housing Authority of Travis Count (Past) 
Joanne Serrano 
Public Housing Manager 
502 E Highland Mall Blvd., Ste 106-B 
Austin, TX 78752 

Twelve Rivers Management; (Past) 
700 Rio ~rande st'e 200 I Austin, TX 78701 
Stephanie Gregg Email I 0. 512.588.1453 I F. 512.394.5941 

Item No. 1D, page 18



" ) 

Goodwin Mgmt Inc. (current) 
Stan Malachowski · ~ 
111149 Research Blvd# 100 
Stan.rnala'chowshi@goodwintx.com 
512-502-7520 
Multi-housing.& single, duplex housing, office bldgs. 

Austin Vestors Mgmt. (current) 
Erika Penalosa 
13785 N 183 Austin, Texas 78750 
512-879-6060 
Erika@austinvestors.com 
Multi-housing; duplex housing; single family housing 

Hewlett Property Mgmt. (current) 
Rob Hewlett 

· P.O.Box 27995 Austin, Texas 78755 
Rob hewlett@outlook.com 
512-474-4100 
Single, family housing; multi-housing; quplex housing 

Apartment Management Professional (Current) 
Sweetwaters; Lexington Hills; and The Oslo Apartments 

- Rex Jones 
5900 Southwest Pkwy Bldg#2 Ste.210 Austin, Texas 78735 
512-288-8538 

Item No. 1D, page 19



., 
' 

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 

1. Name of Bidder-- Kil-A-Bug (Owner) Arthur Bell 

2. Permanent Main Office Address -- 2929 E.12th St 

3. When organized - 1974 

4. Bidder - Sole Proprietor 

5. Sole Proprietor 

6. Minority ownership of the business-Black owned business owner has 100% . ' 

7. Number of years in business-42 years 

8. Contractin Progress - NIA 

9. General character of work performed by Kil-A-Bug- Kil-A-Bug has always 
taken great pride in providing courteous, dependable, and affordabie 
services for both Residential an.d commercial facilities. Kil-A-Bug is a 

. member of the Better Business Bureau and has very high rating. No reports 
of unsatisfactory services. 

c_ . 

10. Report on any failures to complete work if awarded - NONE 

11. Name and Address of bonding company and agent- Please waive bonding 
for Kil-A-Bug 

12. Three (3) currently completed projects 

1. Austin Community College . 
901 Tuscany Way 
Austin, Texas 
Phone (512) 223-1020 Fax (512) 223-1030 
Email: dcaraway@austincc.edu 
Contact Person: Donna Caraway 

Kil-A-Bug provides pest control services for all ACC facilities 

/ 

Item No. 1D, page 20



,,_:. ' 

2. Georgetown Independent School District 
603 Lakeway Dr. · 
Georgetown, Texas. 
Phone (512), 943-5129 Fax (512) 943-5128 
Email: danek@georgetownisd.org 
Contact Person: David Biesheuvel · 

Kil-A-Bug provides pest control services for all Georgetown ISD locations 

3. Walnut Creek Apartments 
6405 Springdale Rd 

Austin, Texas 
Phone (512) 926-3697 
Email: 06042.manager@catstonemanagement.eom 
Contact Person: Noelia Esquivel . . ' 

Kil-A-Bug.provides Bed Bµg treatment for all Walnut Creek apartments on 
an as need basis. 

13. Previous Contracts -

1. HACA 1981 

2. University of Texas Apartments 
3501 Lake Austin Blvd 
Austin, Texas~ 
Phone (512) 232-5299 Fax (512) 232- 5349 
Email: sasmith@austin.utexas.edu 
Contact Person: Denise Zuniga 
Kil-A-Bug provided Pest control services for all apartments during 
the timeframe of 2009-2015. 

L 

Item No. 1D, page 21



... · .. ' 

3. University of Texas Division of Housing 
P.O Box 7666 
Austin, Texas 
Phone (512) 475-9595 Fax (512) 471-9101 
Email: early@austin.utexas.edu 
Contact pers()n: Rick Early 
Kil-A-Bug provi~ed Pest Control services for all Housing and 
Dorms during the timeframe of 2002 to 2014. 

Item No. 1D, page 22



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ACTION ITEMS 

ITEM NO. 2 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2508:  Approval of the Revision to the 2017 
PHA Annual Plan to incorporate the Disposition Activity for 
Lot 2 of Meadowbrook Courts 



Item No. 2, page 1



Item No. 2, page 2



Item No. 2, page 3



Item No. 2, page 4



Item No. 2, page 5



Item No. 2, page 6



Item No. 2, page 7



Item No. 2, page 8



Item No. 2, page 9



Item No. 2, page 10



Item No. 2, page 11



Item No. 2, page 12



Item No. 2, page 13



Item No. 2, page 14



Item No. 2, page 15



Item No. 2, page 16



Item No. 2, page 17



Item No. 2, page 18



Item No. 2, page 19



Item No. 2, page 20



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 3 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2509:  Approval to Submit a Disposition 
Application for Lot 2 of the Meadowbrook Courts located at 
1100 Live Oak Austin, Tx  78704 to the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development for the Conveyance of 
Ownership to Austin Affordable Housing Corporation



Item No. 3, page 1



Item No. 3, page 2



Item No. 3, page 3



Item No. 3, page 4



Item No. 3, page 5



Item No. 3, page 6



Item No. 3, page 7



Item No. 3, page 8



Item No. 3, page 9



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 4 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2510:  Approval to submit an Amendment to 
the Disposition Application DDA0003968 to Request the 
Disposition of 1640 A & B East 2nd Street and to ground 
lease 1640 A & B East 2nd Street to Pathways at Chalmers 
Courts, LLP at Less than Fair Market Value for the 
Creation of Additional Affordable Housing Units 



Item No. 4, page 1



Item No. 4, page 2



Item No. 4, page 3



Item No. 4, page 4



Item No. 4, page 5



Item No. 4, page 6



Item No. 4, page 7



Item No. 4, page 8



Item No. 4, page 9



Item No. 4, page 10



Item No. 4, page 11



Item No. 4, page 12



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 5 

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding 
Resolution No. 2511:  Approval of the updates to the Tenant 
Selection Plans for PBRA Family properties, PBRA and 
LIHTC Family properties, and PBRA and LIHTC Elderly / 
Disabled properties 



 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 

BOARD ACTION REQUEST 

RESOLUTION NO. 2511 

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
MEETING DATE: July 13, 2017 
  
STAFF CONTACT: Pilar Sanchez, Vice President of HCD 
  
ITEM TITLE: Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 2511: Approval of the revisions to 

the Tenant Selection Plans for Family PBRA properties, Family PBRA & 
LIHTC properties and Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC properties. 

  
BUDGETED ITEM: NA 
  
TOTAL COST: Not Applicable 
 

ACTION 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 2511: Approval of the revisions to the Tenant Selection Plans for 
Family PBRA properties, Family PBRA & LIHTC properties and Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC 
properties. 
 

SUMMARY 
 
General Information: The proposed changes to the Tenant Selection Plans fit into three categories: 
1.  Regular Updates:  Annually, HUD and the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
(TDHCA) update the income and rent limits which are required to be in the plans. 
2.  Required Updates:  HUD changed the definition of an eligible student to include "vulnerable youth".  
HUD also updated the Violoence Against Women Act (VAWA) requirements.  TDHCA has required 
language regarding fair housing and time limits for responding to denials.   
3.  HACA Updates:  HACA provided language clarification on criminal background checks (no policy 
change) and unit transfers at Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties.  HACA updated the 
timeline for informal hearing decisions (change from 15 days to 5 days) to match Project Based Rental 
Assistance (PBRA) requirements.  HACA updated the application process with the new application 
website address and a policy change regarding how many opportunities for eligibility interviews an 
applicant can receive.  This change was recommended by staff since interviews are now individually 
scheduled to fit the best time for the applicant family. 
 
Organizational Structure: The Tenant Selection Plans are the primary policy documents that outline the 
admissions process and eligibility requirements for the PBRA and LIHTC programs.  HACA is 
committed to ensuring that our policies meet HUD, IRS and TDHCA requirements.   
 
When creating and providing these policy documents,  HACA is also committed to clear communication 
with applicants, residents and staff.  These documents are intended to provide clear direction to staff as 
well as consistent treatment of all applicants and residents. 
 
Public Comment: There is no public comment requirement for these plans.  However, HACA did reach 
out to Texas Riogrande Legal Aid, the Austin Tenants' Council and the Citywide Advisory Board for their 

Item No. 5, page 1



 

 

comments on these revisions, with a deadline of June 30, 2017.  HACA received comments from Texas 
Riogrande Legal Aid on July 3, 2017.  Legal Aid's comments and HACA's response to the comments are 
attached.  
 

EXHIBITS 
 

Exhibit 1: Summary of Revisions to the Tenant Selection Plans 
Exhibit 2: Tenant Selection Plan for Family PBRA Properties (Select Pages with Changes) 
Exhibit 3: Tenant Selection Plan for Family PBRA & LIHTC Properties (Select Pages with Changes) 
Exhibit 4: Tenant Selection Plan for Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Properties (Select Pages with        
Changes 
Exhibit 5: Comments from Texas Riogrande Legal Aid with HACA's response. 
 
 

Item No. 5, page 2



 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2511 

Approval of the revisions to the Tenant Selection Plans for Family PBRA properties, Family PBRA 
& LIHTC properties and Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC properties. 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) is required by federal regulation to 
adopt a written Tenant Selection Plan for all Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) and Low Income 
Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties and the Board of Commissioners adopted these written plans on 
August 24, 2016 ; and  
 
WHEREAS, both the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Texas 
Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) have provided updates to policy requirements; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, although HACA is not required to seek public comment for updates to the Tenant Selection 
Plan, HACA did request comment from Texas Riogrande Legal Aid, the Austin Tenants' Council and the 
Citywide Advisory Board with a comment deadline of June 30, 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, HACA seeks to formally revise the Tenant Selection Plans for each property type (Family 
PBRA, Family PBRA & LIHTC, and Elderly/Disabled PBRA &LIHTC);   
 
Now, therefore, it is hereby 
 
RESOLVED, that the Housing Authority of the City of Austin Board of Commissioners approves and 
adopts the revisions to the Tenant Selection Plans for Family PBRA properties, Family PBRA & LIHTC 
properties, and Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC properties. 
 
 
 
   

Michael G. Gerber, Secretary  Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
 
 

Item No. 5, page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 1 

Item No. 5, page 4



Section
Family 
PBRA

Family 
PBRA & 
LIHTC

Elderly 
PBRA & 
LIHTC

Summary of Proposed Change

Fair Housing 
Policies

Pages   
7-8

Pages   
7-8

Pages   
7-8

Change: Adds language indicating that HACA will comply with all 
Federal and State laws regarding Fair Housing, Fair Credit 
Reporting, Reasonable Accommodations and Assistance Animals.  
Added language does not change, remove or add any policy.                                                                                             
Rationale:   This is required language for compliance with TDHCA 
guidelines.  It was added to all TSPs for the sake of consistency in 
policy.

Eligibility 
Requirements

Pages   
9-11

Pages   
9-12

Pages   
9-13

Change:  Adds a section header to introduce eligibility, updated 
the income limits to reflect 2017 numbers, adds clarifying 
language to the occupancy standards and adds a section on rent 
limits to the LIHTC properties to reflect the maximum rent a 
family could pay.                                                                                                                
Rationale:  HUD and TDHCA updated the income and rent limits 
for 2017.  Also, the added language clarifies that our occupancy 
standards are in compliance with TDHCA.  This does not change, 
remove or add any policy.

Eligibility 
Requirements

Pages 
14-16

Pages 
15-17

Pages 
16-18

Change:  Adds language regarding the eligibility of students 
enrolled at institutions for higher learning.  This language adds 
HUDs definition of vulnerable youth as a category of eligible 
participants.                                                                                                
Rationale:  This change is required by HUD.  This is a policy 
change in that it adds another category of eligible students.

Procedures for 
Taking Pre-
Applications

Pages 
17-20

Pages 
18-21

Pages 
19-22

Change:  Changes the website address to reflect the current pre-
application website, adds 7-day timeframe for notifying an 
applicant that they are preliminarily ineligible, reduces the 
number of opportunities for interview invitations from 3 to 2, 
adds 15-day timeframe for families to change their bedroom size 
choice.                                                                                                  
Rationale:  These changes will direct applicants to the correct 
website, meet HUD and TDHCA guidelines to provide timely 
response to an ineligible application,  and gives opportunity for 
families to change their mind withing a reasonable amount of 
time about their bedroom size choice.  Since we now schedule 
individually, staff feels that allowing for one missed interview is 
sufficient.  Therefore, the invitations are reduced from 3 to 2.  
These changes do reflect policy changes.

Summary of Proposed Changes to the Tenant Selection Plans (TSP)

Item No. 5, page 5



Section
Family 
PBRA

Family 
PBRA & 
LIHTC

Elderly 
PBRA & 
LIHTC

Summary of Proposed Change

Opening and 
Closing Waiting 
List

Page    
25

Page     
25

Page     
27

Change:  Allows a family that is a resident at another HACA 
property and is eligible for VAWA protections to be placed on a 
waiting list, even if the waiting list is closed.                                                                                             
Rationale:   The change allows HACA to provide the maximum 
number of options to a current resident family in need of moving 
due to being eligible for VAWA protections.  This is in conformity 
with HACA's VAWA Emergency Transfer Plan. This is a policy 
change.

Screening for 
Drug Abuse and 
Other Criminal 
Activity

Pages   
27-30

Pages   
27-31

Pages    
29-33

Change:  Updates the language to be consistent throughout the 
TSP that families evicted from federally assisted housing within 
the last 5 years for drug-related criminal activity will be denied.                                                                                   
Rationale:  This change doe not reflect a change in policy, rather 
it clarifies HACA's existing policy.

Rejecting 
Ineligible or 
Unqualified 
Applicants

Page     
32

Page       
33

Page      
35

Change:  Adds a 7-day timeframe for providing notice of rejection.                                                                       
Rationale:  This change meets HUD and TDHCA's guidelins to 
provide a timely response to applicants and is consistent with 
other rejection notice timeframes.  This is an addition to the policy 
which reflects current practice.

Informal 
Hearing 
Decisions

Page     
34-35

Page      
35

Page      
35-37

Change:  Changes the timeframe for an informal hearing decision 
written response from 15 days to 5 days.  Adds language about 
how the hearing officer can suspend the hearing to wait for more 
documentation from the applicant.                                                                                                                                
Rationale:   The 5-day timeframe is required for compliance with 
HUD PBRA regulations.  The additional language grants applicants 
time to provide a full response to their denial, while keeping HACA 
compliant with HUD regulations.  This is a change in policy.   

Unit Transfers 
During the Initial 
Occupancy 
Period of a 
LIHTC Property

NA
Page    
44

Page    
46

Change:  Adds a section identifying that until we select the multi-
building project option on the IRS form 8609, all unit transfers will 
be treated as new move ins for tax credit purposes.                                                                              
Rationale:  This change helps explain why unit transfers at a PBRA 
and LIHTC property are treated as a transfer for PBRA but a new 
move in for LIHTC.  This is an addition to the policy that reflects 
what is required according to TDHCA.

Appendix B:  
VAWA Policy

Pages 
48-54

Pages 
51-57

Pages 
53-56

Change:  Updates who is eligible for VAWA protections,  adds 
information about the opportunity to request an emergency 
transfer and adds consequences to abusers and residents wbo 
bring abusers onto the property.                                                                                               
Rationale:  This change reflects updates that HUD has made final 
after Congress's 2013 VAWA Reauthorization Act.

Item No. 5, page 6



Exhibit 2 

Item No. 5, page 7



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 1  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

 
 

 

Pathways at  
A Subsidiary of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin 

 
 
 

Tenant Selection Plan 
 

Project Based Rental Assistance 
for a Family Site 

 
 
 

  

Item No. 5, page 8



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 7  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS 
The owner/agent may not admit an applicant with a voucher to a unit with Project Based Rental Assistance 
unless the applicant agrees to surrender the voucher assistance prior to occupancy.  This will be verified with the 
former housing provider. 
 
Please note that housing assistance provided through HUD’s multi-family housing program is not the same as 
the housing assistance provided through the voucher program.  If a family moves out, the housing subsidy will 
not move with the family as it does with a voucher.   

ASSISTED LIVING 
This is not an assisted living property.  The owner/agent and property staff do not provide, nor have the 
authority to provide, any personal care or personal supervision services.  All care and supervision services must 
be provided by the resident or aides supervised by the resident or the resident’s representative(s).   The 
owner/agent and property staff do not provide assistance with personal activities or daily living.   
 
FAIR HOUSING POLICIES 

FAIR HOUSING 
The owner/agent will not discriminate in any of the following ways: 

• Deny to any household the opportunity to apply for housing, nor deny to any eligible applicant the   
opportunity to lease housing suitable to its needs, 

• Provide housing which is different than that provided others,  
• Subject a person to segregation or disparate treatment, 
• Restrict a person’s access to any benefit enjoyed by others in connection with the housing program,  
• Treat a person differently in determining eligibility or other requirements for admission, 
• Deny a person access to the same level or services, or 
• Deny a person the opportunity to participate in a planning or advisory group which is an integral part of 

the housing program. 
 

The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing and housing related transactions based on race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, disability, and familial status.  In addition, the city of Austin has added Fair Housing 
protections based on creed, student status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and age. 
 
This development will comply with state and federal fair housing and antidiscrimination laws; including, but not 
limited to, consideration of reasonable accommodations requested to complete the application process.  
Applicants can request a copy of the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy. 
 
Screening criteria will be applied in a manner consistent with all applicable laws, including the Texas and Fedreal 
Fair Housing Acts and the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act. 
 
Specific animal, breed, number, weight restrictions, pet rules and pet deposits will not apply to households 
having a qualified service / assistance animal(s).  For more information, applicants can request a copy of the 
owner/agent’s Assistance Animals Policy. 
 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
The owner/agent complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance from HUD. 

Item No. 5, page 9



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 8  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
The owner/agent complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which prohibits discrimination, 
based on the presence of a disability in all programs or activities operated by recipients of federal financial 
assistance.   
 
Although Section 504 protections often overlap with the disability discrimination prohibitions included in the 
Fair Housing Act, Section 504 differs in that it imposes broader affirmative obligations to make their programs, 
as a whole, accessible to persons with disabilities.   

• Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements 
The owner/agent has designated a person to address questions or requests regarding the specific needs 
of residents and applicants with disabilities.  This person is referred to as the Section 504 Coordinator.   
Name of Section 504 Coordinator: Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Address:   1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Number:  (512) 477-4488 

TDD/TTY Number: 1-800-735-2989   Or  711 Voice Relay  

• Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification 
In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the owner/agent will 
make reasonable accommodations or modifications for individuals with disabilities (applicants or 
residents) unless these modifications would change the fundamental nature of the housing program or 
result in undue financial and administrative burden.  Please see HACA’s Reasonable Accommodation 
Policy for additional information. 
 
The owner / agent has a Reasonable Accommodations Policy which explains the eligibility and the 
process for making a request.  The owner/agent will provide an individual with a copy of the Reasonable 
Accommodation Policy upon request.   
 

PRIVACY POLICY 
It is the policy of the owner/agent to guard the privacy of individuals conferred by the Federal Privacy Act of 
1974 and to ensure the protection of such individuals' records maintained by the owner/agent.   
 
Neither the property owner/agent nor its agents shall disclose any personal information contained in its records 
to any person or agency, other than HUD, its Contract Administrators or other federal/state entity or investor 
auditing entities, unless the individual about whom information is requested gives written consent to such 
disclosure.  Such consent may be provided in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, 
when there is the presence of a disability. 
 
This Privacy Policy in no way limits the owner/agent's ability to collect such information to determine eligibility, 
compute rent, or determine an applicant's suitability for tenancy.   

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 
The owner/agent understands that, regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain 
protections provided through the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013).   
 

Item No. 5, page 10



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 9  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in the VAWA 2013, he/she should 
contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse 
covered under the VAWA 2013.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA 2013, the 
applicant/applicant must specify that he/she wishes to exercise these protections.  The owner/agent will 
provide an individual with a copy of the VAWA Policy upon request. 

THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE 
The owner/agent ensures that HUD's core housing programs are open to all eligible persons regardless of sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in accordance with The Equal Access Rule. 
 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
The owner / agent is required to determine whether applicants are eligible to occupy the subsidized 
property and receive housing assistance.  Eligibility is divided into property eligibility and program 
eligibility.  Eligibility is determined based on the applicable Federal and State regulations that govern 
the property and programs.   
 
For HUD programs, eligibility is determined at move-in or initial certification.  Thereafter, eligibility is 
only reviewed for student status or to determine if a remaining family member is eligible to remain. 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION 

• Household/Resident Type 
This multi-family Project Based Rental Assistance property is designed to provide housing to families 
who meet the eligibility and screening requirements.  A family includes, but is not limited to: 
 

o A family with or without children (the temporary absence of a child from the home due to 
placement in foster care shall not be considered in determining family composition and family 
size); 

o An elderly family; 
o A near elderly family; 
o A disabled family; 
o A displaced family; 
o The remaining member of a tenant family; and 
o A single person who is not an elderly or displaced person, or a person with disabilities, or the 

remaining member of a tenant family. 

• Income Limits 
Income limits vary by household size.  The owner/agent will provide applicants a copy of the income 
limits for the property area upon request.  In addition, applicants can review the income limits by 
accessing the following web site.  http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html.  HUD requires that property 
managers incorporate the most recently published income limits when determining eligibility.   
 
For this property, qualified applicant households must have a gross household income that is at or 
below the following income limit requirement: 

 
Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

 Project Based Rental Assistance 
 

  Low – 80% of median income   

Item No. 5, page 11

http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html


Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 10  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

  

• Occupancy Standards 
Occupancy standards serve to prevent the over-utilization or under-utilization of units that can result in 
an inefficient use of housing funding.  Occupancy standards also ensure that residents are treated fairly 
and consistently and receive adequate housing space.   
 
Below, please find this property’s occupancy standards description:   

 
Number of Bedrooms Min. # Household Members Max.  # Household Members 

0 1 1 
1 1 2 
2 2 4 
3 3 6 
4 4 8 
5 5 10 

 
o Generally, there is a maximum of two people per bedroom.  HACA does not determine who shares a 

bedroom. 
o The owner/agent allows for occupancy of fewer than 2 persons (over the age of 6) per bedroom for 

the following reasons: 
o The small size of the bedrooms and units;  
o To allow the family to determine what is best for their situation in accordance with best 

practices for Fair Housing. 
o The family is given the choice of which bedroom size is appropriate for their family, as long as the 

number of family members is within the range listed in the chart above.  
o Once the family has selected an eligible bedroom size they will be placed on the waiting list for that 

bedroom size.  Changes to the bedroom size cannot be made unless a qualifying event occurs.  
Qualifying events include: 
 

o Changes in the family composition (removing or adding household members) which result in 
the family no longer being eligible for the chosen bedroom size. 

o Changes in the ages of children, resulting in two children of the opposite sex, with one at 
least seven (7) years of age.  These children will not be required to share a bedroom. 

o Changes in the family composition adding persons of different generations (grandparent, 
grandchild, parent, etc).  These family members will not be required to share a bedroom. 

o Need for a different bedroom size as a reasonable accommodation for a disability. 
 

o Authorized live-in aides will be allocated a separate bedroom. No additional bedrooms will be 
provided for the live-in aide’s family. 

o Anticipated children will be included.  Anticipated children include: 
 

o Children expected to be born to a pregnant woman; 
o Children in process of being adopted by an adult family member; 
o Children whose custody is being obtained by an adult family member; 

AMFI % 
Number of Household Members 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
80 $43,600 $49,800 $56,050 $62,250 $67,250 $72,250 $77,200 $82,200 

Formatted: (none)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted

Item No. 5, page 12



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 11  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

o Foster children who will reside in the unit; 
o Children who are temporarily in a foster home who will return to the family; and 
o Children in joint custody arrangements who are present in the household 50% or more of 

the time. 
 

o A household that contains a family member (not the head of household or spouse) who is enrolled 
as a full-time student at an institution of higher learning and who is on the lease will be counted for 
the purposes of establishing occupancy standards for unit size if: 

 
o the family member is enrolled and actively attending a two-year or four-year college or 

university; and 
o the family member resides in the unit during school breaks and holidays. 

 
Any household placed in a unit size different from that defined in these Occupancy Standards shall agree 
to transfer to an appropriate size unit at the same property when one becomes available.  Once an 
appropriate size unit is offered to the family, they have 30 days to complete the transfer or lose their 
subsidy. 

• Rent Limits 
The following are the contract rents for this property: 

 
Contract 
Rents 

 

Project Based Rental Assistance Program 

 

Number of Bedrooms 

0 1 2 3 4 5     

 
$817  $876  $1,051  $1,214  $1,354  $1,494      

 
 

For the PBRA program, residents pay 30% of their adjusted income for rent, even if this amount  
exceeds the contract rent.  This amount is adjusted downward by a utility allowance for any 
utilites that are paid by the resident directly to the utility provider.   
 
If assistance is terminated, but the resident is allowed to remain living on the property, the  
resident will pay the contract rent.   

• Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit  
When an applicant requests an accessible unit or a unit preference, such as a first floor unit, the 
owner/agent will conduct inquiries to: 
 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified for the unit, which is only available to persons with a disability 

or to persons with a particular type of disability. 
o Verify that the applicant needs the features of the unit as an accommodation to his or her disability. 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified to receive a priority on the waiting list available to persons with 

a disability or to persons with a particular type of disability. 
 
Verification of this information can be provided by any person who has reasonable knowledge of the 
family’s need for this accommodation. 

Item No. 5, page 13



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 14  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

Applicants who claim eligible immigration status must provide documentation to support that status.  
See appendix A for more information. 
Applicants must be able to provide proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
Citizenship eligibility must be reviewed after move-in if eligibility status can change.  If any household 
member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, assistance 
and/or tenancy may be denied, terminated or prorated as appropriate.  

• Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria 
A household is eligible for assistance only if the unit will be the household’s only residence.  The 
owner/agent will not knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-
assisted unit.   
 
Applicants must disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance.  Residents can only 
receive subsidy for one unit/residence at a time.  This prohibition does not prevent a person who is 
currently receiving assistance from applying for an assisted unit in another property.   
 
If, for any reason, an applicant moves in to this property before moving out of another subsidized unit, 
the new resident will be required to pay market rent until the move out from the previous property is 
complete and the resident is eligible to receive HUD subsidy for this property.  Assistance in the new 
unit will begin, if the household is still eligible, the day after assistance ends for the previous unit.   
 
There is an exception to this rule.  Children in joint custody arrangements can receive HUD housing 
assistance in two units when both parent/guardian families receive HUD housing assistance.  However, 
only one household may use the $480 dependent deduction to determine adjusted income.  In these 
cases, additional verification is required.  The owner/agent will request: 

 
o Verification of the custody/guardianship/living arrangement - Please see Appendix D for additional 

information 
o Verification of the use of the $480 deduction.  The owner/agent will verify use of the $480 

dependent deduction with the other owner/agent if : 
 The child will live in the unit at least 50% of the time and  
 The parent wishes to claim the $480 deduction, and  
 Both families are receiving HUD housing assistance 

 
There is second exception to this.  If a member of an existing household leaves that household, to 
establish their own unit, HUD allows for a temporary overlap of subsidy (not to exceed 60 days) to allow 
for the interim recertification to go into effect for the original household. 

• Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education  
Student eligibility is determined at move-in/initial certification and at each annual certification.  Student 
eligibility may also be reviewed at interim certification if student status has changed since the last 
certification.  All adult students are required to report any change in their student status.   
 
A student who is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the 
student meets the criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall be provided to any individual who 
is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the purpose 
of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational credential; when 
the student: 

Item No. 5, page 14



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 15  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

A student who is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the 
student meets the criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall not be provided to any individual 
who: 
 
o Is living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance   
o Is individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance and has parents who are income eligible to 

receive Section 8 assistance.   
o Is a veteran of the United States military;   
o Is married;   
o Has a dependent other than a spouse (e.g. dependent child);   
o Is at least 24 years of age;   
o Is a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in section 3(b)(3)(E) of the 1937 Act and was 

receiving assistance under section 8 of the 1937 Act as of November 30, 2005;   
o Is classified as Vulnerable Youth;  A student meets HUD’s definition of a vulnerable youth when: 

a. The individual is an orphan, in foster care, or a ward of the court or was an orphan, in foster 
care, or a ward of the court at any time when the individual was 13 years of age of older;  

b. The individual is, or was immediately prior to attaining the age of majority, an emancipated 
minor or in legal guardianship as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in the 
individual’s State of legal residence;  

c. The individual has been verified during the school year in which the application is submitted as 
either an unaccompanied youth who is a homeless child or youth (as such terms are defined in 
section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act) (42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq.), or as 
unaccompanied, at risk of homelessness, and self-supporting, by 

1. A local educational agency homeless liaison, designated pursuant to the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act;  

2. The director of a program funded under the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act or a 
designee of the director;  

3. The director of a program funded under subtitle B of title IV of the McKinney-Vento 
Homeless Assistance Act (relating to emergency shelter grants) or a designee of the 
director; or  

4.  A financial aid administrator; or  
o The individual is a student for whom a financial aid administrator makes a documented 

determination of independence by reason of other unusual circumstances 
o Is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the 

purpose of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational 
credential; and 

o Is under the age of 24; and 
o Is not married; and 
o Is not a veteran of the United States Military; and 
o Does not have a dependent child; and 
o Is not a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in 3(b)(3)(E) of the United States Housing Act 

of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E)) and was not receiving section 8 assistance as of November 30, 
2005; and 

o Is not living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance; and 
o Is not individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance or has parents (the parents individually or 

jointly) who are not income eligible to receive Section 8 assistance.   
 

Item No. 5, page 15



Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 16  of 54  Effective 12/1/2016  

If a student does not meet the eligibility criteria above, but can prove independence from parents under 
HUD rules, then the student would meet HUD’s student eligibility criteria.  Please see property staff if 
you need additional information about proving independence from parents.   

  
If an ineligible student applies for or is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, 
the assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated.NOTE:  Unless the student 
can demonstrate his or her independence from parents, the student must be eligible to receive Section 8 
assistance and the parents (individually or jointly) must be eligible (income eligible) to receive Section 8 
assistance in order for the student to receive Section 8 assistance. 
 
For a student to be eligible independent of his or her parents (where the income of the parents is not 
relevant), the student must demonstrate independence from the parents.  While owner/agents may use 
additional criteria for determining the student’s independence from parents, owner/agents must use, 
and the student must meet, at a minimum all of the following criteria to be eligible for Section 8 
assistance.  The student must: 
 
o Be of legal contract age under state law; 
o Have established a household separate from parents or legal guardians for at least one year prior to 

application for occupancy, or, meet the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of an independent 
student; 

o Not be claimed as a dependent by parents or legal guardians pursuant to IRS regulations; and 
o Obtain a certification of the amount of financial assistance that will be provided by parents, signed 

by the individual providing the support.  This certification is required even if no assistance will be 
provided. 

o If an ineligible student is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, the 
assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated  

 
NOTE:  An owner/agent cannot evict or require an ineligible student to move from a unit as long as the 
student is in compliance with the terms of the lease. 
 
Any financial assistance a student receives (1) under the Higher Education Act of 1965, (2) from private 
sources, or (3) from an institution of higher education that is in excess of amounts received for tuition 
shall be considered income to that individual, except for: 
 
o A person student 24 years of age or older with dependent children as defined by HUD or  
o A personstudent living with his/her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance. 
 
The definition of tuition is consistent with the definition provided by the Department of Education and 
includes all tuition plus mandatory course-related fees associated with being enrolled at that institution 
of higher education.  This does not include the cost of books. 

• Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students   
Noncitizen students and their noncitizen families may not receive assistance.  Noncitizen students are 
not eligible for continuation of assistance or temporary deferral of termination of assistance.  A 
noncitizen student is defined as an individual who is as follows: 
 
o A resident of another country to which the individual intends to return; 
o A bona fide student pursuing a course of study in the United States; and 

Item No. 5, page 16



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 17  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

o A person admitted to the United States solely for the purpose of pursuing a course of study as 
indicated on an F-1 or M-1 student visa.  

 
This prohibition applies to the noncitizen student’s noncitizen spouse and noncitizen children. However, 
spouses and children who are U.S. citizens may receive assistance.  For example, a family that includes a 
noncitizen student married to a U.S. citizen is a mixed family. 
 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS 
Applications for housing at this property are only received online or at the owner/agent’s office location.  
Applications are not received at the property management office.   
 
It is the owner/agent's policy to accept and process applications in accordance with HUD guidance.  The 
owner/agent will make a reasonable accommodation to assist in the application process if the applicant or any 
member of the applicant household is disabled.   

PRE-APPLICATIONS 
Applicants will first complete a pre-application to have their name placed on the waiting list for housing at 
[name of property].  Pre-applications can be submitted on the internet at 
www.austin.apply4housing.comwww.hacaapply.org from any device with internet access (including 
smartphone, tablet, desktop or other device).  For a list of local places with free internet access please contact 
HACA.  The owner/agent will also accept the application in an equally effective format, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Please contact HACA to request that accommodation.    
 
The entire pre-application must be completed in full and submitted before the applicant will be placed on the 
waiting list.  Confirmation of successful submission will be provided by the online application portal if all 
requirements are met.    
 
Due to long waiting lists and depending on the preferences for which an applicant family may qualify, the time 
spent on the waiting list may be anywhere from several months to several years.  While waiting on the waiting 
list, applicants may check the status of their application by creating an account at 
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicantswww.myhaca.org.  In this applicant portal, applicants can update their 
contact information, report changes to their application and check the status of their application.  It is the 
applicant’s responsibility to keep all contact information current. 

• Incomplete Pre-Applications 
Electronic submissions of pre-applications cannot be submitted if they are incomplete.  For pre-
applications accepted by an alternate means, if the pre-application is not complete, the owner/agent 
will attempt to contact the applicant to obtain missing information.  The applicant will have ten (10) 
business days to respond and provide missing information.  If the applicant fails to provide required 
information within the ten (10) day period, the owner/agent will return the application. 

• Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility 
Information needed to determine applicant eligibility shall be obtained, verified, and the determination 
of applicant eligibility performed, in accordance with HUD and property eligibility requirements.   
Upon receipt of the completed pre-application, the owner/agent will make a preliminary eligibility 
determination before adding a household to the waiting list or initiating final eligibility tasks.   
The owner/agent will review the pre-application to ensure that there are no obvious factors that would 
make the applicant ineligible.  Obvious factors include, but are not limited to: 

Item No. 5, page 17

http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/
http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants


Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 18  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
• Owing a debt to the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (any property or program) that is still 

within the 4 year statute of limitations; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 5 years for drug 

related criminal activity; 
• Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 2 years for any 

reason other than drug related activity;   
• The head of household on the application is currently a head of household living at this property;  
• Having been denied admission to this program within the past 12 months for any reason at any 

property owned and administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin.  
• Having rejected a housing offer for a unit of the same size at the same property within the last 12 

months.   
 

If an applicant is preliminarily ineligible, within seven (7) days the owner/agent will send a notice to the 
applicant indicating that they are not eligible, including the reason(s) why they were determined 
ineligible and stating the family’s rights to appeal the decision.  This action will be completed in 
agreement with the owner/agent’s Grievance and Appeals Policy which is available to the applicant 
upon request. 
 
If a preliminary eligibility review indicates that a household is preliminarily eligible for tenancy, but units 
of appropriate size are not available, the owner/agent will place the household on the waiting list for 
the property and notify the household when their name comes to the top of the waiting list.   
 
If an applicant is otherwise eligible but no appropriate unit size exists in the property, the owner/agent 
will reject the pre-application.    
 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant family if their pre-application is rejected for any reason. 

APPLICATIONS 
When the applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will receive an invitation by mail to come to 
an eligibility interview.   
 

• Applicant families can receive up to 3 2 invitations to attend an eligibility interview. 
• If a family does not attend the scheduled appointment, a notice will be sent to the family and their 

name will be withdrawn from the waiting list.  If the family responds within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the notice and requests to be rescheduled, they will be placed back on the waiting list with their same 
date and time.   

• Once the family misses their third scheduled appointment, they are no longer eligible to be placed back 
on the waiting list.  The family will be required to submit a new application and start the process from 
the beginning. 
 

During the eligibility interview process, the applicant family will complete a full application.  All documents in 
the Application Package must be completed in full, signed and dated in order to be accepted.  All adult 
applicants must complete the application package as instructed.      
 
Upon request, the owner/agent/agent will provide interested parties with a copy of the application package.   

Item No. 5, page 18



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 19  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

The person who is indicated as the Head-of-Household (HOH) must execute and sign all documents that are 
included in the application package.  Before completing or executing any forms, additional copies should be 
made for all adult household members and in some cases for minors who will live in the unit.   
 
The owner/agent will require applicants to provide several documents as verification and proof of eligibility for 
housing.  These will include: 
 

• A government issued photo ID - used for verifying the identity of all applicants.  A birth certificate or 
other government issued document which includes the applicant’s name and date of birth – used to 
verify the age of all applicant family members. 

• Proof of citizenship – which may include a US birth certificate, US passport or other government issued 
documents demonstrating citizenship. 

• Proof of immigration status (if applicable) -  which may include a permanent resident card, employment 
authorization card, I-94 visa or other government issued document indicating valid immigration status. 

• A Social Security card or any other government issued document including the name and full SSN  
• Verification of all sources of income, including (but not limited to) check stubs for employment, SS / SSI 

award letters, VA Pension award letters, TANF award letter, proof of child support and verification of 
asset income.   

• All verified documents must be dated within 60 days of the date of receipt. 

FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
Once the applicant family completes the eligibility interview, all eligibility criteria will be reviewed before a final 
eligibility determination is made.  Being eligible, however, does not guarantee that the application will be 
approved.  All adult applicants (and if appropriate minors) will be subject to the certain screening based on 
landlord/rental history, credit history and criminal history.  If the screening process determines that the family 
meets HUD’s and the owner/agent’s standards for admission, the family is found eligible. 
 
LIVE-IN AIDES 
Please contact the HACA central office Admissions Department if a live-in aide will be moving in to the unit.  If 
the family plans to include a live-in aide, the live-in aide is not required to complete the same application forms.  
Live-in aides must complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire and participate in screening and other Owner/Agent 
verifications that are required.   
 
The live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide.  The live-in aide has no rights to the unit as a 
remaining family member and must agree to relinquish possession of the unit within a reasonable time if the 
resident is absent for an extended period of time or if the resident leaves for any reason.  The live-in aide will be 
required to sign an acknowledgement the live-in aide has no right of residency or occupancy if the resident is 
absent or if the resident moves out for any reason including death.   
 
WAITING LISTS  
To ensure that applicants are appropriately and fairly selected for the next available unit, it is essential for the 
owner/agent to maintain waiting lists.  The owner/agent will place the applicant household on the waiting list 
after preliminary eligibility determination is complete. 
 
If applicants are eligible for more than one bedroom size, the applicant will have the option of choosing which 
bedroom size is appropriate for their family.  Applicants will make this choicespecify a desired unit size  when 

Item No. 5, page 19



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 20  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

completing the pre-application. The applicant will be placed on the waiting list for the indicated unit sizes/types 
as long as:  

• The applicant household meets the Occupancy Standards described in this plan, and  
• The waiting list for the unit size is open   

 
Applicants will be given 15 days to change their bedroom size choice.  Once the 15 days have passedOnce 
applicants have selected a bedroom size, they will not be allowed to change that selection unless a qualifying 
event has occurred.  Please see the list of qualifying events in the Occupancy Standards section of this plan. 
 
The applicant Head-of-Household (HOH) will be contacted, based on the waiting list selection criteria, and 
offered housing for the first unit that becomes available based on the selection guidelines described in this plan. 

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS   
It is the policy of the owner/agent to administer its waiting list as required by HUD handbooks and regulations.  
The owner/agent will update the waiting list by removing the names of applicants who are no longer interested 
in or no longer qualify for the PBRA program. 
 
On a regular basis, as determined by the owner/agent considering the length of the waiting list, the 
owner/agent will contact each applicant household by mail, using the address provided on the pre-application.  
Applicants are responsible for updating their application with any changes in address.  The Head-of-Household 
(HOH) will be the only person contacted unless otherwise requested.  
  
If this letter is unable to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, the application will be rejected and the 
household will be removed from the waiting list.   
 
If the Head-of-Household (HOH) fails to respond to the owner/agent inquiries regarding the desire to remain on 
the waiting list, the application will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
In addition, an adult member of the applicant household must contact the Admissions Department  if household 
information changes (i.e. number of household members, number of future household members, criminal 
history, income, etc.).  If the household size or composition changes, the owner/agent will: 
 

• Update the waiting list information and  
• Decide whether the household needs the same or a different unit   

 
If, as a result of the household composition change, it is determined that the household will be on the waiting 
list for a different unit than originally indicated, the household will maintain their place on the waiting list for the 
new unit.  If the waiting list is currently closed for the appropriate unit size, the application will be rejected and 
the household will be removed from the waiting list.  If there are no units of the appropriate size on the 
property, the household will be rejected and will be removed from the waiting list.   

REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
The owner/agent will remove an applicant's name from the waiting list when if any of the following apply: 
   

• Applicant requests that the household name be removed  
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and no appropriate size/type 

unit exists in the property 

Item No. 5, page 20



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 25  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

Note:  There is one exception to this.  If a resident at this property or any other property owned by the owner 
(The Housing Authority of the City of Austin) is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and 
/ or stalking, as part of the VAWA protections they can request to be placed onto the waiting list for this 
property or any property owned by the owner, even if the list is closed.  The owner/agent will work with the 
family to determine which property(ies) would best meet the family’s need for protection.  These applications 
will be received and processed according to the criteria outlined in this plan. 
 
During the period when the waiting list is closed, the owner/agent will not maintain a list of individuals who 
wish to be notified when the waiting list is reopened.   
 
VERIFICATION 
The owner/agent shall obtain verifications in compliance with requirements set forth by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  After the preliminary eligibility determination, no decision to approve an 
application shall be made until information provided on the application form and during subsequent interviews 
has been collected and any necessary follow-up interviews have been performed.  All information relative to the 
following items must be verified as described in these procedures. 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED  
Information to be verified includes, but is not limited to: 
 

•   Eligibility for Admission, such as 
o Income 
o Assets And Asset Income 
o Identification 
o Household Composition 

o Social Security Numbers  
o Citizenship And/or Legal Status 
o Student Status 
o Current HUD Assistance 

 
• Allowances, such as 

o Age 
o Disability 
o Full Time Student Status 
o Child Care Expenses 

o Disability Assistance Expenses 
o Medical Expenses (For Elderly/Disabled 

Households Only) 

 
• Preferences 

o HACA VAWA status 
o Involuntarily Displaced status 

o Disability status 

 
• Compliance with Resident Screening Guidelines, such as 

o Criminal History 
o Credit History  

o Rental/Residence History 

 
• The Need for an Accessible Unit 

 
The owner/agent will be the final judge of the credibility of any verification submitted by an applicant.  If the 
owner/agent questions the validity of a document or the validity of information provided, it will be reviewed by 
management staff for a ruling regarding acceptability.   

Item No. 5, page 21



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 27  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
 HUD has established standards that prohibit admission of: 
 

• Any household in which any member was evicted in the last three years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity   

• Any household in which any member was engaged in the production of methamphetamine. 
• *A household in which any member is currently engaged in illegal use of drugs or for which the  

owner/agent has reasonable cause to believe that a member’s illegal use or pattern of illegal use of a 
drug may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment of the property by other 
residents 

• Any household member who is subject to any state lifetime sex offender registration requirement  
• Any household member if there is reasonable cause to believe that member’s behavior, from abuse or 

pattern of abuse of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment by 
other residents.  The screening standards must be based on behavior, not the condition of alcoholism or 
alcohol abuse 

 
*Currently engaged in” is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous six months.   

 
In addition to HUD requirements, the owner/agent has established a policy to reject all applications where the 
applicant or any household member has engaged in criminal activity as described in this document below.  The 
owner/agent will reject applications if any household member’s criminal history includes any of the following: 
 

o Any household in which any member was evicted in the last five years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity 

o Sex Offender Registration:  Applicant, or any member of the applicant family, is or ever has been subject 
to registration under a state sex offender registration program 

o Record of any conviction or adjudication, other than acquittal, of the following felonies by any 
household member, regardless of when it happened:  
o Capital Murder 
o Murder / Manslaughter 
o Arson 
o Kidnapping 
o Child Molestation 
o Treason 

o Rape or Crimes of a Sexual Nature 
o Incest  
o Crimes involving explosives 
o Crimes involving terrorism 
o Gross Lewdness

o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 
activities, within the past four years, the family will be denied admission:  
o Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution or use of 

a drug or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use the drug.   
o Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the 

use, attempted use or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be 
reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage.  

o Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety or welfare of other tenants.  
o Illegal possession/discharge/display/carrying of firearm or illegal weapon/ deadly weapon.  
o Assault, aggravated assault, assault by threat, stalking.  
o Physical violence to persons or property, or criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 

attempted use or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 
o Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of HACA staff, contractors, subcontractors or 

agents. 

Item No. 5, page 22



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 28  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

o Three or more incidences or convictions of alcohol-related criminal activity, including Driving under 
the Influence and Public Intoxication.  

o Burglary of a Habitation.  
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past three years, the family will be denied admission:  
 

o A pattern of abuse of alcohol, including, but not limited to, public intoxication and 
driving while intoxicated.  

o  A pattern of fraud committed against a governmental entity.  
o A pattern of theft or fraud.  
o A pattern of organized criminal activity.  
o A pattern of prostitution.  

 
A pattern (for the purposes listed above) consists of three or more incidences, with a minimum of one incident 
occurring within the past three years.   
 
The owner/agent will not deny an application solely on the basis of an arrest.  If the owner/agent receives arrest 
information which may be for a disqualifying activity, the owner/agent may request additional information.   
Additional information that may be considered, if available, include the following: 

• The police report associated with the arrest which provides the reported circumstances of the arrest. 
• Any statements made by witnesses or the applicant not included in the police report 
• Whether criminal charges were filed 
• Whether, if filed, criminal charges were abandoned, dismissed, not prosecuted, or ultimately resulted in 

an acquittal 
• Any other evidence relevant to determining whether or not the applicant engaged in the disqualifying 

activity 

Evidence of criminal conduct will be considered if it indicates a demonstrable risk to safety and/or property. 
 
If a resident or applicant has requested VAWA protections and such protections have been justified based on 
owner/agent investigation, the abuser/perpetrator will not be approved to live on the property. 
  
If the owner/agent is unable to complete required criminal or sexual offender screening, the application will be 
rejected.  If the owner/agent determines that a sex offender is part of the household, the owner/agent will 
allow the household to remove the sex offender from the application.  Removal must be documented using the 
change of address receipt from the Texas Department of Sex Offender Registration. 
 
The household will have five (5) business days to provide verification that the household member has alternative 
housing or that the household member has applied for alternative housing.  Failure to provide such 
documentation will result in rejection of the application for all household members. 
 
The owner/agent reserves the right to monitor household composition after move-in.  The owner / agent will 
conduct quarterly reviews matching residents against the registered sex offender database.  If the owner/agent 
discovers that a sex offender has moved in to the unit, assistance will be terminated and the household will be 
evicted in accordance with HUD requirements.  Any assistance paid-in-error must be returned to HUD. 
 

Item No. 5, page 23



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 29  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

United States Code Title 8, subsection 1324(a)(1)(A) prohibits the harboring of illegal aliens. The provision of 
housing to illegal aliens is a fundamental component of harboring.  All applicants will be required to provide 
proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
If criminal screening indicates that the applicant has an unacceptable criminal history, the owner/agent will 
reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection.   

• Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances 
In deciding whether to exercise discretion to admit an individual who has engaged in prohibited criminal 
activity, the owner/agent will consider all of the circumstances relevant to the particular admission 
decision, including but not limited to: the seriousness of the offending action; the effect that denial of 
the entire household would have on family members not involved in the criminal activity; and the extent 
to which the applicant has taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the criminal activity.  
 
Additionally, when specifically considering whether to deny admission for illegal drug use by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such activity, the owner/agent will consider whether 
the household member is participating in or has successfully completed a drug rehabilitation program, 
or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully.   

• Criminal Screening Discoveries 
If the criminal background investigation indicates that the applicant does not meet the criminal 
screening criteria, the owner/agent will reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the 
owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection. Before rejecting the household, the owner/agent will 
compare the information provided by the applicant with the criminal history report.  If the information 
conflicts, the owner/agent will: 
 
o Notify the household of the proposed action based on the information; 
o Provide a copy of the criminal history report; 
o Provide the applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information 

obtained from any law enforcement agency; 
o Allow the household the opportunity to remove the household member. 
 
In this situation, applicants will have seven (7) calendar days to resolve the discrepancy.  If the applicant 
fails to contact the owner/agent or indicates that he/she cannot provide documentation to refute the 
criminal discovery, the owner/agent will reject the application and remove the household from the 
waiting list.  The owner/agent will notify the applicant family of the rejection in writing.  The family will 
have the opportunity to request an appeal of the denial according to the terms of the grievance policy 
within this tenant selection plan. 

 
If, after move-in, the owner/agent discovers that there was criminal history that would have resulted in 
rejection, the owner/agent will contact the resident to ascertain the accuracy of the criminal report.  If 
the resident would have been rejected had the information been know at the time of the eligibility 
determination, the owner/agent will take appropriate action including notifying HUD’s Office of the 
Inspector General of potential fraud and pursuing termination of tenancy (eviction).   

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY 
The owner/agent reviews each adult applicant’s credit history.  The owner/agent does not consider medical 
bills/expenses, credit score, or the lack of credit history, when reviewing credit history.   

Item No. 5, page 24



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 30  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
Credit history will be reviewed to determine the following: 
 

• If there is any debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD; 
• If there are any evictions that have not been reported; 
• If there are any other housing related judgments against the applicant.   

 
Applicants will be rejected in the following situations: 
 

• The family owes a debt to a federally assisted housing program which has not been repaid and the 
family has not established a repayment agreement. 

• The family has a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two years.   
 
If the applicant has no credit history, the credit screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE 
The owner/agent will also screen applicant households for the ability to establish utility services in the name of 
at least one adult family member.  All adult applicants will be required to sign the consent for Release of 
Information from Austin Energy.  Applicant households which do not have any adult members able to establish 
service with Austin Energy will be given 7 days to resolve the issue with Austin Energy.  If the household is 
unable to do so, the application will be rejected. 

SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY   
If any member of the applicant household has been evicted from any property owned or managed by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin for lease violations within the last two years, that applicant household 
will be rejected.     
 
The owner/agent will review rental history with any landlord indicated in the past two (2) years.  The 
owner/agent will also review information provided through automated databases including eviction databases.  
The application will be rejected for any of the following: 
 

• The family has been evicted in the last five years from federally assisted housing for drug-related 
criminal activity; 

• The family has been evicted from federally assisted housing within the past 2 years; 
• The family has a pattern of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property or living or housekeeping 

habits at prior residences within the past two years which may adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other tenants.  

• The family has a pattern of eviction from housing or termination from residential programs within the 
past five years (considering relevant circumstances). 

 
If the applicant fails to identify one or more residences where he/she lived in the last two (2) years, the applicant 
will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list.  An applicant who has been homeless 
can meet the requirement to identify their residence by self-certifying to their homeless status. 
 
The owner/agent will contact the prior property owner/agent (as indicated above) and inquire about the 
following information:   
 

Item No. 5, page 25



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 32  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

• Recipients of HUD assistance in another unit who are moving to establish a new household when other 
family/household members will remain in the original unit (Split household/Swap household) 

 
If the owner/agent/agent discovers a discrepancy between the information on the application and the 
information provided by EIV, the applicant will be notified and will have 5 business days to respond to the 
inquiry.   If an applicant fails to  disclose receipt of HUD assistance or rental history, the application will be 
rejected and the applicant and all members of the applicant household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
If any household member receives or attempts to receive HUD housing assistance while receiving HUD housing 
assistance on this property, the household member will be required to reimburse HUD for assistance paid in 
error. This is considered a material lease violation and may result in penalties up to and including eviction and 
pursuit of fraud charges.   
 
REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS 
 The owner/agent reserves the right to reject applicants for admission based on any of the following: 

• Any member of the household fails to respond to management inquiries for additional information 
during the application process. 

• The owner/agent is unable to contact the applicant via US Mail (letters undeliverable or returned) 
and/or by phone (number disconnected or changed) 

• Any member of the household has a record of eviction, for lease violations, from any property managed 
by the owner/agent or HACA 

• Any member of the household has a pattern of eviction, for lease violations, from any property within 
the last two years 

• There is a pattern of outstanding or overdue payments to a previous landlord 
• There is record of outstanding or overdue payments to HUD  
• The household is unable to pay the security deposit required 
• The household is unable to take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in this plan 
• The household is unable to pay the first month’s rent (TTP) 

REJECTION NOTICES   
The owner/agent will promptly notify the household (Head-of-Household (HOH), in writing, within 7 days of the 
denial of admission or assistance. A rejection letter will be sent to the Head-of-Household via First Class Mail.  
The rejection letter will include the reason(s) for the rejection. 

APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT 
Any applicant may make a request to appeal the denial in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the 
date of the rejection.  The owner/agent will accept the request in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Such requests are to be submitted to the Admissions 
Department in HACA’s central office building. If there is no appeal request within fifteen (15) days, the rejection 
will be considered final.  Reasons to appeal include: 
 

• The applicant believes the decision has been made in error 
• The applicant believes there are extenuating circumstances that should be considered 
• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a victim of abuse covered by the Violence 

Against Women Act and the applicant feels the applicant’s status as a victim contributes to the decision 
to deny 

Item No. 5, page 26



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 34  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

The owner/agent will give an applicant prompt notice of a decision denying eligibility for admission. The 
notice will contain a brief statement of the reasons for the owner/agent’s decision, and will also state 
that the applicant may request an informal hearing to dispute the decision. The notice must describe 
how to obtain the informal hearing. 
Prior to notification of denial based on information obtained from criminal or sex offender registration 
records, the family, in some cases, must be given the opportunity to dispute the information in those 
records which would be the basis of the denial.  

• Scheduling an Informal Hearing 
A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the owner/agent either in 
person, by fax, by email or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 15 calendar 
days from the date of owner/agent’s notification of denial of admission. 
Owner/agent will send written notice of the informal hearing within 30 business days of the family’s 
request. Owner/agent will make every effort to hold the hearing within 45 calendar days of receiving the 
request for the hearing. 

• Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]  
The informal hearing will be conducted by an appointed Hearing Officer who is a person other than the 
one who made the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 
The applicant will be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the decision of the 
owner/agent. 
The Hearing Officer will render a decision on whether admission should be granted or denied.  

• Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant of owner/agent’s final decision, including a brief statement of 
the reasons for the final decision. 

 
In rendering a decision, the owner/agent will evaluate the following matters: 
 

o Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice. 
o The validity of grounds for denial of admission. If the grounds for denial are not specified in the 

regulations or in the owner/agent’s policy, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned. See the Tenant Selection Plan for a detailed discussion of the grounds for applicant 
denial. 

o The validity of the evidence. The owner/agent will evaluate whether the facts presented prove 
the grounds for denial of admission. If the facts prove that there are grounds for denial, and the 
denial is required by HUD, the owner/agent will uphold the decision to deny admission. 

o If the facts prove the grounds for denial, the Hearing Officer will make the final decision to deny 
admissions. 
 

The owner/agent will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining the 
reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed to the applicant within 5 business days of the 
informal hearing.  If the applicant requests the opportunity to provide additional documentation to 
support their case, the hearing officer may adjourn the hearing in order to reconvene at a later date, 
before reaching the final decision.  If the family misses an appointment or deadline ordered by the 
hearing officer without proof of good cause, the original eligibility decision of the owner will take effect 
and another hearing will not be granted.The notice will be mailed within 15 calendar days of the 
informal hearing to the applicant and his or her representative, if any. 

Item No. 5, page 27



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 35  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
If the informal hearing decision overturns the denial, processing for admission will resume. The 
owner/agent will make every effort to resume the screening process for reinstated applicants within 20 
calendar days of the hearing decision. 
 
If the family fails to appear for their informal hearing, the denial of admission will stand and the family 
will be so notified. 
 
The applicant may request that the Hearing Officer consider a request for Reasonable Accommodations 
under the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 with respect to past conduct (see below).  
If the basis for the denial relates to family violence, the applicant may qualify for an exception under the 
Violence Against Women Amendments.  
 
The Notice of Denial letter will include information for the resident regarding who to contact for legal 
representation. 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES [24 CFR 966.7] 
Persons with disabilities may request reasonable accommodations to participate in the informal hearing process 
and the owner/agent must consider such accommodations. The owner/agent must also consider reasonable 
accommodation requests pertaining to the reasons for denial if related to the person’s disability.  See the 
Reasonable Accommodation Policy for more detail pertaining to reasonable accommodation requests. 

HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NON-CITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] 
Denial or termination of assistance based on immigration status is subject to special hearing and notice rules. 
These special hearings are referred to in the regulations as informal hearings, but the requirements for such 
hearings are different from the informal hearings used to deny applicants for reasons other than immigration 
status. 
 
Assistance to a family may not be delayed, denied or terminated on the basis of immigration status at any time 
prior to a decision under the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) appeal process. 
Assistance to a family may not be terminated or denied while the owner/agent’s hearing is pending, but 
assistance to an applicant may be delayed pending the completion of the informal hearing. 
 
A decision against a family member, issued in accordance with the USCIS appeal process or the owner/agent’s 
informal hearing process, does not preclude the family from exercising the right, that may otherwise be 
available, to seek redress directly through judicial procedures. 

• Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] 
The notice of denial or termination of assistance for noncitizens must advise the family of any of the 
following that apply: 
o That financial assistance will be denied or terminated, and provide a brief explanation of the reasons 

for the proposed denial or termination of assistance. 
o The family may be eligible for proration of assistance. 
o In the case of a resident, the criteria and procedures for obtaining relief under the provisions for 

preservation of families [24 CFR 5.514 and 5.518]. 
o That the family has a right to request an appeal to the USCIS of the results of secondary verification 

of immigration status and to submit additional documentation or explanation in support of the 
appeal. 

Item No. 5, page 28



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 48  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

APPEALING DETERMINATIONS OF INELIGIBILITY 
The owner/agent will notify the household in writing as soon as possible if the secondary verification process 
returns a negative result.  The applicant or resident has thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to choose 
which option to follow.   
 
The applicant or resident may appeal the owner/agent’s decision directly to the DHS.  The applicant or resident 
must send a copy of the appeal directly to the owner/agent. The DHS should respond to the appeal within thirty 
(30) days.   
 
If the DHS decision results in a positive determination of eligibility, the owner/agent can provide the appropriate 
housing assistance.  If the DHS decision results in a negative determination of eligibility, the household has thirty 
(30) days to request a hearing with the owner/agent. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST DELAY OF ASSISTANCE 
Owner/agents may not delay the household’s assistance if the applicant or resident submitted immigration 
information in a timely manner but the DHS verification or appeals process has not been completed.   
 
If a unit is available, the household has come to the top of the waiting list, and at least one member of the 
household has submitted the required documentation in a timely manner and has been determined to be 
eligible, the owner/agent will offer the household a unit and provide full assistance to those household 
members whose documents were received on time.  The owner/agent will continue to provide full assistance to 
such households until information establishing the immigration status of any remaining non-citizen household 
members has been received and verified. 
 
APPENDIX B – VAWA POLICY 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 
 
This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect persons seeking to exercise VAWA protectins, as well as affiliated individuals (as defined by 
HUD), from being denied housing or from losing their HUD assisted housing as a consequence of their status as a 
victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating violence and/or stalking. 
 
Only residents who are assisted by a covered housing program can invoke the VAWA protections that apply 
solely to residents.  The term “resident” refers to an assisted family and the members of the household on their 
lease, but does not include guests or unreported members of a household. 
 
In addition, a live-in aide or caregiver is not a resident, unless otherwise provided by program regulations, and 
cannot invoke VAWA protections.  However, the owner/agent will consider requests for VAWA protections by 
live-in aides on a case-by-case basis.    
 
VAWA ensures that persons seeking to exercise VAWA protections  are not denied housing and housing 
assistance is not terminated solely because the person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic 
violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual assault).   

Item No. 5, page 29



Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 49  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
Being a  person seeking to exercise VAWA protections as the result of an offense covered under the VAWA is not 
reason to waive requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in any lease attachment or HUD approved 
lease addendum unless such requirements interfere with protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections and all information provided to owner/agent 
relating to the incident(s) of abuse covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  Information will not 
be entered into any shared database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent that the disclosure is  
 

• Requested or consented to by the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  
• Otherwise required by applicable law.  

 
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form.  This certification may be submitted in 
an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  The 
owner/agent will work with the applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as inviting 
them into the office to pick up the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 
 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  

Item No. 5, page 30



Pathways At Bouldin Oaks Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 50  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 
service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) from whom the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking or the 
effects of the abuse.  The signatory attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to his/her belief 
that the incident in question represents bona fide abuse, and the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections as a result of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking has signed or attested to the 
documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of the certification form or other 
forms as noted above.   
 
The person seeking to exercise VAWA protections must provide such documentation within fourteen (14) days 
of the request.  The owner/agent will consider extending the deadline if requested.  The owner / agent will also 
extend the deadline if specific circumstances exist that prevent the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections from submitting the form within fourteen (14) days.    The owner /agent will consider these requests 
even if received after the 14 day deadline has passed.  The owner/agent will not deny a VAWA claim solely due 
to confusion over when the certification form is due. 
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections and the owner/agent.  
Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 

 
If the request is denied, the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections may appeal the decision 
through the grievance procedure.  The appeal meeting will be conducted by someone who was not 
involved in the original decision to deny. 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections, who lawfully occupies the home, 
to maintain tenancy.)  
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Item No. 5, page 31



Pathways At Bouldin Oaks Tenant Selection Plan 

Page 51  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 

The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.  

Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections, however, evictions are generally carried 
out through the court system and the owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 

In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 
certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.  

If a lease is bifurcated or if a resident is evicted from the property because of an offense covered under the 
VAWA, the person will be barred from the property. 

Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  Inviting a person evicted because of 
an offense covered under the VAWA or encouraging such person to remain on the property is a lease violation.  
The resident agrees to notify the owner/agent and/or local authorities if such person enters the property.  

EMERGENCY TRANSFER 
The owner/agent will consider an Emergency Transfer request when a person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protection sfeels that he/she is: 

• In imminent danger 
• Was sexually assaulted on the property within 90 days of the request

THE OWNER WILL ACCEPT THE EMERGENCY TRANSFER REQUEST DIRECTLY FROM THE PERSON SEEKING TO EXERCISE VAWA 

PROTECTIONS OR FROM AN ADVOCATE WORKING ON THEIR BEHALF.LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 

This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect victims, as well as members of their family, from being denied housing or from losing their 
HUD assisted housing as a consequence of their status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating 
violence and/or stalking. 

VAWA protections are not provided to guests, unauthorized residents or service providers (including live-in 
aides) hired by the resident.  

Item No. 5, page 32



Pathways At Bouldin Oaks Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 52  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

VAWA ensures that victims are not denied housing and housing assistance is not terminated solely because the 
person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual 
assault).   
 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.  Being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to waive 
requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in any lease attachment or HUD approved lease addendum 
unless such requirements interfere with protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the victim and all information provided to owner/agent relating to the incident(s) of abuse 
covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  Information will not be entered into any shared 
database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent that the disclosure is  
 

• Requested or consented to by the victim in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  
• Otherwise required by applicable law.  

 
The certification form provides notice to the resident of the confidentiality of the form and the limits thereof.  
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form, within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the request.  This certification may be submitted in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
If necessary, the victim may request additional time to submit the certification.  The owner/agent will not deny a 
VAWA claim solely due to confusion over when the certification form is due. 
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the victim at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  The owner/agent will work with the 
applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as inviting them into the office to pick up 
the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 

Item No. 5, page 33



Pathways At Bouldin Oaks Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 53  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  
• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 

service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) From whom the victim has sought assistance in 
addressing domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking or the effects of the abuse.  The signatory 
attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to his/her belief that the incident in question 
represents bona fide abuse, and the victim of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking has 
signed or attested to the documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of additional verification.   
 
To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The applicant/resident is required to provide all necessary documentation to the owner/agent no more than ten 
(10) business days after submitting the certification to the owner/agent.  If the victim is unable to provide 
required documentation within the required timeframe, the owner/agent will deny the request. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the victim and the owner/agent.  Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the victim, who lawfully occupies the home, to maintain tenancy.)  
 
The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.   
 
Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the victim, however, evictions are generally carried out through the court system and the 
owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 
 

Item No. 5, page 34



Pathways At Bouldin Oaks Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 54  of 54 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 
certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.    

CRIMINAL ACTS 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  In some cases, the owner/agent may 
file a restraining order against the abuser to prevent the abuser from entering the property.  If there is a 
restraining order against the abuser and the resident willingly allows or invites the abuser onto the premises, 
the owner/agent may seek termination of assistance and/or tenancy.   
 
In accordance with the regulation at 24 CFR 5.861, the owner/agent may terminate tenancy and evict the tenant 
through judicial action for criminal activity by a covered person if the Landlord determines that the covered 
person has engaged in the criminal activity, regardless of whether the covered person has been arrested, or 
convicted for such activity and without satisfying a criminal standard of proof of the activity.   
 
The owner/agent will take into account individual circumstances when making a determination to terminate 
tenancy; such circumstances might include, among other things, the seriousness of the offending action, the 
extent of participation by the leaseholder in the offending action, and whether the leaseholder, if not the 
wrongdoer, took all feasible steps to prevent the offending action from occurring and has removed the 
offending person from the lease or otherwise banned the offending person from the premises in the future.         

LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
  
 

Item No. 5, page 35



Exhibit 3 

Item No. 5, page 36



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 1  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

 
 

Pathways at  
A Subsidiary of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin 

 
 
 

Tenant Selection Plan 
 

Project Based Rental Assistance & 
Low Income Housing Tax Credit 

for a Family Site 
 
 
 

  

Item No. 5, page 37



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 7  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

SUBSIDY 
Residents at this property are offered subsidized rent.  This means the rent that a household pays is based upon 
the household income.  The family will pay 30% of their adjusted household income, 10% of their gross 
household income or $25 – whichever is higher.  The balance of the contract rent is subsidized by the Federal 
Government.  The rent amounts paid by residents may vary.   

TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS 
The owner/agent may not admit an applicant with a voucher to a unit with Project Based Rental Assistance 
unless the applicant agrees to give up the voucher prior to occupancy.  This will be verified with the former 
housing provider. 
 
Please note that housing assistance provided through HUD’s multi-family housing program is not the same as 
the housing assistance provided through the voucher program.  If any family member moves out, the housing 
subsidy will not move with the family as it does with a voucher 

ASSISTED LIVING 
This is not an assisted living property.  The owner/agent and property staff do not provide, nor have the 
authority to provide, any personal care or personal supervision services.  All care and supervision services must 
be provided by the resident or aides supervised by the resident or the resident’s representative(s).   The 
owner/agent and property staff do not provide assistance with personal activities or daily living.   

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES 

FAIR HOUSING 
The owner/agent will not discriminate in any of the following ways: 
 

1.• Deny to any household the opportunity to apply for housing, nor deny to any eligible applicant the 
opportunity to lease housing suitable to its needs; 

2.• Provide housing which is different than that provided others; 
3.• Subject a person to segregation or disparate treatment; 
4.• Restrict a person’s access to any benefit enjoyed by others in connection with the housing program; 
5.• Treat a person differently in determining eligibility or other requirements for admission; 
6.• Deny a person access to the same level or services; or 
7.• Deny a person the opportunity to participate in a planning or advisory group which is an integral part of 

the housing program. 
 
The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing and housing related transactions based on race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, disability, and familial status.  In addition, the city of Austin has added Fair Housing 
protections based on creed, student status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and age. 
 
This development will comply with state and federal fair housing and antidiscrimination laws; including, but not 
limited to, consideration of reasonable accommodations requested to complete the application process.  
Chapter 1, Subchapter B of Title 10: Community Development Part 1: Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs  provides more detail about reasonable accommodations.   In addition, applicants can 
request a copy of the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy. 
 
Screening criteria will be applied in a amanner consistent with all applicable laws, including the Texas and 
Fedreal Fair Housing Acts, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act, program guidelines and the Texas Department 
of Housing and Community Affairs rules. 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 38



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 8  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

 
Specific animal, breed, number, weight restrictions, pet rules and pet deposits will not apply to households 
having a qualified service / assistance animal(s).  For more information, applicants can request a copy of the 
owner/agent’s Assistance Animals Policy. 
 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
The owner/agent complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance from HUD. 

SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
The owner/agent complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which prohibits discrimination, 
based on the presence of a disability in all programs or activities operated by recipients of federal financial 
assistance.   
 
Although Section 504 protections often overlap with the disability discrimination prohibitions included in the 
Fair Housing Act, Section 504 differs in that it imposes broader affirmative obligations to make their programs, 
as a whole, accessible to persons with disabilities.   

• Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements 
The owner/agent has designated a person to address questions or requests regarding the specific needs 
of residents and applicants with disabilities.  This person is referred to as the Section 504 Coordinator.   

 
Name of Section 504 Coordinator: Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Address:   1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Number:  (512) 477-4488 

TDD/TTY Number: 1-800-735-2989 OR  711 Voice Relay  

• Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification 
In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the owner/agent will 
make reasonable accommodations or modifications for individuals with disabilities (applicants or 
residents) unless these modifications would change the fundamental nature of the housing program or 
result in undue financial and administrative burden.  Please see Appendix A for additional information. 
 
The owner / agent has a Reasonable Accommodations Policy which explains the eligibility and the 
process for making a request.  The owner/agent will provide an individual with a copy of the Reasonable 
Accommodation Policy upon request.   
 

PRIVACY POLICY 
It is the policy of the owner/agent to guard the privacy of individuals conferred by the Federal Privacy Act of 
1974 and to ensure the protection of such individuals' records maintained by the owner/agent.   
 
Neither the property owner/agent nor its agents shall disclose any personal information contained in its records 
to any person or agency, other than HUD, its Contract Administrators or other federal/state entity or investor 
auditing entities, unless the individual about whom information is requested gives written consent to such 
disclosure.  Such consent may be provided in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, 
when there is the presence of a disability. 

Item No. 5, page 39



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 9  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

 
This Privacy Policy in no way limits the owner/agent's ability to collect such information to determine eligibility, 
compute rent, or determine an applicant's suitability for tenancy.   

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 
The owner/agent understands that, regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain 
protections provided through the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013).   
 
If any applicant wishes to exercise the protections provided in the VAWA 2013, he/she should contact the 
owner/agent immediately.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the VAWA 2013.  In order to 
receive the protections outlined in the VAWA 2013, the applicant/applicant must specify that he/she wishes to 
exercise these protections.   
 
The owner/agent will provide an individual with a copy of the VAWA Policy upon request. 

THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE 
The owner/agent ensures that HUD's core housing programs are open to all eligible persons regardless of sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in accordance with The Equal Access Rule. 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
The owner / agent is required to determine whether applicants are eligible to occupy the subsidized property 
and receive housing assistance.  Eligibility is divided into property eligibility and program eligibility.  Eligibility is 
determined based on the applicable Federal and State regulations that govern the property and programs.   
 
For HUD programs, eligibility is determined at move-in or initial certification.  Thereafter, eligibility is only 
reviewed for student status or to determine if a remaining family member is eligible to remain. 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION 

• Household/Resident Type 
This multi-family PBRA / LIHTC property is designed to provide housing to families who meet the 
eligibility and screening requirements.  A family includes, but is not limited to: 
 

1.o A family with or without children (the temporary absence of a child from the home due to 
placement in foster care shall not be considered in determining family composition and family 
size); 

2.o An elderly family; 
3.o A near elderly family; 
4.o A disabled family; 
5.o A displaced family; 
6.o The remaining member of a tenant family; and  
7.o A single person who is not an elderly or displaced person, or a person with disabilities, or the 

remaining member of a tenant family. 

• Income Limits 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Item No. 5, page 40



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 10  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

Income limits vary by program type (PBRA or LIHTC) and household size.  The owner/agent will provide 
applicants a copy of the income limits for the property area upon request.  In addition, applicants can 
review the income limits by accessing the following web site.  http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html.   
 
HUD requires that property managers incorporate the most recently published income limits when 
determining eligibility.  The IRS “hold harmless” rule states that if the income limits go down, the 
property can maintain the highest level of income limits in effect after the property was placed in 
service with tax credits. 
 
This property is a layered property with all units required to meet both the PBRA and LIHTC income limit 
requirements.  Both income limits are based off a percentage of the median family income for the 
Austin – Round Rock – San Marcos metropolitan statistical area.  Since the LIHTC income limit is lower, 
by default it becomes the effective income limit for the property. 
 
For this property, qualified applicant households must meet the following income limit requirements: 

 
Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

  Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA)   Low – 80% of median income 

        
        Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

  Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)   Low – 60% of median family income 

• Occupancy Standards 
Occupancy standards serve to prevent the over-utilization or under-utilization of units that can result in 
an inefficient use of housing funding.  Occupancy standards also ensure that residents are treated fairly 
and consistently and receive adequate housing space.   
 
Below, please find this property’s occupancy standards description:   

 
Number of Bedrooms Min. # Household Members Max.  # Household Members 

   
0 1 1 
1 1 2 
2 2 4 
3 3 6 
4 4 8 
5 5 10 

AMFI % 
Number of Household Members 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
80 $43,600 $49,800 $56,050 $62,250 $67,250 $72,250 $77,200 $82,200 

AMFI % 
Number of Household Members 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

60 $  32,700 $  37,380 $  42,060 $  46,680 $  50,460 $  54,180 $  57,900 $  61,620 

Item No. 5, page 41

http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html


Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 11  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

 
•o Generally there is a maximum of two people per bedroom.  The owner/agent does not determine 

who shares a bedroom. 
o The owner/agent allows for occupancy of fewer than 2 persons (over the age of 6) per bedroom for 

the following reasons: 
o The small size of the bedrooms and units;  
o To allow the family to determine what is best for their situation in accordance with best 

practices for Fair Housing. 
•o The family is given the choice of which bedroom size is appropriate for their family, as long as the 

number of family members is within the range listed in the chart above. 
•o Once the family has selected an eligible bedroom size they will be placed on the waiting list for that 

bedroom size.  Changes to the bedroom size cannot be made unless a qualifying event occurs.  
Qualifying events include: 

o Changes in the family composition (removing or adding household members) which result in 
the family no longer being eligible for the chosen bedroom size. 

o Changes in the ages of the children, resulting  in two children of the opposite sex, with one 
at least seven (7) years of age.  These children will not be required to share a bedroom,  

o Changes in family composition adding persons of different generations (grandparent,  
grandchild, parent, etc).  These family members will not be required to share a bedroom. 

o Need for a different bedroom size as a reasonable accommodation for a disability. 
•o Authorized live-in aides will be allocated a separate bedroom. No additional bedrooms will be 

provided for the live-in aide’s family. 
•o Anticipated children will be included.  Anticipated children include: 

o Children expected to be born to a pregnant woman; 
o Children in process of being adopted by an adult family member; 
o Children whose custody is being obtained by an adult family member; 
o Foster children who will reside in the unit; 
o Children who are temporarily in a foster home who will return to the family; and 
o Children in joint custody arrangements who are present in the household 50% or more of 

the time. 
o A household that contains a family member (not the head of household or spouse) who is enrolled 

as a full-time student at an institution of higher learning and who is on the lease will be counted for 
the purposes of establishing occupancy standards for unit size if: 

•o the family member is enrolled and actively attending a two-year or four-year college or 
university; and 

•o the family member resides in the public housing unit during school breaks and holidays. 
 

Any household placed in a unit size different from that defined in these Occupancy Standards shall agree 
to transfer to an appropriate size unit at the same property when one becomes available.  Once an 
appropriate size unit is offered to the family, they have 30 days to complete the transfer or lose their 
subsidy. 

• Rent Limits 
The following are the contract rents for this property: 
 

Contract 
Rents 

 

Project Based Rental Assistance Program 

 
Number of Bedrooms 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Tab after:  0.75" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned at: 
1" + Tab after:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Tab after:  0.75" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned at: 
1" + Tab after:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Tab after:  0.75" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned at: 
1" + Tab after:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 2 + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.25" +
Indent at:  1.25", Tab stops:  0.75", List tab +
Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri

Item No. 5, page 42



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 12  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

0 1 2 3 4 5     

 
$817  $876  $1,051  $1,214  $1,354  $1,494      

 
 
For the PBRA program, residents pay 30% of their adjusted income for rent, even if this amount  
exceeds the contract rent.  This amount is adjusted downward by a utility allowance for any 
utilites that are paid by the resident directly to the utility provider.   
 
If assistance is terminated, but the resident is allowed to remain living on the property, the  
resident will pay the contract rent.   
 
The maximum amount of rent that can be paid by the resident is set by the LIHTC rent limits.   
The following are the rent limits for this property: 

 

RENT LIMITS 
 

Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program 

AMFI 
% 

Number of Bedrooms 

0 1 2 3 4 5     

60 $817  $876  $1,051  $1,214  $1,354  $1,494      

• Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit  
When an applicant requests an accessible unit or a unit preference, such as a first floor unit, the 
owner/agent will conduct inquiries to: 
 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified for the unit, which is only available to persons with a disability 

or to persons with a particular type of disability. 
o Verify that the applicant needs the features of the unit as an accommodation to his or her disability. 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified to receive a priority on the waiting list available to persons with 

a disability or to persons with a particular type of disability. 
 
Verification of this information can be provided by any person who has reasonable knowledge of the 
family’s need for this accommodation. 

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 

• Eligibility Standards 
Based on federal regulations, the owner/agent may admit only eligible applicants.  In the selection of 
applicants for admission, eligibility criteria have been established in accordance with HUD guidelines.  
The following eligibility standards will be applied in accordance with HUD requirements: 
 
o The household’s annual income must not exceed program income limits at move-in; 
o The Head-of-Household (HOH), co-Head-of-Household and the spouse (regardless of age) and all 

adults in each household must sign an Authorization for Release of Information (HUD Forms 9887 
and 9887A) and owner/agent created verification documents prior to receiving assistance and 
annually thereafter;   

o The unit for which the household is applying must be the household’s only residence; 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Item No. 5, page 43



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 15  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

A household is eligible for assistance only if the unit will be the household’s only residence.  The 
owner/agent will not knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-
assisted unit.   
 
Applicants must disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance.  Residents can only 
receive subsidy for one unit/residence at a time.  This prohibition does not prevent a person who is 
currently receiving assistance from applying for an assisted unit in another property.   
 
If, for any reason, an applicant moves in to this property before moving out of another subsidized unit, 
the new resident will be required to pay market rent until the move out from the previous property is 
complete and the resident is eligible to receive HUD subsidy for this property.  Assistance in the new 
unit will begin, if the household is still eligible, the day after assistance ends for the previous unit.   
 
There is an exception to this rule.  Children in joint custody arrangements can receive HUD housing 
assistance in two units when both parent/guardian families receive HUD housing assistance.  However, 
only one household may use the dependent deduction to determine adjusted income.  In these cases, 
additional verification is required.  The owner/agent will request: 

 
•o Verification of the custody/guardianship/living arrangement  
•o Verification of the use of the deduction.  The owner/agent will verify use of the dependent 

deduction with the other owner/agent if : 
 The child will live in the unit at least 50% of the time and  
 The parent wishes to claim the deduction, and  
 Both families are receiving HUD housing assistance 

There is a second exception to this rule.  If a member of an existing household leaves that household to 
establish their own unit, HUD allows for a temporary overlap of subsidy (not to exceed 60 days) to allow 
for the interim recertification to go into effect for the original household. 

• Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education  
Student eligibility is determined at move-in/initial certification and at each annual certification.  Student 
eligibility may also be reviewed at interim certification if student status has changed since the last 
certification.  All adult students are required to report any change in their student status.   
 
A student who is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the 
student meets the criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall be provided to any individual who 
is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the purpose 
of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational credential; when 
the student: 
A student who is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the 
student meets the criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall not be provided to any individual 
who: 
 
o Is living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance   
o Is individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance and has parents who are income eligible to 

receive Section 8 assistance.   
o Is a veteran of the United States military;   
o Is married;   
o Has a dependent other than a spouse (e.g. dependent child);   
o Is at least 24 years of age;   

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at: 
1" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Item No. 5, page 44



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 16  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

o Is a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in section 3(b)(3)(E) of the 1937 Act and was 
receiving assistance under section 8 of the 1937 Act as of November 30, 2005;   

o Is classified as Vulnerable Youth;  A student meets HUD’s definition of a vulnerable youth when: 
a. The individual is an orphan, in foster care, or a ward of the court or was an orphan, in foster 

care, or a ward of the court at any time when the individual was 13 years of age of older;  
b. The individual is, or was immediately prior to attaining the age of majority, an emancipated 

minor or in legal guardianship as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in the 
individual’s State of legal residence;  

c. The individual has been verified during the school year in which the application is submitted as 
either an unaccompanied youth who is a homeless child or youth (as such terms are defined in 
section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act) (42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq.), or as 
unaccompanied, at risk of homelessness, and self-supporting, by 

1. A local educational agency homeless liaison, designated pursuant to the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act;  

2. The director of a program funded under the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act or a 
designee of the director;  

3. The director of a program funded under subtitle B of title IV of the McKinney-Vento 
Homeless Assistance Act (relating to emergency shelter grants) or a designee of the 
director; or  

4.  A financial aid administrator; or  
o The individual is a student for whom a financial aid administrator makes a documented 

determination of independence by reason of other unusual circumstances 
• Is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the 

purpose of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational 
credential; and 

• Is under the age of 24; and 
• Is not married; and 
• Is not a veteran of the United States Military; and 
• Does not have a dependent child; and 
• Is not a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in 3(b)(3)(E) of the United States Housing Act 

of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E)) and was not receiving section 8 assistance as of November 30, 
2005; and 

• Is not living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance; and 
• Is not individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance or has parents (the parents individually or 

jointly) who are not income eligible to receive Section 8 assistance.   
 
If a student does not meet the eligibility criteria above, but can prove independence from parents under 
HUD rules, then the student would meet HUD’s student eligibility criteria.  Please see property staff if 
you need additional information about proving independence from parents.   

  
If an ineligible student applies for or is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, 
the assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated.NOTE:  Unless the student 
can demonstrate his or her independence from parents, the student must be eligible to receive Section 8 
assistance and the parents (individually or jointly) must be eligible (income eligible) to receive Section 8 
assistance in order for the student to receive Section 8 assistance. 
 
For a student to be eligible independent of his or her parents (where the income of the parents is not 
relevant), the student must demonstrate independence from, parents.  While owner/agents may use 
additional criteria for determining the student’s independence from parents, owner/agents must use, 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Aligned at:  0.75"
+ Tab after:  1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Aligned at:  1.25"
+ Tab after:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0.5" + Indent
at:  0.5", Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Item No. 5, page 45



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 17  of 57  Effective12/1/2016  

and the student must meet, at a minimum all of the following criteria to be eligible for Section 8 
assistance.  The student must: 
 
o Be of legal contract age under state law; 
o Have established a household separate from parents or legal guardians for at least one year prior to 

application for occupancy, or, meet the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of an independent 
student; 

o Not be claimed as a dependent by parents or legal guardians pursuant to IRS regulations; and 
o Obtain a certification of the amount of financial assistance that will be provided by parents, signed 

by the individual providing the support.  This certification is required even if no assistance will be 
provided. 

o If an ineligible student is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, the 
assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated  

 
NOTE:  An owner/agent cannot evict or require an ineligible student to move from a unit as long as the 
student is in compliance with the terms of the lease. 
 
Any financial assistance a student receives (1) under the Higher Education Act of 1965, (2) from private 
sources, or (3) from an institution of higher education that is in excess of amounts received for tuition 
shall be considered income to that individual, except for: 
 
•o A person student 24 years of age or older with dependent children as defined by HUD or  
•o A person student living with his/her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance. 
 
The definition of tuition is consistent with the definition provided by the Department of Education and 
includes all tuition plus mandatory course-related fees associated with being enrolled at that institution 
of higher education.  This does not include the cost of books. 

• Additional Tax Credit Eligibility Requirements for Students Enrolled at an Institute of Higher Education 
Households composed entirely of full-time students are not eligible for tax credit program unless, they 
meet one of these 5 criteria:   
 
1.o Married and filing a joint tax return or eligible to file a joint tax return, or  
2.o Single parent, at least 1 child, neither of whom is a dependent on another person's tax return, 

except for the return of the other parent of the child, or  
3.o Receiving welfare or TANF, or  
4.o Participating in job-training program funded through Workforce Investment Act, or 
5.o Household member was a participant in the foster care program. 

• Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students   
Noncitizen students and their noncitizen families may not receive assistance.  Noncitizen students are 
not eligible for continuation of assistance or temporary deferral of termination of assistance.  A 
noncitizen student is defined as an individual who is as follows: 
 
o A resident of another country to which the individual intends to return; 
o A bona fide student pursuing a course of study in the United States; and 
o A person admitted to the United States solely for the purpose of pursuing a course of study as 

indicated on an F-1 or M-1 student visa.  
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0.5" + Indent
at:  0.5", Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Item No. 5, page 46



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 18  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

This prohibition applies to the noncitizen student’s noncitizen spouse and noncitizen children. However, 
spouses and children who are U.S. citizens may receive assistance.  For example, a family that includes a 
noncitizen student married to a U.S. citizen is a mixed family. 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS 
Applications for housing at this property are only received online or at the owner/agent’s office location.  
Applications are not received at the property management office. 
 
It is the owner/agent's policy to accept and process applications in accordance with HUD guidance.  The 
owner/agent will make a reasonable accommodation to assist in the application process if the applicant or any 
member of the applicant household is disabled.   

PRE-APPLICATIONS 
Applicants will first complete a pre-application to have their name placed on the waiting list for housing at 
[name of property].  Pre-applications can be submitted on the internet at 
www.austin.apply4housing.comwww.hacaapply.org from any device with internet access (including 
smartphone, tablet, desktop or other device).  For a list of local places with free internet access please contact 
HACA.  The owner/agent will also accept the application in an equally effective format, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.   Please contact HACA to request that accommodation. 
  
The entire pre-application must be completed in full and submitted before the applicant will be placed on the 
waiting list.  Confirmation of successful submission will be provided by the online application portal if all 
requirements are met.  
 
Due to long waiting lists and depending on the preferences for which an applicant family may qualify, the time 
spent on the waiting list may be anywhere from several months to several years.  While waiting on the waiting 
list, applicants may check the status of their application by creating an account at 
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicantswww.myhaca.org.  In this applicant portal, applicants can update their 
contact information, report changes to their application and check the status of their application.  It is the 
applicant’s responsibility to keep all contact information current. 

• Incomplete Pre-Applications 
Electronic submissions of pre-applications cannot be submitted if they are incomplete.  For pre-
applications accepted by an alternate means, if the pre-application is not complete, the owner/agent 
will attempt to contact the applicant to obtain missing information.  The applicant will have ten (10) 
business days to respond and provide missing information.  If the applicant fails to provide required 
information within the ten (10) day period, the owner/agent will return the application. 

• Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility 
Information needed to determine applicant eligibility shall be obtained, verified, and the determination 
of applicant eligibility performed, in accordance with HUD, IRS and property eligibility requirements.  
Upon receipt of the completed pre-application, the owner/agent will make a preliminary eligibility 
determination before adding a household to the waiting list or initiating final eligibility tasks.  The 
owner/agent will review the pre-application to ensure that there are no obvious factors that would 
make the applicant ineligible.  Obvious factors include, but are not limited to: 
 
o Owing a debt to the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (any property or program) that is still 

within the 4 year statute of limitations; 
Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Item No. 5, page 47

http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/
http://www.austin.apply4housing.com/
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants
https://austin.ourpha.com/applicants


Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 19  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

o Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 5 years for drug 
related criminal activity; 

o Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 2 years for any 
reason other than drug related activity; 

o The head of household on the application is currently a head of household living at this property; 
o Having been denied admission to this program within the past 12 months for any reason at any 

property owned and administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 
o Having rejected a housing offer for a unit of the same size at the same property within the last 12 

months. 
 

If an applicant is preliminarily ineligible, within seven (7) days the owner/agent will send a notice to the 
applicant indicating that they are not eligible, including the reason(s) why they were determined 
ineligible and stating the family’s rights to appeal the decision.  This action will be completed in 
agreement with the owner/agent’s Grievance and Appeals Policy which is available to the applicant 
upon request. 
 
If a preliminary eligibility review indicates that a household is preliminarily eligible for tenancy, but units 
of appropriate size are not available, the owner/agent will place the household on the waiting list for 
the property and notify the household when their name comes to the top of the waiting list.   
 
If an applicant is otherwise eligible but no appropriate unit exists in the property, the owner/agent will 
reject the pre-application.    
 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant family if their pre-application is rejected for any reason. 

APPLICATIONS 
When the applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will receive an invitation by mail to come to 
an eligibility interview.   
 

o• Applicant families can receive up to 3 2 invitations to attend an eligibility interview. 
o• If a family does not attend the scheduled appointment, a notice will be sent to the family and their 

name will be withdrawn from the waiting list.  If the family responds within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the notice and requests to be rescheduled, they will be placed back on the waiting list with their same 
date and time.   

o• Once the family misses their third scheduled appointment, they are no longer eligible to be placed back 
on the waiting list.  The family will be required to submit a new application and start the process from 
the beginning. 

 
During the eligibility interview process, the applicant family will complete a full application.  All documents in 
the Application Package must be completed in full, signed and dated in order to be accepted.  All adult 
applicants must complete the application package as instructed.      
 
Upon request, the owner/agent/agent will provide interested parties with a copy of the application package.   
The person who is indicated as the Head-of-Household (HOH) must execute and sign all documents that are 
included in the application package.  Before completing or executing any forms, additional copies should be 
made for all adult household members and in some cases for minors who will live in the unit.   
 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 48



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 20  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

The owner/agent will require applicants to provide several documents as verification and proof of eligibility for 
housing.  These will include: 
 

• A government issued photo ID - used for verifying the identity of all applicants.  A birth certificate or 
other government issued document which includes the applicant’s name and date of birth – used to 
verify the age of all applicant family members. 

• Proof of citizenship – which may include a US birth certificate, US passport or other government issued 
documents demonstrating citizenship. 

• Proof of immigration status (if applicable) -  which may include a permanent resident card, employment 
authorization card, I-94 visa or other government issued document indicating valid immigration status. 

• A Social Security card or any other government issued document including the name and full SSN of all 
applicants. 

• Verification of all sources of income, including (but not limited to) check stubs for employment, SS / SSI 
award letters, VA Pension award letters, TANF award letter, proof of child support and verification of 
asset income. 

• All verified documents must be dated within 60 days of the date of receipt. 

FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
Once the applicant family completes the eligibility interview, all eligibility criteria will be reviewed before a final 
eligibility determination is made.  Being eligible, however, does not guarantee that the application will be 
approved.  All adult applicants (and if appropriate minors) will be subject to the certain screening based on 
landlord/rental history, credit history and criminal history.  If the screening process determines that the family 
meets HUD’s and the owner/agent’s standards for admission, the family is found eligible. 

LIVE-IN AIDES 
Please contact the HACA central office Admissions Department if a live-in aide will be moving in to the unit.  If 
the family plans to include a live-in aide, the live-in aide is not required to complete the same application forms.  
Live-in aides must complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire and participate in screening and other Owner/Agent 
verifications that are required.   
 
The live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide.  The live-in aide has no rights to the unit as a 
remaining family member and must agree to relinquish possession of the unit within a reasonable time if the 
resident is absent for an extended period of time or if the resident leaves for any reason.  The live-in aide will be 
required to sign an acknowledgement the live-in aide has no right of residency or occupancy if the resident is 
absent or if the resident moves out for any reason including death.   

WAITING LISTS  
To ensure that applicants are appropriately and fairly selected for the next available unit, it is essential for the 
owner/agent to maintain waiting lists.  The owner/agent will place the applicant household on the waiting list 
after preliminary eligibility determination is complete. 
 
If applicants are eligible for more than one bedroom size, the applicants will have the option of choosing which 
bedroom size is appropriate for their family.  Applicants will make this specifying a desired unit size when 
completing the pre-application. The applicant will be placed on the waiting list for allthe  indicated unit 
sizes/types as long as:  
 

• The applicant household meets the Occupancy Standards described in this plan, and  
• The waiting list for the unit size is open   

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 49



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 21  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
Applicants will be given 15 days to change their bedroom size choice.  Once the 15 days have passed,Once 
applicants have selected a bedroom size,  they will not be allowed to change that selection unless a qualifying 
event has occurred.  Please see the list of qualifying events in the Occupancy Standards section of this plan. 
 
The applicant Head-of-Household (HOH) will be contacted, based on the waiting list selection criteria, and 
offered housing for the first unit that becomes available based on the selection guidelines described in this plan. 

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS   
It is the policy of the owner/agent to administer its waiting list as required by HUD handbooks and regulations.  
The owner/agent will update the waiting list by removing the names of applicants who are no longer interested 
in or no longer qualify for the PBRA and/or LIHTC program. 
 
On a regular basis, as determined by the owner/agent considering the length of the waiting list, the 
owner/agent will contact each applicant household by mail, using the address provided on the pre-application.  
Applicants are responsible for updating their application with any changes in address.  The Head-of-Household 
(HOH) will be the only person contacted unless otherwise requested.  
 If this letter is unable to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, the application will be rejected and 
the household will be removed from the waiting list.   
 
If the Head-of-Household (HOH) fails to respond to the owner/agent inquiries regarding the desire to remain on 
the waiting list, the application will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
In addition, an adult member of the applicant household must contact the Admissions Department if household 
information changes (i.e. number of household members, number of future household members, criminal 
history, income, etc.).  If the household size or composition changes, the owner/agent will: 
 

o• Update the waiting list information and  
o• Decide whether the household needs the same or a different unit   

 
If, as a result of the household composition change, it is determined that the household will be on the waiting 
list for a different unit than originally indicated, the household will maintain their place on the waiting list for the 
new unit.  If the waiting list is currently closed for the appropriate unit size, the application will be rejected and 
the household will be removed from the waiting list.  If there are no units of the appropriate size on the 
property, the household will be rejected and will be removed from the waiting list.   

REMOVAL OF APPLICANTS FROM THE WAITING LIST 
The owner/agent will remove an applicant's name from the waiting list when if any of the following apply: 
   

• Applicant requests that the household name be removed  
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and no appropriate size/type 

unit exists in the property 
• The unit that is needed – using household size as the basis – has changed, and the waiting list is closed 

for that unit size/type 
• Applicant fails to meet eligibility requirements 
• Applicant fails to meet occupancy standards  
• Applicant fails to meet screening requirements 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at 
0.25"

Item No. 5, page 50



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 25  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

The notice will contain the reasons for the determination.  The applicant has the right to appeal the 
decision.  All requests for appeal must be received within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of 
notification of denial.  See the full appeals process located in this tenant selection plan.   

• Change in Preference Status While on the Waiting List 
Occasionally households on the waiting list who did not qualify for a preference when they applied will 
experience a change in circumstances that qualifies them for a preference.  In such cases, it is the 
responsibility of the applicant to contact the owner/agent to request a change in status so that the 
waiting list can be updated to reflect the preference as appropriate. 
 
To the extent the verification determines the household does now qualify for a preference, they will be 
selected from the waiting list in accordance with the preference and the date the application was 
received.   

• Exceptions to the Preference Rule 
Management must give priority to current residents: 
 
•o Residing in a unit that has been determined uninhabitable due to flood, fire or other natural disaster 
•o When a unit is designated for rehabilitation or repair 

 
These situations represent extenuating circumstances and the normal selection order may be adjusted 
to address the needs of these residents. 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST 
In order to ensure that applicants on the waiting list are processed in a reasonable amount of time, the 
owner/agent may stop accepting applications and close waiting lists in whole or in part.  Decisions about closing 
and opening the waiting list will be based on the number of applications available for a particular size and type 
of apartment and the ability of the owner/agent to house an applicant in an appropriate apartment within a 
reasonable period of time.  
 
On a regular basis, the owner/agent will review the number of families on the waiting list to determine whether 
the waiting list may be closed.  If the owner/agent has sufficient applications, the waiting list may be closed 
completely.  Notices announcing that the waiting list is closed or open will be publicly announced in the 
following manner: 
 

• Local newspapers 
• Publications described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) 
• Flyers distributed through Social Service agencies as described in the AFHMP 

 
Interested parties who insist on submitting applications when the waiting list is closed will not be considered.  
The application will not be reviewed and will be returned. 
 
Note:  There is one exception to this.  If a resident at this property or any other property owned by the owner 
(The Housing Authority of the City of Austin) is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and 
/ or stalking, as part of the VAWA protections they can request to be placed onto the waiting list for this 
property or any property owned by the owner, even if the list is closed.  The owner/agent will work with the 
family to determine which property(ies) would best meet the family’s need for protection.  These applications 
will be received and processed according to the criteria outlined in this plan. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.25", Tab stops: Not at  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at 
0.25"

Item No. 5, page 51



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 27  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

PROVISIONS FOR REFUSAL TO SIGN  
If any member of the applicant’s household does not sign and submit the consent forms as required, the 
owner/agent must reject the application and deny assistance and/or tenancy. 

MISREPRESENTATION 
Any information, provided by the applicant that proves to be untrue may be used to disqualify the applicant 
because of misrepresentation or attempted fraud.  The owner/agent will not take any action to reduce or deny 
assistance based on inconsistent information received during the verification process until the owner/agent has 
independently investigated the information.   
 
The owner/agent considers false information about the following to be grounds for rejecting an applicant: 
 

• Identity 
• Social Security Numbers/Information 
• Income 
• Assets/Income From Assets 
• Household Composition 
• Disability 
• Birth Date/Age 
• Citizenship, Naturalization, And/or Eligible 

Immigration Status 

• Eviction History 
• Criminal History 
• Sexual Offender Status 
• Eligibility For Preferences and Priorities 
• Allowances 
• Current/Previous Residence History  
• Current Housing Assistance 
• Status As A Student 

 
Unintentional errors that do not cause preferential treatment will not be used as a basis to reject applicants. 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA 
Screening is performed in a manner that is reasonable, consistent, and complies with fair housing laws. 
Screening is used to help ensure that households admitted to a property will abide by the terms of the lease, pay 
rent on time, take care of the property and unit, and allow all residents to peacefully enjoy their homes.   
 
Anyone who wishes to live on the property must be screened prior to moving in.  This includes, but is not limited 
to, live-in aides, security/police officers or additional household members wishing to move-in after the initial 
move-in.  Certain exceptions apply to children/minors.  The current screening guidelines in place at the time the 
new household member applies will be used to determine eligibility for admission.    
 
Note:  The Owner / Agent followed HUD guidelines for the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) requiring 
owners to not re-screen families at the time of conversion.  Therefore, families living at the property at the time 
of conversion from Public Housing to PBRA and LIHTC were not re-screened.  However, they were screened for 
these criteria at the time of their original move in to the Public Housing program.   

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
 HUD has established standards that prohibit admission of: 
 

o Any household in which any member was evicted in the last three years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity   

o• Any household in which any member was engaged in the production of methamphetamine. 
o• *A household in which any member is currently engaged in illegal use of drugs or for which the  

owner/agent has reasonable cause to believe that a member’s illegal use or pattern of illegal use of a 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at 
0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" + Indent
at:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at 
0.25"

Item No. 5, page 52



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 28  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

drug may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment of the property by other 
residents 

o• Any household member who is subject to any state lifetime sex offender registration requirement  
o• Any household member if there is reasonable cause to believe that member’s behavior, from abuse or 

pattern of abuse of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment by 
other residents.  The screening standards must be based on behavior, not the condition of alcoholism or 
alcohol abuse 

 
*”Currently engaged in” is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous six months.   

 
In addition to HUD requirements, the owner/agent has established a policy to reject all applications where the 
applicant or any household member has engaged in criminal activity as described in this document.  The 
owner/agent will reject applications if any household member’s criminal history includes any of the following: 
 

o Any household in which any member was evicted in the last five years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity  

•o Sex Offender Registration:  Applicant, or any member of the applicant family, is or ever has been subject 
to registration under a state sex offender registration program 

•o Record of any conviction or adjudication, other than acquittal, of the following felonies by any 
household member, regardless of when it happened:  
a.o Capital Murder 
b.o Murder / Manslaughter 
c.o Arson 
d.o Kidnapping 
e.o Child Molestation 
f.o Treason 

g.o Rape or Crimes of a Sexual Nature 
h.o Incest  
i.o Crimes involving explosives 
j.o Crimes involving terrorism 
k.o Gross Lewdness

 
•o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past four years, the family will be denied admission:  
 
a.o Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution or use of 

a drug or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use the drug. 
b.o Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the 

use, attempted use or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be 
reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage.  

c.o Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety or welfare of other tenants.  
d.o Illegal possession/discharge/display/carrying of firearm or illegal weapon/ deadly weapon.  
e.o Assault, aggravated assault, assault by threat, stalking.  
f.o Physical violence to persons or property, or criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 

attempted use or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 
g.o Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of HACA staff, contractors, subcontractors or 

agents. 
h.o Three or more incidences or convictions of alcohol-related criminal activity, including Driving under 

the Influence and Public Intoxication.  
i.o Burglary of a Habitation.  
j.o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past three years, the family will be denied admission:  
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.25" + Tab after:  1.5"
+ Indent at:  1.5", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.25" + Tab after:  1.5"
+ Indent at:  1.5", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab +
Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 2 + Aligned at:  2" + Tab after:  2.25" +
Indent at:  2.25", Tab stops:  0.75", List tab +
Not at  2.25"

Item No. 5, page 53



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 29  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

•o A pattern of abuse of alcohol, including, but not limited to, public intoxication and 
driving while intoxicated.  

•o  A pattern of fraud committed against a governmental entity.  
•o A pattern of theft or fraud.  
•o A pattern of organized criminal activity.  
•o A pattern of prostitution.  

 
A pattern (for the purposes listed above) consists of three or more incidences, with a minimum of one incident 
occurring within the past three years.  The owner/agent will not use arrest records as the sole basis for denying 
admission to the program.  
 
The owner/agent will not deny an application solely on the basis of an arrest.  If the owner/agent receives arrest 
information which may be for a disqualifying activity, the owner/agent may request additional information.  
Additional information that may be considered, if available, include the following: 
 

• The police report associated with the arrest which provides the reported circumstances of the arrest. 
• Any statements made by witnesses or the applicant, not included in the report. 
• Whether criminal charges were filed. 
• Whether, if filed, criminal charges were abandoned, dismissed, not prosecuted, or ultimately resulted in 

an acquittal. 
• Any other evidence relevant to determining whether or not the applicant engaged in the disqualifying 

activity. 
 
Evidence of criminal conduct will be considered if it indicates a demonstrable risk to safety and/or property. 
 
If a resident or applicant has requested VAWA protections and such protections have been justified based on 
owner/agent investigation, the abuser/perpetrator will not be approved to live on the property. 
  
If the owner/agent is unable to complete required criminal or sexual offender screening, the application will be 
rejected.  If the owner/agent determines that a sex offender is part of the household, the owner/agent will 
allow the household to remove the sex offender from the application.  Removal must be documented using the 
change of address receipt from the Texas Department of Sex Offender Registration. 
The household will have five (5) business days to provide verification that the household member has alternative 
housing or that the household member has applied for alternative housing.  Failure to provide such 
documentation will result in rejection of the application for all household members. 
 
The owner/agent reserves the right to monitor household composition after move-in.  The owner/agent will 
conduct quarterly reviews matching residents against the registered sex offender database.  If the owner/agent 
discovers that a sex offender has moved in to the unit, assistance will be terminated and the household will be 
evicted in accordance with HUD requirements.  Any assistance paid-in-error must be returned to HUD. 
 
United States Code Title 8, subsection 1324(a)(1)(A) prohibits the harboring of illegal aliens. The provision of 
housing to illegal aliens is a fundamental component of harboring.  All applicants will be required to provide 
proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
If criminal screening indicates that the applicant has an unacceptable criminal history, the owner/agent will 
reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection.   

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
1.25" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 54



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 30  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

• Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances 
In deciding whether to exercise discretion to admit an individual who has engaged in prohibited criminal 
activity, the owner/agent will consider all of the circumstances relevant to the particular admission 
decision, including but not limited to: the seriousness of the offending action; the effect that denial of 
the entire household would have on family members not involved in the criminal activity; and the extent 
to which the applicant has taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the criminal activity.  
 
Additionally, when specifically considering whether to deny admission for illegal drug use by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such activity, the owner/agent will consider whether 
the household member is participating in or has successfully completed a drug rehabilitation program, 
or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully.   

• Criminal Screening Discoveries 
If the criminal background investigation indicates that the applicant does not meet the criminal 
screening criteria, the owner/agent will reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the 
owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection. Before rejecting the household, the owner/agent will 
compare the information provided by the applicant with the criminal history report.  If the information 
conflicts, the owner/agent will: 
•o Notify the household of the proposed action based on the information; 
•o Provide a copy of the criminal history report; 
•o Provide the applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information 

obtained from any law enforcement agency; 
•o Allow the household the opportunity to remove the household member. 
 
In this situation, applicants will have seven (7) calendar days to resolve the discrepancy.  If the applicant 
fails to contact the owner/agent or indicates that he/she cannot provide documentation to refute the 
criminal discovery, the owner/agent will reject the application and remove the household from the 
waiting list.  The owner/agent will notify the applicant family of the rejection in writing.  The family will 
have the opportunity to request an appeal of the denial according to the terms of the grievance policy 
within this tenant selection plan. 

 
If, after move-in, the owner/agent discovers that there was criminal history that would have resulted in 
rejection, the owner/agent will contact the resident to ascertain the accuracy of the criminal report.  If 
the resident would have been rejected had the information been know at the time of the eligibility 
determination, the owner/agent will take appropriate action including notifying HUD’s Office of the 
Inspector General of potential fraud and pursuing termination of tenancy (eviction).   

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY 
The owner/agent reviews each adult applicant’s credit history.  The owner/agent does not consider medical 
bills/expenses, credit score, or the lack of credit history, when reviewing credit history.   
 
Credit history will be reviewed to determine the following: 
 

o• If there is any debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD; 
o• If there are any evictions that have not been reported; 
o• If there are any other housing related judgments against the applicant.   

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.25"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.28" + Indent at:  0.53"

Item No. 5, page 55



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 31  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

Applicants will be rejected in the following situations: 
 

• The family owes a debt to a federally assisted housing program which has not been repaid and the 
family has not established a repayment agreement. 

• The family has a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two (2) 
years.   

 
If the applicant has no credit history, the credit screening will be considered “positive”. 

SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE 
The owner/agent will also screen applicant households for the ability to establish utility services in the name of 
at least one adult family member.  All adult applicants will be required to sign the consent for Release of 
Information from Austin Energy.   Applicant households which do not have any adult members able to establish 
service with Austin Energy will be given 7 days to resolve the issue with Austin Energy.  If the household is 
unable to do so, the application will be rejected. 

SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY   
If any member of the applicant household has been evicted from any property owned or managed by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin for lease violations within the last two years, that applicant household 
will be rejected.     
 
The owner/agent will review rental history with any landlord indicated in the past two (2) years.  The 
owner/agent will also review information provided through automated databases including eviction databases.  
The application will be rejected for any of the following: 
 

• The family has been evicted in the last five years from federally assisted housing for drug-related 
criminal activity; 

o• The family has been evicted from federally assisted housing within the past 2 years; 
o• The family has a pattern of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property or living or housekeeping 

habits at prior residences within the past two years which may adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other tenants.  

o• The family has a pattern of eviction from housing or termination from residential programs within the 
past five years (considering relevant circumstances). 

 
If the applicant fails to identify one or more residences where he/she lived in the last two (2) years, the applicant 
will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list.  An applicant who has been homeless 
can meet the requirement to identify their residence by self-certifying to their homeless status. 
 
The owner/agent will contact the prior property owner/agent (as indicated above) and inquire about the 
following information:   
 

• Adherence to the Lease & Community Policies 
• Compliance with certification reporting requirements 
• Rental Payment Performance 
• Compliance with requirements to fully and accurately disclose income information in a timely manner 
• Requirement to Return Assistance Paid in Error due to under-reporting income or un-reported income 
• Unit Maintenance/Damage 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.33" + Indent at: 
0.58", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.33" + Indent at:  0.58"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.25"

Item No. 5, page 56



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 33  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 
If any household member receives or attempts to receive HUD housing assistance while receiving HUD housing 
assistance on this property, the household member will be required to reimburse HUD for assistance paid in 
error. This is considered a material lease violation and may result in penalties up to and including eviction and 
pursuit of fraud charges.   

REJECTING INELIGIBLE OR UNQUALIFIED APPLICANTS 
 The owner/agent reserves the right to reject applicants for admission based on any of the following: 
 

• Any member of the household fails to respond to management inquiries for additional information 
during the application process 

• The owner/agent is unable to contact the applicant via US Mail (letters undeliverable or returned) 
and/or by phone (number disconnected or changed) 

• Any member of the household has a record of eviction, for lease violations, from any property managed 
by the owner/agent or HACA 

• Any member of the household has a pattern of eviction, for lease violations, from any property within 
the last two years 

• There is a pattern of outstanding or overdue payments to a previous landlord 
• There is record of outstanding or overdue payments to HUD  
• The household is unable to establish utilities in the new unit 
• The household is unable to pay the security deposit required 
• The household is unable to take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in this plan 
• The household is unable to pay the first month’s rent (TTP) 
•  

REJECTION NOTICES   
The owner/agent will promptly notify the household (Head-of-Household (HOH), in writing, within seven (7) 
days of the denial of admission or assistance. A rejection letter will be sent to the Head-of-Household via First 
Class Mail.  The rejection letter will include the reason(s) for the rejection. 

APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT 
Any applicant may make a request to appeal the denial in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the 
date of the rejection.  The owner/agent will accept the request in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Such requests are to be submitted to the Admissions 
Department in HACA’s central office building. If there is no appeal request within fifteen (15) days, the rejection 
will be considered final.  Reasons to appeal include: 
 

o• The applicant believes the decision has been made in error 
o• The applicant believes there are extenuating circumstances that should be considered 
o• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a victim of abuse covered by the Violence 

Against Women Act and the applicant feels the applicant’s status as a victim contributes to the decision 
to deny 

o• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a person with a disability, and the applicant 
believes a reasonable accommodation would allow the owner/agent to continue processing the 
application 

o• The applicant’s household was rejected because the application includes someone who is a registered 
sex offender and the applicant wishes to remove that household member 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.2", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.3" + Indent at:
 0.3", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab + Not at  0.3"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab +
Not at  0.25"

Item No. 5, page 57



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 35  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

criminal or sex offender registration records, the family, in some cases, must be given the opportunity to 
dispute the information in those records which would be the basis of the denial.  

• Scheduling an Informal Hearing 
A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the owner/agent either in 
person, by fax, by email or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 15 calendar 
days from the date of owner/agent’s notification of denial of admission.  Owner/agent will send written 
notice of the informal hearing within 30 business days of the family’s request. Owner/agent will make 
every effort to hold the hearing within 45 calendar days of receiving the request for the hearing. 

• Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]  
The informal hearing will be conducted by an appointed Hearing Officer who is a person other than the 
one who made the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 
The applicant will be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the decision of the 
owner/agent. 
 
The Hearing Officer will render a decision on whether admission should be granted or denied.  

• Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant of owner/agent’s final decision, including a brief statement of 
the reasons for the final decision. 

 
In rendering a decision, the owner/agent will evaluate the following matters: 
 

•o Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice. 
•o The validity of grounds for denial of admission. If the grounds for denial are not specified in the 

regulations or in the owner/agent’s policy, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned. See the Tenant Selection Plan for a detailed discussion of the grounds for applicant 
denial. 

•o The validity of the evidence. The owner/agent will evaluate whether the facts presented prove 
the grounds for denial of admission. If the facts prove that there are grounds for denial, and the 
denial is required by HUD, the owner/agent will uphold the decision to deny admission. 

•o If the facts prove the grounds for denial, the Hearing Officer will make the final decision to deny 
admissions. 
 

The owner/agent will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining the 
reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed to the applicant within 5 business days of the 
informal hearing.  If the applicant requests the opportunity to provide additional documentation to 
support their case, the hearing officer may adjourn the hearing in order to reconvene at a later date, 
before reaching the final decision.  If the family misses an appointment or deadline ordered by the 
hearing officer without proof of good cause, the original eligibility decision of the owner will take effect 
and another hearing will not be granted. 
The notice will be mailed within 15 calendar days of the informal hearing to the applicant and his or her 
representative, if any. 
 
If the informal hearing decision overturns the denial, processing for admission will resume. The 
owner/agent will make every effort to resume the screening process for reinstated applicants within 20 
calendar days of the hearing decision. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.5"

Item No. 5, page 58



Family PBRA / LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 44  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members as a result of an owner/agent 
required move due to rehabilitation of the unit, the owner/agent will not charge a new security deposit.  The 
security deposit from the original unit will be transferred to the new unit. 
 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members for any other reason, the 
owner/agent will charge a new security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any 
outstanding amounts for rent, fees or damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the 
family will receive an itemized bill which must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 
 
When a resident owns a pet, the original unit will be assessed for damages caused by the pet.  The pet deposit 
will be reduced by charges for those damages and the resident will be required to obtain a pet deposit balance 
of $100.00 per animal for the new unit.  The resident will be allowed to pay the new pet deposit balance due in 
$10.00 monthly payments until the $100.00 pet deposit balance is reached.  

UNIT TRANSFERS DURING THE INITIAL OCCUPANCY PERIOD OF A LIHTC PROPERTY 
The initial occupancy period of an LIHTC property begins at the date of acquisition and runs up until the 
owner/agent receives the Low Income Housing Credit Allocation and Certification (IRS Form 8609).  During this 
time, if the property consists of multiple buildings, the owner/agent will treat all unit transfers from one building 
to another building as new move-ins for purposes of the LIHTC program.  This means that the family must meet 
all LIHTC eligibility requirements to be able to move into the new unit.   
 
This requirement will expire when the owner/agent selects the option to identify each building as part of a 
multiple building project on the form 8609.  This requirement does not apply to unit transfers within the same 
building.  This requirement does not apply if the property consists of only one building. 
 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
The owner/agent must approve any new adult household member before he/she moves in to the unit.  Eligibility 
criteria, screening criteria and compliance with occupancy standards will be reviewed before the new household 
member is approved or denied.  The request to add a new household member will not be considered if the 
resident has provided notice to vacate the unit.  This helps prevent applicants from “jumping” ahead on the 
waiting list. 
 
Any new adult household member will be considered an applicant and must participate in the eligibility 
determination and screening processes described in the tenant selection plan in place at the time of the 
eligibility determination.   
 
This policy applies to live-in aides as well.  Screening criteria will also be applied to live-in aides, except for the 
criterion regarding credit performance or the ability to pay rent on time because live-in aides are not 
responsible for rental payments.  However, live in aides must meet other screening criteria established by the 
owner/agent.  Income and/or allowances received by live-in aides will not be considered.   
 
Information about new household members who are minors must be provided to the owner/agent as quickly as 
possible but within no more than thirty (30) calendar days.  If the new household member is under the age of 
six, special consideration regarding Social Security Number disclosure and verification of Social Security 

Item No. 5, page 59



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 51  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

 

APPENDIX B – VAWA POLICY 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 
 
This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect persons seeking to exercise VAWA protectins, as well as affiliated individuals (as defined by 
HUD), from being denied housing or from losing their HUD assisted housing as a consequence of their status as a 
victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating violence and/or stalking. 
 
Only residents who are assisted by a covered housing program can invoke the VAWA protections that apply 
solely to residents.  The term “resident” refers to an assisted family and the members of the household on their 
lease, but does not include guests or unreported members of a household. 
 
In addition, a live-in aide or caregiver is not a resident, unless otherwise provided by program regulations, and 
cannot invoke VAWA protections.  However, the owner/agent will consider requests for VAWA protections by 
live-in aides on a case-by-case basis.    
 
VAWA ensures that persons seeking to exercise VAWA protections  are not denied housing and housing 
assistance is not terminated solely because the person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic 
violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual assault).   
 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
Being a  person seeking to exercise VAWA protections as the result of an offense covered under the VAWA is not 
reason to waive requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in any lease attachment or HUD approved 
lease addendum unless such requirements interfere with protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections and all information provided to owner/agent 
relating to the incident(s) of abuse covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  Information will not 
be entered into any shared database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent that the disclosure is  
 

• Requested or consented to by the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 60



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 52  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

• Otherwise required by applicable law.  
 
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form.  This certification may be submitted in 
an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  The 
owner/agent will work with the applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as inviting 
them into the office to pick up the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 
 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  
• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 

service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) from whom the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking or the 
effects of the abuse.  The signatory attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to his/her belief 
that the incident in question represents bona fide abuse, and the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections as a result of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking has signed or attested to the 
documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of the certification form or other 
forms as noted above.   
 
The person seeking to exercise VAWA protections must provide such documentation within fourteen (14) days 
of the request.  The owner/agent will consider extending the deadline if requested.  The owner / agent will also 
extend the deadline if specific circumstances exist that prevent the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections from submitting the form within fourteen (14) days.    The owner /agent will consider these requests 
even if received after the 14 day deadline has passed.  The owner/agent will not deny a VAWA claim solely due 
to confusion over when the certification form is due. 
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 61



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 53  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections and the owner/agent.  
Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 

 
If the request is denied, the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections may appeal the decision 
through the grievance procedure.  The appeal meeting will be conducted by someone who was not 
involved in the original decision to deny. 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections, who lawfully occupies the home, 
to maintain tenancy.)  
 
The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.   
 
Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections, however, evictions are generally carried 
out through the court system and the owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 
 
In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 
certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.    
 
If a lease is bifurcated or if a resident is evicted from the property because of an offense covered under the 
VAWA, the person will be barred from the property. 
 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  Inviting a person evicted because of 
an offense covered under the VAWA or encouraging such person to remain on the property is a lease violation.  
The resident agrees to notify the owner/agent and/or local authorities if such person enters the property.   
       

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 62



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 54  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

EMERGENCY TRANSFER 
The owner/agent will consider an Emergency Transfer request when a person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protection sfeels that he/she is: 

• In imminent danger 
• Was sexually assaulted on the property within 90 days of the request 

 

THE OWNER WILL ACCEPT THE EMERGENCY TRANSFER REQUEST DIRECTLY FROM THE PERSON SEEKING TO EXERCISE VAWA 

PROTECTIONS OR FROM AN ADVOCATE WORKING ON THEIR BEHALF.LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
 

APPENDIX B – VAWA POLICY 
THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT (VAWA) PROVIDES PROTECTIONS TO WOMEN OR MEN WHO ARE THE VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT AND/OR STALKING.  THE OWNER/AGENT UNDERSTANDS THAT, REGARDLESS OF 
WHETHER STATE OR LOCAL LAWS PROTECT VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT AND/OR 
STALKING, PEOPLE WHO HAVE BEEN VICTIMS OF VIOLENCE HAVE CERTAIN RIGHTS UNDER THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT 
REAUTHORIZATION OF 2013. 

 

THIS POLICY IS INTENDED TO SUPPORT OR ASSIST VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT AND/OR 
STALKING AND PROTECT VICTIMS, AS WELL AS MEMBERS OF THEIR FAMILY, FROM BEING DENIED HOUSING OR FROM LOSING THEIR 
HUD ASSISTED HOUSING AS A CONSEQUENCE OF THEIR STATUS AS A VICTIM OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, DATING 
VIOLENCE AND/OR STALKING. 

 

VAWA PROTECTIONS ARE NOT PROVIDED TO GUESTS, UNAUTHORIZED RESIDENTS OR SERVICE PROVIDERS (INCLUDING LIVE-IN 
AIDES) HIRED BY THE RESIDENT.   

 

VAWA ENSURES THAT VICTIMS ARE NOT DENIED HOUSING AND HOUSING ASSISTANCE IS NOT TERMINATED SOLELY BECAUSE THE 
PERSON IS A VICTIM OF AN ACT COVERED UNDER THE VAWA (DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, STALKING AND/OR SEXUAL 
ASSAULT).   

 

HOWEVER, BEING A VICTIM OF AN ACT COVERED UNDER THE VAWA IS NOT REASON TO CHANGE THE ELIGIBILITY OR APPLICANT 
SCREENING REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE TENANT SELECTION PLAN UNLESS SUCH REQUIREMENTS INTERFERE WITH 
PROTECTIONS PROVIDED UNDER THE VAWA.  BEING A VICTIM OF AN ACT COVERED UNDER THE VAWA IS NOT REASON TO WAIVE 
REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE HUD MODEL LEASE OR IN ANY LEASE ATTACHMENT OR HUD APPROVED LEASE ADDENDUM 
UNLESS SUCH REQUIREMENTS INTERFERE WITH PROTECTIONS PROVIDED UNDER THE VAWA.   

 

THE OWNER/AGENT WILL NOT ASSUME THAT ANY ACT IS A RESULT OF ABUSE COVERED UNDER THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN 
ACT.  IN ORDER TO RECEIVE THE PROTECTIONS OUTLINED IN THE VAWA, THE APPLICANT/RESIDENT MUST SPECIFY THAT HE/SHE 
WISHES TO EXERCISE THESE PROTECTIONS.  IF ANY APPLICANT OR RESIDENT WISHES TO EXERCISE THE PROTECTIONS PROVIDED IN 
THE VAWA, HE/SHE SHOULD CONTACT THE OWNER/AGENT IMMEDIATELY.  THE OWNER/AGENT IS COMMITTED TO ENSURING 
THAT THE PRIVACY ACT IS ENFORCED IN THIS AND ALL OTHER SITUATIONS.   

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Item No. 5, page 63



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 55  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY  
THE IDENTITY OF THE VICTIM AND ALL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO OWNER/AGENT RELATING TO THE INCIDENT(S) OF ABUSE 
COVERED UNDER THE VAWA WILL BE RETAINED IN CONFIDENCE.  INFORMATION WILL NOT BE ENTERED INTO ANY SHARED 
DATABASE NOR PROVIDED TO A RELATED ENTITY, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT THE DISCLOSURE IS  

 

REQUESTED OR CONSENTED TO BY THE VICTIM IN WRITING;  

REQUIRED FOR USE IN AN EVICTION PROCEEDING OR TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE; OR  

OTHERWISE REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW.  

 

THE CERTIFICATION FORM PROVIDES NOTICE TO THE RESIDENT OF THE CONFIDENTIALITY OF THE FORM AND THE LIMITS THEREOF.  
THE OWNER/AGENT WILL RETAIN ALL DOCUMENTATION RELATING TO AN INDIVIDUAL’S DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, 
SEXUAL ASSAULT AND/OR STALKING IN A SEPARATE FILE THAT IS KEPT IN A SEPARATE SECURE LOCATION FROM OTHER APPLICANT 
OR RESIDENT FILES.  IF THE DOCUMENTATION IS STORED ELECTRONICALLY, THE OWNER/AGENT WILL KEEP THIS INFORMATION IN AN 
ELECTRONIC FILE THAT IS SEPARATE FROM THE APPLICANT OR RESIDENT FILE WITH SECURED ACCESS ONLY TO AUTHORIZED 
INDIVIDUALS. 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
WHEN THE OWNER/AGENT RESPONDS TO A REQUEST FOR PROTECTIONS PROVIDED UNDER THE VAWA THE OWNER/AGENT WILL 
REQUEST THAT AN INDIVIDUAL COMPLETE, SIGN, AND SUBMIT A CERTIFICATION FORM, WITHIN FOURTEEN (14) CALENDAR DAYS OF 
THE REQUEST.  THIS CERTIFICATION MAY BE SUBMITTED IN AN EQUALLY EFFECTIVE MANNER, AS A REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION, 
IF THERE IS THE PRESENCE OF A DISABILITY. 

 

IF NECESSARY, THE VICTIM MAY REQUEST ADDITIONAL TIME TO SUBMIT THE CERTIFICATION.  THE OWNER/AGENT WILL NOT DENY A 
VAWA CLAIM SOLELY DUE TO CONFUSION OVER WHEN THE CERTIFICATION FORM IS DUE. 

 

THE VICTIM IS NOT REQUIRED TO NAME HIS/HER ABUSER IF DOING SO WOULD RESULT IN IMMINENT THREAT OR IF THE VICTIM DOES 
NOT KNOW THE NAME OF HIS/HER ABUSER. 

 

THE OWNER/AGENT UNDERSTANDS THAT THE DELIVERY OF THE CERTIFICATION FORM TO THE APPLICANT/RESIDENT VIA MAIL MAY 
PLACE THE VICTIM AT RISK, (E.G., THE ABUSER MAY MONITOR THE MAIL).  THE OWNER/AGENT WILL WORK WITH THE 
APPLICANT/RESIDENT IN MAKING ACCEPTABLE DELIVERY ARRANGEMENTS, SUCH AS INVITING THEM INTO THE OFFICE TO PICK UP 
THE CERTIFICATION FORM OR MAKING OTHER DISCREET ARRANGEMENTS. 

 

IF THE APPLICANT/RESIDENT HAS SOUGHT ASSISTANCE IN ADDRESSING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT 
AND/OR STALKING FROM A FEDERAL, STATE, TRIBAL, TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION, LOCAL POLICE OR COURT, THE 
APPLICANT/RESIDENT MAY SUBMIT WRITTEN PROOF OF THIS OUTREACH IN LIEU OF THE CERTIFICATION FORM.  THE OWNER/AGENT 
MAY ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING: 

 

A FEDERAL, STATE, TRIBAL, TERRITORIAL, OR LOCAL POLICE RECORD OR COURT RECORD OR  

Item No. 5, page 64



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 56  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

DOCUMENTATION SIGNED AND ATTESTED TO BY A PROFESSIONAL (EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR VOLUNTEER OF A VICTIM SERVICE 
PROVIDER, AN ATTORNEY, MEDICAL PERSONNEL, ETC.) FROM WHOM THE VICTIM HAS SOUGHT ASSISTANCE IN ADDRESSING 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE AND/OR STALKING OR THE EFFECTS OF THE ABUSE.  THE SIGNATORY ATTESTS UNDER 
PENALTY OF PERJURY (28 U.S.C. §1746) TO HIS/HER BELIEF THAT THE INCIDENT IN QUESTION REPRESENTS BONA FIDE ABUSE, AND 
THE VICTIM OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE AND/OR STALKING HAS SIGNED OR ATTESTED TO THE DOCUMENTATION. 

 

IF THE APPLICANT IS CURRENTLY LIVING IN A SHELTER ESTABLISHED TO PROTECT VICTIMS OF VIOLENCE COVERED UNDER THE 
VAWA, THE OWNER/AGENT WILL ACCEPT VERIFICATION OF SUCH LIVING ARRANGEMENT IN LIEU OF ADDITIONAL VERIFICATION.   

 

TO ENSURE THAT A PERSON IS NOT WRONGLY ACCUSED OF COMMITTING AN ACT COVERED UNDER THE VAWA, THE 
OWNER/AGENT WILL CAREFULLY EVALUATE ABUSE CLAIMS AS TO AVOID DENIAL, TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE, TERMINATION OF 
TENANCY OR EVICTION BASED ON FALSE OR UNSUBSTANTIATED ACCUSATIONS. 

 

THE APPLICANT/RESIDENT IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION TO THE OWNER/AGENT NO MORE THAN TEN 
(10) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER SUBMITTING THE CERTIFICATION TO THE OWNER/AGENT.  IF THE VICTIM IS UNABLE TO PROVIDE 
REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION WITHIN THE REQUIRED TIMEFRAME, THE OWNER/AGENT WILL DENY THE REQUEST. 

 

THE OWNER/AGENT WILL REVIEW AND RESPOND TO REQUESTS TO EXERCISE PROTECTIONS PROVIDED UNDER THE VAWA WITHIN 
TEN (10) BUSINESS DAYS OF RECEIVING ALL REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION.  THE OWNER/AGENT MAY PROVIDE THE RESPONSE IN 
ANY MANNER ACCEPTABLE TO THE VICTIM AND THE OWNER/AGENT.  RESPONSES INCLUDE: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST 

DENIAL OF THE REQUEST 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
IF THE OWNER/AGENT DETERMINES THAT PHYSICAL ABUSE CAUSED BY A RESIDENT IS CLEAR AND PRESENT, THE LAW PROVIDES THE 
OWNER/AGENT WITH THE AUTHORITY TO BIFURCATE A LEASE (I.E., REMOVE, EVICT, OR TERMINATE HOUSING ASSISTANCE TO ANY 
ABUSER, WHILE ALLOWING THE VICTIM, WHO LAWFULLY OCCUPIES THE HOME, TO MAINTAIN TENANCY.)  

 

THE OWNER/AGENT MAY ATTEMPT TO EVICT THE ABUSER, BUT RESIDENTS SHOULD KNOW THAT STATE/LOCAL TENANT/LANDLORD 
LAWS PREVAIL AND THE OWNER/AGENT MUST COMPLY WITH SUCH LAWS.  THE OWNER/AGENT CANNOT GUARANTEE THAT A 
COURT WILL AWARD OR ENFORCE AN EVICTION.   

 

OWNER/AGENTS MUST KEEP IN MIND THAT THE EVICTION OF OR THE TERMINATION ACTION AGAINST THE INDIVIDUAL MUST BE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES PRESCRIBED BY FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAW.  THE OWNER/AGENT IS COMMITTED TO 
ATTEMPTING TO ASSIST THE VICTIM, HOWEVER, EVICTIONS ARE GENERALLY CARRIED OUT THROUGH THE COURT SYSTEM AND THE 
OWNER/AGENT CANNOT OVERRIDE OR CIRCUMVENT A LEGAL DECISION. 

 

IN THE EVENT THAT ONE HOUSEHOLD MEMBER IS REMOVED FROM THE UNIT BECAUSE OF ENGAGING IN ACTS OF DOMESTIC 

Item No. 5, page 65



Pathways At Georgian Manor Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 57  of 57 Effective 12/1/2016 
 

VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT AND/OR STALKING AGAINST ANOTHER HOUSEHOLD MEMBER, AN APPROPRIATE 
CERTIFICATION WILL BE PROCESSED REFLECTING THE CHANGE IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION.  SPECIAL CONSIDERATION WILL BE 
GIVEN IF THE REMAINING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS ARE NOT QUALIFIED TO REMAIN IN THE UNIT AS A “REMAINING HOUSEHOLD 
MEMBER”.    

CRIMINAL ACTS 
VICTIMS ARE ENCOURAGED TO SEEK POLICE/LEGAL PROTECTION FROM THEIR ABUSER.  IN SOME CASES, THE OWNER/AGENT MAY 
FILE A RESTRAINING ORDER AGAINST THE ABUSER TO PREVENT THE ABUSER FROM ENTERING THE PROPERTY.  IF THERE IS A 
RESTRAINING ORDER AGAINST THE ABUSER AND THE RESIDENT WILLINGLY ALLOWS OR INVITES THE ABUSER ONTO THE PREMISES, 
THE OWNER/AGENT MAY SEEK TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE AND/OR TENANCY.   

 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGULATION AT 24 CFR 5.861, THE OWNER/AGENT MAY TERMINATE TENANCY AND EVICT THE TENANT 
THROUGH JUDICIAL ACTION FOR CRIMINAL ACTIVITY BY A COVERED PERSON IF THE LANDLORD DETERMINES THAT THE COVERED 
PERSON HAS ENGAGED IN THE CRIMINAL ACTIVITY, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE COVERED PERSON HAS BEEN ARRESTED, OR 
CONVICTED FOR SUCH ACTIVITY AND WITHOUT SATISFYING A CRIMINAL STANDARD OF PROOF OF THE ACTIVITY.   

 

THE OWNER/AGENT WILL TAKE INTO ACCOUNT INDIVIDUAL CIRCUMSTANCES WHEN MAKING A DETERMINATION TO TERMINATE 
TENANCY; SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES MIGHT INCLUDE, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE SERIOUSNESS OF THE OFFENDING ACTION, THE 
EXTENT OF PARTICIPATION BY THE LEASEHOLDER IN THE OFFENDING ACTION, AND WHETHER THE LEASEHOLDER, IF NOT THE 
WRONGDOER, TOOK ALL FEASIBLE STEPS TO PREVENT THE OFFENDING ACTION FROM OCCURRING AND HAS REMOVED THE 
OFFENDING PERSON FROM THE LEASE OR OTHERWISE BANNED THE OFFENDING PERSON FROM THE PREMISES IN THE FUTURE.         

LEASE ADDENDUM 
ANY HUD APPROVED LEASE ADDENDUM WILL BE IMPLEMENTED AND PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH HUD GUIDANCE.  

  
 

Item No. 5, page 66



Exhibit 4 

Item No. 5, page 67



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 1  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

 
 

Pathways at  
A Subsidiary of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin 

 
 
 

Tenant Selection Plan 
 

Project Based Rental Assistance & 
Low Income Housing Tax Credit 

Housing for Elderly 
& People with Disabilities 

  
 

 

Item No. 5, page 68



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 7  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

SUBSIDY 
Residents at this property are offered subsidized rent.  This means the rent that a household pays is based upon 
the household income.  The family will pay 30% of their adjusted household income, 10% of their gross 
household income or $25 – whichever is higher.  The balance of the contract rent is subsidized by the Federal 
Government.  The rent amounts paid by residents may vary.   

TENANT-BASED VOUCHERS 
The owner/agent may not admit an applicant with a voucher to a unit with Project Based Rental Assistance 
unless the applicant agrees to surrender the voucher assistance prior to occupancy.  This will be verified with the 
former housing provider. 
 
Please note that housing assistance provided through HUD’s multi-family housing program is not the same as 
the housing assistance provided through the voucher program.  If a family moves out, the housing subsidy will 
not move with the family as it does with a voucher.   

ASSISTED LIVING 
This is not an assisted living property.  The owner/agent and property staff do not provide, nor have the 
authority to provide, any personal care or personal supervision services.  All care and supervision services must 
be provided by the resident or aides supervised by the resident or the resident’s representative(s).   The 
owner/agent and property staff do not provide assistance with personal activities or daily living.   

FAIR HOUSING POLICIES 

FAIR HOUSING 
The owner/agent will not discriminate in any of the following ways: 
 

• Deny to any household the opportunity to apply for housing, nor deny to any eligible applicant the   
opportunity to lease housing suitable to its needs, 

• Provide housing which is different than that provided others,  
• Subject a person to segregation or disparate treatment, 
• Restrict a person’s access to any benefit enjoyed by others in connection with the housing program,  
• Treat a person differently in determining eligibility or other requirements for admission, 
• Deny a person access to the same level or services, or 
• Deny a person the opportunity to participate in a planning or advisory group which is an integral part of 

the housing program. 
 
The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing and housing related transactions based on race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, disability, and familial status.  In addition, the city of Austin has added Fair Housing 
protections based on creed, student status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and age. 
 
This development will comply with state and federal fair housing and antidiscrimination laws; including, but not 
limited to, consideration of reasonable accommodations requested to complete the application process.  
Chapter 1, Subchapter B of Title 10: Community Development Part 1: Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs  provides more detail about reasonable accommodations.   In addition, applicants can 
request a copy of the owner/agent’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy. 
 

Item No. 5, page 69



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 8  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

Screening criteria will be applied in a amanner consistent with all applicable laws, including the Texas and 
Fedreal Fair Housing Acts, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act, program guidelines and the Texas Department 
of Housing and Community Affairs rules. 
 
Specific animal, breed, number, weight restrictions, pet rules and pet deposits will not apply to households 
having a qualified service / assistance animal(s).  For more information, applicants can request a copy of the 
owner/agent’s Assistance Animals Policy. 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
The owner/agent complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance from HUD. 

SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
The owner/agent complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which prohibits discrimination, 
based on the presence of a disability in all programs or activities operated by recipients of federal financial 
assistance.   
Although Section 504 protections often overlap with the disability discrimination prohibitions included in the 
Fair Housing Act, Section 504 differs in that it imposes broader affirmative obligations to make their programs, 
as a whole, accessible to persons with disabilities.   

• Coordinating Efforts to Comply with Section 504 Requirements 
The owner/agent has designated a person to address questions or requests regarding the specific needs 
of residents and applicants with disabilities.  This person is referred to as the Section 504 Coordinator.   

 
Name of Section 504 Coordinator: Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Address:   1124 S IH 35, Austin, TX 78704 

Phone Number:  (512) 477-4488 

TDD/TTY Number: 1-800-735-2989 Or 711 Voice Relay  

• Requests for Reasonable Accommodation or Modification 
In accordance with the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the owner/agent will 
make reasonable accommodations or modifications for individuals with disabilities (applicants or 
residents) unless these modifications would change the fundamental nature of the housing program or 
result in undue financial and administrative burden.   
 
The owner / agent has a Reasonable Accommodations Policy which explains the eligibility and the 
process for making a request.  The owner/agent will provide an individual with a copy of the Reasonable 
Accommodation Policy upon request.   

PRIVACY POLICY 
It is the policy of the owner/agent to guard the privacy of individuals conferred by the Federal Privacy Act of 
1974 and to ensure the protection of such individuals' records maintained by the owner/agent.   
 
Neither the property owner/agent nor its agents shall disclose any personal information contained in its records 
to any person or agency, other than HUD, its Contract Administrators or other federal/state entity or investor 
auditing entities, unless the individual about whom information is requested gives written consent to such 
disclosure.  Such consent may be provided in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable accommodation, 
when there is the presence of a disability. 

Item No. 5, page 70



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 9  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

 
This Privacy Policy in no way limits the owner/agent's ability to collect such information to determine eligibility, 
compute rent, or determine an applicant's suitability for tenancy.   

COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS IN THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 
The owner/agent understands that, regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain 
protections provided through the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013).   
 
If any applicant wishes to exercise the protections provided in the VAWA 2013, he/she should contact the 
owner/agent immediately.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the VAWA 2013.  In order to 
receive the protections outlined in the VAWA 2013, the applicant/applicant must specify that he/she wishes to 
exercise these protections.   
 
The owner/agent will provide an individual with a copy of the VAWA Policy upon request. 

THE EQUAL ACCESS RULE 
The owner/agent ensures that HUD's core housing programs are open to all eligible persons regardless of sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in accordance with The Equal Access Rule. 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
The owner / agent is required to determine whether applicants are eligible to occupy the subsidized property 
and receive housing assistance.  Eligibility is divided into property eligibility and program eligibility.  Eligibility is 
determined based on the applicable Federal and State regulations that govern the property and programs.   
 
For HUD programs, eligibility is determined at move-in or initial certification.  Thereafter, eligibility is only 
reviewed for student status or to determine if a remaining family member is eligible to remain. 
 

PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY DEFINITION 

• Household/Resident Type 
This multi-family PBRA & LIHTC property is designed to provide housing to elderly and disabled families 
who meet the eligibility and screening requirements.  In order for a family/household to meet the 
“family type” eligibility requirements, the head-of-household, the co-head-of-household or a spouse 
must be  
o 62 or older or  
o Disabled as defined by HUD. 

 
• Definition of Disabled Family. A disabled family is a family whose head, spouse, or sole member is a 

person with disabilities. 
 

• Definition of Person with Disabilities: A person with disabilities for purposes of program eligibility: 
o Means a person who 
 Has a disability, as defined in 42 U.S.C. 423; 

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal

Item No. 5, page 71



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 10  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

 Inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 
determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or 
which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 
months; or 

 In the case of an individual who has attained the age of 55 and is blind, inability by reason of 
such blindness to engage in substantial gainful activity requiring skills or abilities comparable 
to those of any gainful activity in which he/she has previously engaged with some regularity 
and over a substantial period of time.  For the purposes of this definition, the term 
blindness, as defined in section 416(i)(1) of this title, means central vision acuity of 20/200 
or less in the better eye with use of a correcting lens.  An eye which is accompanied by a 
limitation in the fields of vision such that the widest diameter of the visual field subtends an 
angle no greater than 20 degrees shall be considered for the purposes of this paragraph as 
having a central visual acuity of 20/200 or less. 

 Is determined, pursuant to HUD regulations, to have a physical, mental, or emotional 
impairment that: 
 Is expected to be of long-continued and indefinite duration, 
 Substantially impedes his or her ability to live independently, and 
 Is of such a nature that the ability to live independently could be improved by more suitable 

housing conditions; or 
 Has a developmental disability, as defined in Section 102(7) of the Developmental Disabilities 

Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (42 U.S.C. 6001(8)), i.e., a person with a severe chronic disability 
that 
 Is attributable to a mental or physical impairment or combination of mental and physical 

impairments; 
 Is manifested before the person attains age 22; 
 Is likely to continue indefinitely; 
 Results in substantial functional limitation in three or more of the following areas of major life 

activity: 
 Self-care, 
 Receptive and expressive language, 
 Learning, 
 Mobility, 
 Self-direction, 
 Capacity for independent living, and 
 Economic self-sufficiency; and 
 Reflects the person’s need for a combination and sequence of special, interdisciplinary, or 

generic care, treatment, or other services that are of lifelong or extended duration and are 
individually planned and coordinated. 

o Does not exclude persons who have the disease of acquired immunodeficiency syndrome or any 
conditions arising from the etiologic agent for acquired immunodeficiency syndrome; 

o For purposes of qualifying for low-income housing, does not include a person whose disability is 
based solely on any drug or alcohol dependence; and 

o Means person with disabilities (individual with handicaps), as defined in 24 CFR 8.3, for purposes of 
reasonable accommodation and program accessibility for persons with disabilities 

 
Note: A person whose sole impairment is alcoholism or drug addiction (i.e., who does not have a 
developmental disability, chronic mental illness, or physical disability that is the disabling condition 
required for eligibility in a particular project) will not be considered to be disabled for the purposes of 

Item No. 5, page 72



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 11  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

the Project Based Rental Assistance program. 
 

o Definition of Nonelderly Disabled (Handicapped) Family.  
A nonelderly disabled (handicapped) family means a disabled family in which the head of the family 
(and/or spouse, if any) is less than 62 years of age at the time of the family's initial occupancy of a 
project. 

• Income Limits 
Income limits vary by program type (PBRA or LIHTC) and household size.  The owner/agent will provide 
applicants a copy of the income limits for the property area upon request.  In addition, applicants can 
review the income limits by accessing the following web site.  http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html.   
 
HUD requires that the owner/agent incorporate the most recently published income limits when 
determining eligibility.  The IRS “hold harmless” rule states that if the income limits go down, the 
property can maintain the highest level of income limits in effect after the property was placed 
in service with tax credits. 
 
This property is a layered property with all units required to meet both the PBRA and LIHTC income limit 
requirements.  Both income limits are based off a percentage of the median family income for the 
Austin – Round Rock – San Marcos metropolitan statistical area.  Since the LIHTC income limit is lower, 
by default it becomes the effective income limit for the property. 
 
 
 
 
 
For this property, qualified applicant households must meet the following income limit requirements: 

 
Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

  Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA)   Low – 80% of median income 

        
        Subsidy Type of Income Limit 

  Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)   Low – 60% of median family income 
 

 

• Occupancy Standards 

AMFI % 
Number of Household Members 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
80 $43,600 $49,800 $56,050 $62,250 $67,250 $72,250 $77,200 $82,200 

AMFI % 
Number of Household Members 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

60 $  32,700 $  37,380 $  42,060 $  46,680 $  50,460 $  54,180 $  57,900 $  61,620 

Item No. 5, page 73

http://www.huduser.org/datasets/il.html


Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 12  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

Occupancy standards serve to prevent the over-utilization or under-utilization of units that can result in 
an inefficient use of housing funding.  Occupancy standards also ensure that residents are treated fairly 
and consistently and receive adequate housing space.   
 
Below, please find this property’s occupancy standards description:   
 

Number                                   
of Bedrooms 

Min. # Household 
Members 

Max.  # Household 
Members 

0 1 1 
1 1 2 
2 2 4 

 
o Generally there is a maximum of two people per bedroom.  The owner/agent does not determine 

who shares a bedroom. 
o The owner/agent allows for occupancy of fewer than 2 persons (over the age of 6) per bedroom for 

the following reasons: 
o The small size of the bedrooms and units;  
o To allow the family to determine what is best for their situation in accordance with best 

practices for Fair Housing. 
o The family is given the choice of which bedroom size is appropriate for their family, as long as the 

number of family members is within the range listed in the chart above. 
o Once the family has selected an eligible bedroom size they will be placed on the waiting list for that 

bedroom size.  Changes to the bedroom size cannot be made unless a qualifying event occurs.  
Qualifying events include: 

o Changes in the family composition (removing or adding household members) which result in 
the family no longer being eligible for the chosen bedroom size. 

o Changes in the ages of the children, resulting  in two children of the opposite sex, with one 
at least seven (7) years of age.  These children will not be required to share a bedroom,  

o Changes in family composition adding persons of different generations (grandparent,  
grandchild, parent, etc).  These family members will not be required to share a bedroom. 

o Need for a different bedroom size as a reasonable accommodation for a disability. 
o Authorized live-in aides will be allocated a separate bedroom. No additional bedrooms will be 

provided for the live-in aide’s family. 
o Anticipated children will be included.  Anticipated children include: 

o Children expected to be born to a pregnant woman; 
o Children in process of being adopted by an adult family member; 
o Children whose custody is being obtained by an adult family member; 
o Foster children who will reside in the unit; 
o Children who are temporarily in a foster home who will return to the family; and 
o Children in joint custody arrangements who are present in the household 50% or more of 

the time. 
o A household that contains a family member (not the head of household or spouse) who is enrolled 

as a full-time student at an institution of higher learning and who is on the lease will be counted for 
the purposes of establishing occupancy standards for unit size if: 

o the family member is enrolled and actively attending a two-year or four-year college or 
university; and 

o the family member resides in the public housing unit during school breaks and holidays. 
 

Formatted

Item No. 5, page 74



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 13  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

Any household placed in a unit size different from that defined in these Occupancy Standards shall agree 
to transfer to an appropriate size unit at the same property when one becomes available.  Once an 
appropriate size unit is offered to the family, they have 30 days to complete the transfer or lose their 
subsidy. 

• Rent Limits 
 The following are the contract rents for this property: 
  

Contract 
Rents 

 

Project Based Rental Assistance Program 

 

Number of Bedrooms 

0 1 2 3 4 5     

 
$817  $876  $1,051  $1,214  $1,354  $1,494      

  
  
 For the PBRA program, residents pay 30% of their adjusted income for rent, even if this amount  
 exceeds the contract rent.  This amount is adjusted downward by a utility allowance for any 
 utilites that are paid by the resident directly to the utility provider.   
  

 If assistance is terminated, but the resident is allowed to remain living on the property, the  
 resident will pay the contract rent.   
  
 The maximum amount of rent that can be paid by the resident is set by the LIHTC rent limits.   
 The following are the rent limits for this property: 

  

RENT LIMITS 
 

Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program 

AMFI 
% 

Number of Bedrooms 

0 1 2 3 4 5     

60 $817  $876  $1,051  $1,214  $1,354  $1,494      
  

• Verifying the Need for an Accessible Unit  
When an applicant requests an accessible unit or a unit preference, such as a first floor unit, the 
owner/agent will conduct inquiries to: 

 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified for the unit, which is only available to persons with a disability 

or to persons with a particular type of disability 
o Verify that the applicant needs the features of the unit as an accommodation to his or her disability 
o Verify that the applicant is qualified to receive a priority on the waiting list available to persons with 

a disability or to persons with a particular type of disability 
 

Verification of this information can be provided by any person who has reasonable knowledge of the 
family’s need for this accommodation. 

Formatted: (none)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: 7 pt

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal

Item No. 5, page 75



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 16  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

 
Applicants who claim eligible immigration status must provide documentation to support that status.  
See appendix A for more information. 
 
Citizenship eligibility must be reviewed after move-in if eligibility status can change.  If any household 
member is determined to be an ineligible non-citizen, either at application or after move-in, assistance 
and/or tenancy may be denied, terminated or prorated as appropriate.  

• Single Residence/Subsidy Criteria 
A household is eligible for assistance only if the unit will be the household’s only residence.  The 
owner/agent will not knowingly assist applicants who will maintain a residence in addition to the HUD-
assisted unit.   
 
Applicants must disclose if they are currently receiving HUD housing assistance.  Residents can only 
receive subsidy for one unit/residence at a time.  This prohibition does not prevent a person who is 
currently receiving assistance from applying for an assisted unit in another property.   
 
If, for any reason, an applicant moves in to this property before moving out of another subsidized unit, 
the new resident will be required to pay market rent until the move out from the previous property is 
complete and the resident is eligible to receive HUD subsidy for this property.  Assistance in the new 
unit will begin, if the household is still eligible, the day after assistance ends for the previous unit.   
 
There is an exception to this rule.  Children in joint custody arrangements can receive HUD housing 
assistance in two units when both parent/guardian families receive HUD housing assistance.  However, 
only one household may use the dependent deduction to determine adjusted income.  In these cases, 
additional verification is required.  The owner/agent will request: 

 
o Verification of the custody/guardianship/living arrangement  
o Verification of the use of the deduction.  The owner/agent will verify use of the dependent 

deduction with the other owner/agent if : 
 The child will live in the unit at least 50% of the time and  
 The parent wishes to claim the deduction, and  
 Both families are receiving HUD housing assistance 

 
There is a second exception to this.  If a member of an existing household leaves that household to 
establish their own unit, HUD allows for a temporary overlap of subsidy (not to exceed 60 days) to allow 
for the interim recertification to go into effect for the original household. 

• Eligibility of Students Enrolled at an Institute for Higher Education  
Student eligibility is determined at move-in/initial certification and at each annual certification.  Student 
eligibility may also be reviewed at interim certification if student status has changed since the last 
certification. All adult students are required to report any change in their student status.  
 
A student who is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the 
student meets the criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall be provided to any individual who 
is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the purpose 
of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational credential; when 
the student: 

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Item No. 5, page 76



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 17  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

A student who is otherwise eligible and meets screening requirements is eligible for assistance if the 
student meets the criteria indicated below.  Section 8 assistance shall not be provided to any individual 
who: 
 
o Is living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance   
o Is individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance and has parents who are income eligible to 

receive Section 8 assistance.   
o Is a veteran of the United States military;   
o Is married;   
o Has a dependent other than a spouse (e.g. dependent child);   
o Is at least 24 years of age;   
o Is a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in section 3(b)(3)(E) of the 1937 Act and was 

receiving assistance under section 8 of the 1937 Act as of November 30, 2005;   
o Is classified as Vulnerable Youth;  A student meets HUD’s definition of a vulnerable youth when: 

a. The individual is an orphan, in foster care, or a ward of the court or was an orphan, in foster 
care, or a ward of the court at any time when the individual was 13 years of age of older;  

b. The individual is, or was immediately prior to attaining the age of majority, an emancipated 
minor or in legal guardianship as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in the 
individual’s State of legal residence;  

c. The individual has been verified during the school year in which the application is submitted as 
either an unaccompanied youth who is a homeless child or youth (as such terms are defined in 
section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act) (42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq.), or as 
unaccompanied, at risk of homelessness, and self-supporting, by 

1. A local educational agency homeless liaison, designated pursuant to the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act;  

2. The director of a program funded under the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act or a 
designee of the director;  

3. The director of a program funded under subtitle B of title IV of the McKinney-Vento 
Homeless Assistance Act (relating to emergency shelter grants) or a designee of the 
director; or  

4.  A financial aid administrator; or  
o The individual is a student for whom a financial aid administrator makes a documented 

determination of independence by reason of other unusual circumstances 
o Is enrolled as either a part-time or full-time student at an institution of higher education for the 

purpose of obtaining a degree, certificate, or other program leading to a recognized educational 
credential; and 

o Is under the age of 24; and 
o Is not married; and 
o Is not a veteran of the United States Military; and 
o Does not have a dependent child; and 
o Is not a person with disabilities, as such term is defined in 3(b)(3)(E) of the United States Housing Act 

of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E)) and was not receiving section 8 assistance as of November 30, 
2005; and 

o Is not living with his or her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance; and 
o Is not individually eligible to receive Section 8 assistance or has parents (the parents individually or 

jointly) who are not income eligible to receive Section 8 assistance.   
 

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Aligned at:  0.75"
+ Tab after:  1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 8 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0.5" + Indent
at:  0.5", Tab stops:  0.75", List tab + Not at 
0.5"

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Item No. 5, page 77



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan  

Page 18  of 56  Effective 12/1/2016Updated 6/1/2017  

If a student does not meet the eligibility criteria above, but can prove independence from parents under 
HUD rules, then the student would meet HUD’s student eligibility criteria.  Please see property staff if 
you need additional information about proving independence from parents.   

  
If an ineligible student applies for or is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, 
the assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated.NOTE:  Unless the student 
can demonstrate his or her independence from parents, the student must be eligible to receive Project 
Based Rental Assistance (PBRA)and the parents (individually or jointly) must be eligible (income eligible) 
to receive PBRA assistance in order for the student to receive PBRA assistance. 
For a student to be eligible independent of his or her parents (where the income of the parents is not 
relevant), the student must demonstrate independence from, parents.  While owner/agents may use 
additional criteria for determining the student’s independence from parents, owner/agents must use, 
and the student must meet, at a minimum all of the following criteria to be eligible for Section 8 
assistance.  The student must: 

 
o Be of legal contract age under state law; 
o Have established a household separate from parents or legal guardians for at least one year prior to 

application for occupancy, or, meet the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of an independent 
student.   

o Not be claimed as a dependent by parents or legal guardians pursuant to IRS regulations; and 
o Obtain a certification of the amount of financial assistance that will be provided by parents, signed 

by the individual providing the support.  This certification is required even if no assistance will be 
provided. 

o If an ineligible student is a member of an existing household receiving Section 8 assistance, the 
assistance for the household will not be prorated but will be terminated  

 
NOTE:  An owner/agent cannot evict or require an ineligible student to move from a unit as long as the 
student is in compliance with the terms of the lease. 
 
Any financial assistance a student receives (1) under the Higher Education Act of 1965, (2) from private 
sources, or (3) from an institution of higher education that is in excess of amounts received for tuition 
shall be considered income to that individual, except for: 

 
o A personstudent 24 years of age or older with dependent children as defined by HUD or  
o A personstudent living with his/her parents who are receiving Section 8 assistance. 

 
The definition of tuition is consistent with the definition provided by the Department of Education and 
includes all tuition plus mandatory course-related fees associated with being enrolled at that institution 
of higher education.  This does not include the cost of books. 

• Additional Tax Credit Eligibility Requirements for Students Enrolled at an Institute of Higher 
Education 
Households composed entirely of full-time students are not eligible for tax credit program unless they 
meet one of these 5 criteria:   
 
o Married and filing a joint tax return or eligible to file a joint tax return, or  
o Single parent, at least 1 child, neither of whom is a dependent on another person's tax return, 

except for the return of the other parent of the child, or  
o Receiving welfare or TANF, or  

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Item No. 5, page 78



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 19  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

o Participating in job-training program funded through Workforce Investment Act, or 
o Household member was a participant in the foster care program. 

• Prohibition of Assistance to Noncitizen Students   
Noncitizen students and their noncitizen families may not receive assistance.  Noncitizen students are 
not eligible for continuation of assistance or temporary deferral of termination of assistance.  A 
noncitizen student is defined as an individual who is as follows: 
 
o A resident of another country to which the individual intends to return; 
o A bona fide student pursuing a course of study in the United States; and 
o A person admitted to the United States solely for the purpose of pursuing a course of study as 

indicated on an F-1 or M-1 student visa.  
 
This prohibition applies to the noncitizen student’s noncitizen spouse and noncitizen children. However, 
spouses and children who are U.S. citizens may receive assistance.  For example, a family that includes a 
noncitizen student married to a U.S. citizen is a mixed family. 

PROCEDURES FOR TAKING PRE-APPLICATIONS & APPLICATIONS 
Applications for housing at this property are only received online or at the owner/agent’s office location.  
Applications are not received at the property management office. 
 
It is the owner/agent's policy to accept and process applications in accordance with HUD guidance.  The 
owner/agent will make a reasonable accommodation to assist in the application process if the applicant or any 
member of the applicant household is disabled. 

PRE-APPLICATIONS 
Applicants will first complete a pre-application to have their name placed on the waiting list for housing at 
[name of property].  Pre-applications can be submitted on the internet at 
www.austin.apply4housing.comhacaapply.org  from any device with internet access (including smartphone, 
tablet, desktop or other device).  For a list of local places with free internet access please contact HACA.  The 
owner/agent will also accept the application in an equally effective format, as a reasonable accommodation, if 
there is the presence of a disability.   Please contact HACA to request that accommodation. 
  
The entire pre-application must be completed in full and submitted before the applicant will be placed on the 
waiting list.  Confirmation of successful submission will be provided by the online application portal if all 
requirements are met.  
 
Due to long waiting lists and depending on the preferences for which an applicant family may qualify, the time 
spent on the waiting list may be anywhere from several months to several years.  While waiting on the waiting 
list, applicants may check the status of their application by creating an account at 
www.myhaca.orghttps://austin.ourpha.com/applicants.  In this applicant portal, applicants can update their 
contact information, report changes to their application and check the status of their application.  It is the 
applicant’s responsibility to keep all contact information current. 

• Incomplete Pre-Applications 
Electronic submissions of pre-applications cannot be submitted if they are incomplete.  For pre-
applications accepted by an alternate means, if the pre-application is not complete, the owner/agent 

Field Code Changed

Item No. 5, page 79

http://www.hacaapply.org/
http://www.myhaca.org/
http://www.myhaca.org/


Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 20  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

will attempt to contact the applicant to obtain missing information.  The applicant will have ten (10) 
business days to respond and provide missing information.  If the applicant fails to provide required 
information within the ten (10) day period, the owner/agent will return the application. 

• Preliminary Determination of Applicant Eligibility 
Information needed to determine applicant eligibility shall be obtained, verified, and the determination 
of applicant eligibility performed, in accordance with HUD, IRS and property eligibility requirements.  
Upon receipt of the completed pre-application, the owner/agent will make a preliminary eligibility 
determination before adding a household to the waiting list or initiating final eligibility tasks.  The 
owner/agent will review the pre-application to ensure that there are no obvious factors that would 
make the applicant ineligible.  Obvious factors include, but are not limited to: 
 
o Owing a debt to the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (any property or program) that is still 

within the 4 year statute of limitations; 
o Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 5 years for drug 

related criminal activity; 
o Having been evicted (or vacated in lieu of eviction) from any HACA program within 2 years for any 

reason other than drug related activity; 
o The head of household on the application is currently a head of household living at this property; 
o Having been denied admission to this program within the past 12 months for criminal history, 

derogatory rental history, unreported income or fraud at any property owned and administered by 
the Housing Authority of the City of Austin. 

o Having rejected a housing offer for a unit of the same size at the same property within the last 12 
months. 

 
If an applicant is preliminarily ineligible, within seven (7) days the owner/agent will send a notice to the 
applicant indicating that they are not eligible, including the reason(s) why they were determined 
ineligible and stating the family’s rights to appeal the decision.  This action will be completed in 
agreement with the owner/agent’s Grievance and Appeals Policy which is available to the applicant 
upon request. 
 
If a preliminary eligibility review indicates that a household is preliminarily eligible for tenancy, but units 
of appropriate size are not available, the owner / agent will place the household on the waiting list for 
the property and notify the household when their name comes to the top of the waiting list. 
 
If an applicant is otherwise eligible but no appropriate unit exists in the property, the owner / agent will 
reject the pre-application. 
 
The owner / agent will notify the applicant family if their pre-application is rejected for any reason.  

APPLICATIONS 
When the applicant family reaches the top of the waiting list, they will receive an invitation by mail to come to 
an eligibility interview.   
 

• Applicant families can receive up to 32 invitations to attend an eligibility interview. 
• If a family does not attend the scheduled appointment, a notice will be sent to the family and their 

name will be withdrawn from the waiting list.  If the family responds within fifteen (15) calendar days of 

Item No. 5, page 80



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 21  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

the notice and requests to be rescheduled, they will be placed back on the waiting list with their same 
date and time.the family will be given one opportunity to reschedule.   

• Once the family misses their thirdsecond scheduled appointment, they are no longer eligible to be 
placed back onwill be removed from the waiting list.  The family will be required to submit a new 
application and start the process from the beginning. 

 
During the eligibility interview process, the applicant family will complete a full application.  All documents in 
the Application Package must be completed in full, signed and dated in order to be accepted.  All adult 
applicants must complete the application package as instructed.      
 
Upon request, the owner/agent will provide interested parties with a copy of the application package.   
The person who is indicated as the Head-of-Household (HOH) must execute and sign all documents that are 
included in the application package.  Before completing or executing any forms, additional copies should be 
made for all adult household members and in some cases for minors who will live in the unit.   
 
The owner/agent will require applicants to provide several documents as verification and proof of eligibility for 
housing.  These will include: 
 

• A government issued photo ID - used for verifying the identity of all applicants.  A birth certificate or 
other government issued document which includes the applicant’s name and date of birth – used to 
verify the age of all applicant family members. 

• Proof of citizenship – which may include a US birth certificate, US passport or other government issued 
documents demonstrating citizenship. 

• Proof of immigration status (if applicable) -  which may include a permanent resident card, employment 
authorization card, I-94 visa or other government issued document indicating valid immigration status. 

• A Social Security card or any other government issued document including the name and full SSN of all 
applicants. 

• Verification of all sources of income, including (but not limited to) check stubs for employment, SS / SSI 
award letters, VA Pension award letters, TANF award letter, proof of child support and verification of 
asset income. 

• All verified documents must be dated within 60 days of the date of receipt. 

FINAL DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
Once the applicant family completes the eligibility interview, all eligibility criteria will be reviewed before a final 
eligibility determination is made.  Being eligible, however, does not guarantee that the application will be 
approved.  All adult applicants (and if appropriate minors) will be subject to the certain screening based on 
landlord/rental history, credit history and criminal history.  If the screening process determines that the family 
meets HUD’s and the owner/agent’s standards for admission, the family is found eligible. 

LIVE-IN AIDES 
Please contact the HACA central office Admissions Department if a live-in aide will be moving in to the unit.  If 
the family plans to include a live-in aide, the live-in aide is not required to complete the same application forms.  
Live-in aides must complete the Live-in Aide Questionnaire and participate in screening and other owner/agent 
verifications that are required.   
 
The live-in aide must meet HUD’s definition of a live-in aide.  The live-in aide has no rights to the unit as a 
remaining family member and must agree to relinquish possession of the unit within a reasonable time if the 

Item No. 5, page 81



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 22  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

resident is absent for an extended period of time or if the resident leaves for any reason.  The live-in aide will be 
required to sign an acknowledgement the live-in aide has no right of residency or occupancy if the resident is 
absent or if the resident moves out for any reason including death.   

WAITING LISTS  
To ensure that applicants are appropriately and fairly selected for the next available unit, it is essential for the 
owner/agent to maintain waiting lists.  The owner/agent will place the applicant household on the waiting list 
after preliminary eligibility determination is complete. 
 
If applicants are eligible for more than one bedroom size, the applicants will have the option of choosing which 
bedroom size is appropriate for their family.  Applicants will make this specifying a desired unit size when 
completing the pre-application. The applicant will be placed on the waiting list for allthe indicated unit 
sizes/types as long as: 
  

• The applicant household meets the Occupancy Standards described in this plan, and  
• The waiting list for the unit size is open   

 
Applicants will be given 15 days to change their bedroom size choice.  Once the 15 days have passed, Once 
applicants have selected a bedroom size, they will not be allowed to change that selection unless a qualifying 
event has occurred.  Please see the list of qualifying events in the Occupancy Standards section of this plan. 
 
The applicant Head-of-Household (HOH) will be contacted, based on the waiting list selection criteria, and 
offered housing for the first unit that becomes available based on the selection guidelines described in this plan. 

MAINTAINING WAITING LISTS   
It is the policy of the owner/agent to administer its waiting list as required by HUD handbooks and IRS tax credit 
regulations.  The owner/agent will update the waiting list by removing the names of applicants  
who are no longer interested in or no longer qualify for the PBRA and/or LIHTC program. 
 
On a regular basis, as determined by the owner/agent considering the length of the waiting list, the 
owner/agent will contact each applicant household by mail, using the address provided on the pre-application.  
Applicants are responsible for updating their application with any changes in address.  The Head-of-Household 
(HOH) will be the only person contacted unless otherwise requested.  
  
If this letter is unable to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, the application will be rejected and the 
household will be removed from the waiting list.   
 
If the Head-of-Household (HOH) fails to respond to the owner/agent inquiries regarding the desire to remain on 
the waiting list, the application will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list. 
 
In addition, an adult member of the applicant household must contact the Admissions Department if household 
information changes (i.e. number of household members, number of future household members, criminal 
history, income, etc.).  If the household size or composition changes, the owner/agent will: 
 

• Update the waiting list information and  
• Decide whether the household needs the same or a different unit   

 

Item No. 5, page 82



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 27  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

These situations represent extenuating circumstances and the normal selection order may be adjusted 
to address the needs of these residents. 

OPENING AND CLOSING WAITING LIST 
In order to ensure that applicants on the waiting list are processed in a reasonable amount of time, the 
owner/agent may stop accepting applications and close waiting lists in whole or in part.  Decisions about closing 
and opening the waiting list will be based on the number of applications available for a particular size and type 
of apartment and the ability of the owner/agent to house an applicant in an appropriate apartment within a 
reasonable period of time.  
 
On a regular basis, the owner/agent will review the number of families on the waiting list to determine whether 
the waiting list may be closed.  If the owner/agent has sufficient applications, the waiting list may be closed 
completely.  Notices announcing that the waiting list is closed or open will be publicly announced in the 
following manner: 
 

• Local newspapers 
• Publications described in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) 
• Flyers distributed through Social Service agencies described in the AFHMP 

 
Interested parties who insist on submitting applications when the waiting list is closed will not be considered.  
The application will not be reviewed and will be returned. 
 
Note:  There is one exception to this.  If a resident at this property or any other property owned by the owner 
(The Housing Authority of the City of Austin) is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and 
/ or stalking, as part of the VAWA protections they can request to be placed onto the waiting list for this 
property or any property owned by the owner, even if the list is closed.  The owner/agent will work with the 
family to determine which property(ies) would best meet the family’s need for protection.  These applications 
will be received and processed according to the criteria outlined in this plan. 
 
During the period when the waiting list is closed, the owner/agent will not maintain a list of individuals who 
wish to be notified when the waiting list is reopened.   

VERIFICATION 
The owner/agent shall obtain verifications in compliance with requirements set forth by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  After the preliminary eligibility determination, no decision to approve an 
application shall be made until information provided on the application form and during subsequent interviews 
has been collected and any necessary follow-up interviews have been performed.  All information relative to the 
following items must be verified as described in these procedures. 

INFORMATION TO BE VERIFIED  
Information to be verified includes, but is not limited to: 

• Eligibility for Admission, such as 
o Income 
o Assets And Asset Income 
o Identification 
o Age 
o Household Composition 

o Social Security Numbers  
o Citizenship And/or Legal Status 
o Student Status 
o Current HUD Assistance 

Item No. 5, page 83



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 29  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

• Current/Previous Residence History  
• Current Housing Assistance 

• Status As A Student 

 
Unintentional errors that do not cause preferential treatment will not be used as a basis to reject applicants. 

APPLICANT SCREENING CRITERIA 
Screening is performed in a manner that is reasonable, consistent, and complies with fair housing laws. 
Screening is used to help ensure that households admitted to a property will abide by the terms of the lease, pay 
rent on time, take care of the property and unit, and allow all residents to peacefully enjoy their homes.   
 
Anyone who wishes to live on the property must be screened prior to moving in.  This includes, but is not limited 
to, live-in aides, security/police officers or additional household members wishing to move-in after the initial 
move-in.  Certain exceptions apply to children/minors.  The current screening guidelines in place at the time the 
new household member applies will be used to determine eligibility for admission.    
 
Note:  The Oowner / Aagent followed HUD guidelines for the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) requiring 
owners to not re-screen families at the time of conversion.  Therefore, families living at the property at the time 
of conversion from Public Housing to PBRA and LIHTC were not re-screened.  However, they were screened for 
these criteria at the time of their original move in to the Public Housing program.   

SCREENING FOR DRUG ABUSE AND OTHER CRIMINAL ACTIVITY 
 HUD has established standards that prohibit admission of: 

• Any household in which any member was evicted in the last three years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity   

• Any household in which any member was engaged in the production of methamphetamine. 
• *A household in which any member is currently engaged in illegal use of drugs or for which the  

owner/agent has reasonable cause to believe that a member’s illegal use or pattern of illegal use of a 
drug may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment of the property by other 
residents 

• Any household member who is subject to any state lifetime sex offender registration requirement  
• Any household member if there is reasonable cause to believe that member’s behavior, from abuse or 

pattern of abuse of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, and right to peaceful enjoyment by 
other residents.  The screening standards must be based on behavior, not the condition of alcoholism or 
alcohol abuse 

 
NOTE*”Currently engaged in” is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous six months.   

 
In addition to HUD requirements, the owner/agent has established a policy to reject all applications where the 
applicant or any household member has engaged in criminal activity as described in this document.  The 
owner/agent will reject applications if any household member’s criminal history includes one or more of the 
following: 
 

• Any household in which any member was evicted in the last five years from federally assisted housing 
for drug-related criminal activity 

• Sex Offender Registration:  Applicant, or any member of the applicant family, is or ever has been subject 
to registration under a state sex offender registration program 

Item No. 5, page 84



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 30  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

• Record of any conviction or adjudication, other than acquittal, of the following felonies by any 
household member, regardless of when it happened:  
o Capital Murder 
o Murder / Manslaughter 
o Arson 
o Kidnapping 
o Child Molestation 
o Treason 

o Rape or Crimes of a Sexual Nature 
o Incest  
o Crimes involving explosives 
o Crimes involving terrorism 
o Gross Lewdness  

 
• If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past four years, the family will be denied admission:  
o Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution or use of 

a drug or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use the drug. 
o Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the 

use, attempted use or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be 
reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage.  

o Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety or welfare of other tenants.  
o Illegal possession/discharge/display/carrying of firearm or illegal weapon/ deadly weapon.  
o Assault, aggravated assault, assault by threat, stalking.  
o Physical violence to persons or property, or criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 

attempted use or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 
o Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of HACA staff, contractors, subcontractors or 

agents. 
o Three or more incidences or convictions of alcohol-related criminal activity, including Driving under 

the Influence and Public Intoxication.  
o Burglary of a Habitation.  
o If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following criminal 

activities, within the past three years, the family will be denied admission:  
 

• A pattern of abuse of alcohol, including, but not limited to, public intoxication and 
driving while intoxicated.  

•  A pattern of fraud committed against a governmental entity.  
• A pattern of theft or fraud.  
• A pattern of organized criminal activity.  
• A pattern of prostitution.  

 
A pattern (for the purposes listed above) consists of three or more incidences, with a minimum of one incident 
occurring within the past three years.  The owner/agent will not use arrest records as the sole basis for denying 
admission to the program.  
 
The owner/agent will not deny an application solely on the basis of an arrest.  If the owner/agent receives arrest 
information which may be for a disqualifying activity, the owner/agent may request additional information.  
Additional information that may be considered, if available, include the following: 
 

• The police report associated with the arrest which provides the reported circumstances of the arrest. 
• Any statements made by witnesses or the applicant, not included in the report. 
• Whether criminal charges were filed. 

Item No. 5, page 85



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 31  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

• Whether, if filed, criminal charges were abandoned, dismissed, not prosecuted, or ultimately resulted in 
an acquittal. 

• Any other evidence relevant to determining whether or not the applicant engaged in the disqualifying 
activity. 

 
Evidence of criminal conduct will be considered if it indicates a demonstrable risk to safety and/or property. 
 
If a resident or applicant has requested VAWA protections and such protections have been justified based on 
owner/agent investigation, the abuser/perpetrator will not be approved to live on the property. 
  
If the owner/agent is unable to complete required criminal or sexual offender screening, the application will be 
rejected.  If the owner/agent determines that a sex offender is part of the household, the owner/agent will 
allow the household to remove the sex offender from the application.  Removal must be documented using the 
change of address receipt from the Texas Department of Sex Offender Registration. 
 
The household will have five (5) business days to provide verification that the household member has alternative 
housing or that the household member has applied for alternative housing.  Failure to provide such 
documentation will result in rejection of the application for all household members. 
 
The owner/agent reserves the right to monitor household composition after move-in.  The owner/agent will 
conduct quarterly reviews matching residents against the registered sex offender database.  If the owner/agent 
discovers that a sex offender has moved in to the unit, assistance will be terminated and the household will be 
evicted in accordance with HUD requirements.  Any assistance paid-in-error must be returned to HUD. 
 
United States Code Title 8, subsection 1324(a)(1)(A) prohibits the harboring of illegal aliens. The provision of 
housing to illegal aliens is a fundamental component of harboring.  All applicants will be required to provide 
proof of citizenship or legal immigration status. 
 
If criminal screening indicates that the applicant has an unacceptable criminal history, the owner/agent will 
reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection.   

• Consideration of Extenuating Circumstances 
In deciding whether to exercise discretion to admit an individual who has engaged in prohibited criminal 
activity, the owner/agent will consider all of the circumstances relevant to the particular admission 
decision, including but not limited to: the seriousness of the offending action; the effect that denial of 
the entire household would have on family members not involved in the criminal activity; and the extent 
to which the applicant has taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the criminal activity.  
 
Additionally, when specifically considering whether to deny admission for illegal drug use by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such activity, the owner/agent will consider whether 
the household member is participating in or has successfully completed a drug rehabilitation program, 
or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully.   

• Criminal Screening Discoveries 
If the criminal background investigation indicates that the applicant does not meet the criminal 
screening criteria, the owner/agent will reject the applicant in accordance with HUD guidance and the 
owner/agent’s standards for applicant rejection. Before rejecting the household, the owner/agent will 

Item No. 5, page 86



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 32  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

compare the information provided by the applicant with the criminal history report.  If the information 
conflicts, the owner/agent will: 
 
o Notify the household of the proposed action based on the information; 
o Provide a copy of the criminal history report; 
o Provide the applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information 

obtained from any law enforcement agency; 
o Allow the household the opportunity to remove the household member. 
 
In this situation, applicants will have seven (7) business days to resolve the discrepancy.  If the applicant 
fails to contact the owner/agent or indicates that he/she cannot provide documentation to refute the 
criminal discovery, the owner/agent will reject the application and remove the household from the 
waiting list.  The owner/agent will notify the applicant family of the rejection in writing.  The family will 
have the opportunity to request an appeal of the denial according to the terms of the grievance policy 
within this tenant selection plan. 
 
If, after move-in, the owner/agent discovers that there was criminal history that would have resulted in 
rejection, the owner/agent will contact the resident to ascertain the accuracy of the criminal report.  If 
the resident would have been rejected had the information been know at the time of the eligibility 
determination, the owner/agent will take appropriate action including notifying HUD’s Office of the 
Inspector General of potential fraud and pursuing termination of tenancy (eviction).   

SCREENING FOR CREDIT HISTORY 
The owner/agent reviews each adult applicant’s credit history.  The owner/agent does not consider medical 
bills/expenses, credit score, or the lack of credit history when reviewing credit history.   
Credit history will be reviewed to determine the following: 
 

• If there is any debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD’ 
• If there are any evictions that have not been reported; 
• If there are any other housing related judgments against the applicant. 

 
Applicants will be rejected in the following situations: 
 

• The family owes a debt to a federally assisted housing program which has not been repaid and the 
family has not established a repayment agreement. 

• The family has a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two (2) 
years. 

 
If the applicant has no credit history, the credit screening will be considered “positive.” 

SCREENING FOR ABILITY TO ESTABLISH UTILITY SERVICE 
The owner/agent will also screen applicant households for the ability to establish utility services in the name of 
at least one adult family member.  All adult applicants will be required to sign the consent for Release of 
Information from Austin Energy.  Applicant households which do not have any adult members able to establish 
service with Austin Energy will be given 7 days to resolve the issue with Austin Energy.  If the household is 
unable to do so, the application will be rejected. 

Item No. 5, page 87



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 33  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

SCREENING FOR RENTAL HISTORY   
If any member of the applicant household has been evicted from any property owned or managed by the 
Housing Authority of the City of Austin for lease violations within the last two years, that applicant household 
will be rejected.     
 
The owner/agent will review rental history with any landlord indicated in the past two (2) years.  The 
owner/agent will also review information provided through automated databases including eviction databases.  
The application will be rejected for any of the following: 
 

• The family has been evicted in the last five years from federally assisted housing for drug-related 
criminal activity; 

• The family has been evicted from federally assisted housing within the past 2 years for any other reason; 
• The family has a pattern of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property or living or housekeeping 

habits at prior residences within the past two years which may adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other tenants.  

• The family has a pattern of eviction from housing or termination from residential programs within the 
past five years (considering relevant circumstances). 

 
If the applicant fails to identify one or more residences where he/she lived in the last two (2) years, the applicant 
will be rejected and the household will be removed from the waiting list.  An applicant who has been homeless 
can meet the requirement to identify their residence by self-certifying to their homeless status. 
The owner/agent will contact the prior property owner/agent (as indicated above) and inquire about the 
following information:   
 

• Adherence to the Lease & Community Policies 
• Compliance with certification reporting requirements 
• Rental Payment Performance 
• Compliance with requirements to fully and accurately disclose income information in a timely manner 
• Requirement to Return Assistance Paid in Error due to under-reporting income or un-reported income 
• Unit Maintenance/Damage 
• Record of Disturbing Neighbors 
• Complaints  

 
If information obtained is negative the applicant will be rejected. Negative responses include but are not limited 
to: 

• A pattern of failure to comply with the lease 
• A pattern of failure to comply with House Rules, Pet Rules or Assistance Animal Rules 
• Failure to fully and accurately report income, new employment or changes in household composition in 

a timely manner 
• Providing false information 
• Attempting to receive or receiving HUD assistance in multiple units/homes 
• Slow or no response to requests to recertify 
• Poor rental payment history (average more than two (2) late payments per year, record of bounced 

checks, any outstanding balance) 
• A pattern of poor unit maintenance or damage to the unit beyond normal wear-and-tear 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Tab stops: 
0.5", List tab + Not at  1.5"

Item No. 5, page 88



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 35  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

• Any member of the household has a pattern of eviction, for lease violations, from any property within 
the last two years 

• There is a pattern of outstanding or overdue payments to a previous landlord 
• There is record of outstanding or overdue payments to HUD  
• The household is unable to establish utilities in the new unit 
• The household is unable to pay the security deposit required 
• The household is unable to take possession of the unit within the timeframes outlined in this plan 
• The household is unable to pay the first month’s rent (TTP) 
•  

REJECTION NOTICES   
The owner/agent will promptly notify the household (Head-of-Household (HOH)), in writing, within 7 days of the 
denial of admission or assistance.  A rejection letter will be sent to the Head-of-Household via First Class Mail.  
The rejection letter will include the reason(s) for the rejection. 

APPEALING THE DECISION TO REJECT   
Any applicant may make a request to appeal the denial in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days from the 
date of the rejection.  The owner/agent will accept the request in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability.  Such requests are to be submitted to the Admissions 
Department in HACA’s central office building.  If there is no appeal request within fifteen (15) days, the 
rejection will be considered final. Reasons to appeal include: 
 

• The applicant believes the decision has been made in error 
• The applicant believes there are extenuating circumstances that should be considered 
• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a victim of abuse covered by the Violence 

Against Women Act and the applicant feels the applicant’s status as a victim contributes to the decision 
to deny 

• The applicant or a member of the applicant’s household is a person with a disability, and the applicant 
believes a reasonable accommodation would allow the owner/agent to continue processing the 
application 

• The applicant’s household was rejected because the application includes someone who is a registered 
sex offender and the applicant wishes to remove that household member 

 
Any staff person engaged in the initial review will not be involved in the appeal.  HACA’s designated hearing 
officer will conduct the informal review.   
 
Applicants may bring a representative to assist in the appeal meeting.  Applicants and/or their representatives 
have the right to request a reasonable accommodation to: 
  

• Assist in facilitating your request for appeal  
• To assist in your participation during the appeal meeting  

 
The hearing officer will provide written notification of a final decision within ten (10) business days of the 
informal review.Within 5 business days of the meeting with the hearing officer, the applicant will be advised in 
writing of the final decision on eligibility.  If the applicant requests the opportunity to provide additional 
documentation to support their case, the hearing officer may adjourn the hearing in order to reconvene at a 
later date, before reaching the decision.  If the family misses an appointment or deadline ordered by the hearing 

Item No. 5, page 89



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 36  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

officer without proof of good cause, the original eligibility decision of the owner / agent will take effect and 
another hearing will not be granted. 
 
For complete details about the appeals process, see the Grievance and Appeals Policy.  This policy is available 
upon request. 

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PBRA APPLICANTS 
Through PIH Notice 2012-32 Rev. 2, HUD provided guidance that the grievance procedures afforded to families 
living in Conventional Public Housing before conversion through RAD to Project Based Rental  
Assistance (PBRA) must be continued after the conversion.  Below is the full account of all grievance procedures 
for applicants to the PBRA property. 
 
When the owner/agent makes a decision that has a negative impact on an applicant family, the family is often 
entitled to appeal the decision. For applicants, the appeal takes the form of an informal hearing. HUD 
regulations do not provide a structure for or requirements regarding informal hearings for applicants (except 
with regard to citizenship status, to be covered in Part II). This part discusses the owner/agent’s policies 
necessary to respond to applicant appeals through the informal hearing process. 

INFORMAL HEARING PROCESS [24 CFR 960.208(A) AND PH OCC GB, P. 58] 
Informal hearings are provided for PBRA applicants. An applicant is someone who has applied for admission to 
the PBRA program, but is not yet a resident in the program. Informal hearings are intended to provide a means 
for an applicant to dispute a determination of ineligibility for admission to a project [24 CFR 960.208(a)]. 
Applicants to PBRA are not entitled to the same hearing process afforded residents in the owner/agent 
grievance procedure [24 CFR 966.53(a) and PH Occ GB, p. 58]. 
 
Informal hearings provide the applicant a means to hear the details of the reasons for rejection, and an 
opportunity to present evidence to the contrary if available and to claim mitigating circumstances if possible. 

• Use of Informal Hearing Process 
The owner/agent will only offer the opportunity of an informal hearing to applicants who have been 
determined as ineligible for admission. 

• Notice of Denial  
The owner/agent will give an applicant prompt notice of a decision denying eligibility for admission. The 
notice will contain a brief statement of the reasons for the owner/agent’s decision, and will also state 
that the applicant may request an informal hearing to dispute the decision. The notice must describe 
how to obtain the informal hearing.  Prior to notification of denial based on information obtained from 
criminal or sex offender registration records, the family, in some cases, must be given the opportunity to 
dispute the information in those records which would be the basis of the denial.  

• Scheduling an Informal Hearing 
A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the owner/agent either in 
person, by fax, by email or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 15 calendar 
days from the date of owner/agent’s notification of denial of admission.  Owner/agent will send written 
notice of the informal hearing within 30 business days of the family’s request. Owner/agent will make 
every effort to hold the hearing within 45 calendar days of receiving the request for the hearing. 

Item No. 5, page 90



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 37  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

• Conducting an Informal Hearing [PH Occ GB, p. 58]  
The informal hearing will be conducted by an appointed Hearing Officer who is a person other than the 
one who made the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 
The applicant will be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the decision of the 
owner/agent. 
 
The Hearing Officer will render a decision on whether admission should be granted or denied.  

• Informal Hearing Decision [PH Occ GB, p. 58] 
The owner/agent will notify the applicant of owner/agent’s final decision, including a brief statement of 
the reasons for the final decision. 

 
In rendering a decision, the owner/agent will evaluate the following matters: 
 

o Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice. 
o The validity of grounds for denial of admission. If the grounds for denial are not specified in the 

regulations or in the owner/agent’s policy, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned. See the Tenant Selection Plan for a detailed discussion of the grounds for applicant 
denial. 

o The validity of the evidence. The owner/agent will evaluate whether the facts presented prove 
the grounds for denial of admission. If the facts prove that there are grounds for denial, and the 
denial is required by HUD, the owner/agent will uphold the decision to deny admission. 

o If the facts prove the grounds for denial, the Hearing Officer will make the final decision to deny 
admissions. 
 

The owner/agent will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining the 
reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed within 15 calendar days of the informal hearing to 
the applicant and his or her representative, if any.The notice will be mailed to the applicant within 5 
business days of the informal hearing.  If the applicant requests the opportunity to provide additional 
documentation to support their case, the hearing officer may adjourn the hearing in order to reconvene 
at a later date, before reaching the final decision.  If the family misses an appointment or deadline 
ordered by the hearing officer without proof of good cause, the original eligibility decision of the owner 
will take effect and another hearing will not be granted. 
 
If the informal hearing decision overturns the denial, processing for admission will resume. The 
owner/agent will make every effort to resume the screening process for reinstated applicants within 20 
calendar days of the hearing decision. 
 
If the family fails to appear for their informal hearing, the denial of admission will stand and the family 
will be so notified. 
 
The applicant may request that the Hearing Officer consider a request for Reasonable Accommodations 
under the Fair Housing Act and Section 504 with respect to past conduct (see below).  
 
If the basis for the denial relates to family violence, the applicant may qualify for an exception under the 
Violence Against Women Amendments.  
 

Item No. 5, page 91



Elderly / Disabled PBRA & LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 46  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

A household whose annual gross income is over 140% of the LIHTC income limit for their household size will only 
be allowed to transfer to another unit within their same building (as defined by BIN – Building Identification 
Number – on IRS Form 8609).    

SECURITY DEPOSITS, PET DEPOSITS & UNIT TRANSFERS 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members as a result of an owner/agent 
required move due to rehabilitation of the unit, the owner/agent will not charge a new security deposit.  The 
security deposit from the original unit will be transferred to the new unit. 
 
When a resident transfers to a new unit with all other household members for any other reason, the 
owner/agent will charge a new security deposit and refund the security deposit for the old unit less any 
outstanding amounts for rent, fees or damages.  If the move out expenses exceed the security deposit, the 
family will receive an itemized bill which must be paid within 30 days of receipt of the bill. 
 
When a resident owns a pet, the original unit will be assessed for damages caused by the pet.  The pet deposit 
will be reduced by charges for those damages and the resident will be required to obtain a pet deposit balance 
of $100.00 for the new unit.  The resident will be allowed to pay the new pet deposit balance due in $10.00 
monthly payments until the $100.00 pet deposit balance is reached.  

UNIT TRANSFERS DURING THE INITIAL OCCUPANCY PERIOD OF A LIHTC PROPERTY 
The initial occupancy period of an LIHTC property begins at the date of acquisition and runs up until the 
owner/agent receives the Low Income Housing Credit Allocation and Certification (IRS Form 8609).  During this 
time, if the property consists of multiple buildings, the owner/agent will treat all unit transfers from one building 
to another building as new move-ins for purposes of the LIHTC program.  This means that the family must meet 
all LIHTC eligibility requirements to be able to move into the new unit.   
 
This requirement will expire when the owner/agent selects the option to identify each building as part of a 
multiple building project on the form 8609.  This requirement does not apply to unit transfers within the same 
building.  This requirement does not apply if the property consists of only one building. 

CHANGES IN HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

ADDING HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS AFTER INITIAL OCCUPANCY 
The owner/agent must approve any new adult household member before he/she moves in to the unit.  Eligibility 
criteria, screening criteria and compliance with occupancy standards will be reviewed before the new household 
member is approved or denied.  The request to add a new household member will not be considered if the 
resident has provided notice to vacate the unit.  This helps prevent applicants from “jumping” ahead on the 
waiting list. 
 
Any new adult household member will be considered an applicant and must participate in the eligibility 
determination and screening processes described in the resident selection plan in place at the time of the 
eligibility determination.   
 
This policy applies to live-in aides as well.  Screening criteria will also be applied to live-in aides, except for the 
criterion regarding credit performance or the ability to pay rent on time because live-in aides are not 
responsible for rental payments.  However, live in aides must meet other screening criteria established by the 
owner/agent.  Income and/or allowances received by live-in aides will not be considered.   

Formatted: Heading 2

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Item No. 5, page 92



Pathways At North Loop Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 53  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

APPENDIX B – VAWA POLICY 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections to women or men who are the victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking.  The owner/agent understands that, 
regardless of whether state or local laws protect victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking, people who have been victims of violence have certain rights under the Violence Against 
Women Act Reauthorization of 2013. 
 
This policy is intended to support or assist victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or 
stalking and protect victimspersons seeking to exercise VAWA protectins, as well as members of their 
familyaffiliated individuals (as defined by HUD), from being denied housing or from losing their HUD assisted 
housing as a consequence of their status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, dating violence and/or 
stalking. 
 
VAWA protections are not provided to guests, unauthorized residents or service providers (including live-in 
aides) hired by the resident. Only residents who are assisted by a covered housing program can invoke the 
VAWA protections that apply solely to residents.  The term “resident” refers to an assisted family and the 
members of the household on their lease, but does not include guests or unreported members of a household. 
 
In addition, a live-in aide or caregiver is not a resident, unless otherwise provided by program regulations, and 
cannot invoke VAWA protections.  However, the owner/agent will consider requests for VAWA protections by 
live-in aides on a case-by-case basis.    
 
VAWA ensures that victims persons seeking to exercise VAWA protections  are not denied housing and housing 
assistance is not terminated solely because the person is a victim of an act covered under the VAWA (domestic 
violence, dating violence, stalking and/or sexual assault).   
 
However, being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA is not reason to change the eligibility or applicant 
screening requirements set forth in the tenant selection plan unless such requirements interfere with 
protections provided under the VAWA.   
 
Being a victim of an act covered under the VAWA person seeking to exercise VAWA protections as the result of 
an offense covered under the VAWA is not reason to waive requirements set forth in the HUD Model Lease or in 
any lease attachment or HUD approved lease addendum unless such requirements interfere with protections 
provided under the VAWA.   
 
The owner/agent will not assume that any act is a result of abuse covered under the Violence Against Women 
Act.  In order to receive the protections outlined in the VAWA, the applicant/resident must specify that he/she 
wishes to exercise these protections.  If any applicant or resident wishes to exercise the protections provided in 
the VAWA, he/she should contact the owner/agent immediately.  The owner/agent is committed to ensuring 
that the Privacy Act is enforced in this and all other situations.   

CONFIDENTIALITY  
The identity of the victim person seeking to exercise VAWA protections and all information provided to 
owner/agent relating to the incident(s) of abuse covered under the VAWA will be retained in confidence.  
Information will not be entered into any shared database nor provided to a related entity, except to the extent 
that the disclosure is  
 

Item No. 5, page 93



Pathways At North Loop Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 54  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

• Requested or consented to by the victim person seeking to exercise VAWA protections in writing;  
• Required for use in an eviction proceeding or termination of assistance; or  
• Otherwise required by applicable law.  

 
The certification form provides notice to the resident of the confidentiality of the form and the limits thereof.  
The owner/agent will retain all documentation relating to an individual’s domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault and/or stalking in a separate file that is kept in a separate secure location from other applicant or 
resident files.  If the documentation is stored electronically, the owner/agent will keep this information in an 
electronic file that is separate from the applicant or resident file with secured access only to authorized 
individuals. 

REQUESTS & CERTIFICATION  
When the owner/agent responds to a request for protections provided under the VAWA the owner/agent will 
request that an individual complete, sign, and submit a certification form, within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the request.  This certification may be submitted in an equally effective manner, as a reasonable 
accommodation, if there is the presence of a disability. 
 
If necessary, the victim may request additional time to submit the certification.  The owner/agent will not deny a 
VAWA claim solely due to confusion over when the certification form is due. 
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
The owner/agent understands that the delivery of the certification form to the applicant/resident via mail may 
place the victim person seeking to exercise VAWA protections at risk, (e.g., the abuser may monitor the mail).  
The owner/agent will work with the applicant/resident in making acceptable delivery arrangements, such as 
inviting them into the office to pick up the certification form or making other discreet arrangements. 
 
If the applicant/resident has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault 
and/or stalking from a federal, state, tribal, territorial jurisdiction, local police or court, the applicant/resident 
may submit written proof of this outreach in lieu of the certification form.  The owner/agent may accept the 
following: 
 

• A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police record or court record or  
• Documentation signed and attested to by a professional (employee, agent or volunteer of a victim 

service provider, an attorney, medical personnel, etc.) F from whom the victimperson seeking to 
exercise VAWA protections has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence 
and/or stalking or the effects of the abuse.  The signatory attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. 
§1746) to his/her belief that the incident in question represents bona fide abuse, and the victimperson 
seeking to exercise VAWA protections as a result of domestic violence, dating violence and/or stalking 
has signed or attested to the documentation. 

 
If the applicant is currently living in a shelter established to protect victims of violence covered under the VAWA, 
the owner/agent will accept verification of such living arrangement in lieu of additional verificationthe 
certification form or other forms as noted above.   
 

Item No. 5, page 94



Pathways At North Loop Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 55  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

The person seeking to exercise VAWA protections must provide such documentation within fourteen (14) days 
of the request.  The owner/agent will consider extending the deadline if requested.  The owner / agent will also 
extend the deadline if specific circumstances exist that prevent the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections from submitting the form within fourteen (14) days.    The owner /agent will consider these requests 
even if received after the 14 day deadline has passed.  The owner/agent will not deny a VAWA claim solely due 
to confusion over when the certification form is due. 
 
The victim is not required to name his/her abuser if doing so would result in imminent threat or if the victim 
does not know the name of his/her abuser. 
 
To ensure that a person is not wrongly accused of committing an act covered under the VAWA, the owner/agent 
will carefully evaluate abuse claims as to avoid denial, termination of assistance, termination of tenancy or 
eviction based on false or unsubstantiated accusations. 
 
The applicant/resident is required to provide all necessary documentation to the owner/agent no more than ten 
(10) business days after submitting the certification to the owner/agent.  If the victim is unable to provide 
required documentation within the required timeframe, the owner/agent will deny the request. 
 
The owner/agent will review and respond to requests to exercise protections provided under the VAWA within 
ten (10) business days of receiving all required documentation.  The owner/agent may provide the response in 
any manner acceptable to the victimthe person seeking to exercise VAWA protections and the owner/agent.  
Responses include: 
 

• Approval of the Request 
• Denial of the Request 
• Request for additional information 

 
If the request is denied, the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections may appeal the decision through the 
grievance procedure.  The appeal meeting will be conducted by someone who was not involved in the original 
decision to deny. 

LEASE BIFURCATION 
If the owner/agent determines that physical abuse caused by a resident is clear and present, the law provides 
the owner/agent with the authority to bifurcate a lease (i.e., remove, evict, or terminate housing assistance to 
any abuser, while allowing the victimperson seeking to exercise VAWA protections, who lawfully occupies the 
home, to maintain tenancy.)  
 
The owner/agent may attempt to evict the abuser, but residents should know that state/local tenant/landlord 
laws prevail and the owner/agent must comply with such laws.  The owner/agent cannot guarantee that a court 
will award or enforce an eviction.   
 
Owner/agents must keep in mind that the eviction of or the termination action against the individual must be in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, and local law.  The owner/agent is committed to 
attempting to assist the victimperson seeking to exercise VAWA protections, however, evictions are generally 
carried out through the court system and the owner/agent cannot override or circumvent a legal decision. 
 
In the event that one household member is removed from the unit because of engaging in acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault and/or stalking against another household member, an appropriate 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: Calibri, 11 pt

Item No. 5, page 95



Pathways At North Loop Tenant Selection Plan 

 Page 56  of 56 Effective 12/1/2016 

certification will be processed reflecting the change in household composition.  Special consideration will be 
given if the remaining household members are not qualified to remain in the unit as a “remaining household 
member”.    
 
If a lease is bifurcated or if a resident is evicted from the property because of an offense covered under the 
VAWA, the person will be barred from the property. 
 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  Inviting a person evicted because of 
an offense covered under the VAWA or encouraging such person to remain on the property is a lease violation.  
The resident agrees to notify the owner/agent and/or local authorities if such person enters the property.   

CRIMINAL ACTS 
Victims are encouraged to seek police/legal protection from their abuser.  In some cases, the owner/agent may 
file a restraining order against the abuser to prevent the abuser from entering the property.  If there is a 
restraining order against the abuser and the resident willingly allows or invites the abuser onto the premises, 
the owner/agent may seek termination of assistance and/or tenancy.   
 
In accordance with the regulation at 24 CFR 5.861, the owner/agent may terminate tenancy and evict the tenant 
through judicial action for criminal activity by a covered person if the Landlord determines that the covered 
person has engaged in the criminal activity, regardless of whether the covered person has been arrested, or 
convicted for such activity and without satisfying a criminal standard of proof of the activity.   
 
The owner/agent will take into account individual circumstances when making a determination to terminate 
tenancy; such circumstances might include, among other things, the seriousness of the offending action, the 
extent of participation by the leaseholder in the offending action, and whether the leaseholder, if not the 
wrongdoer, took all feasible steps to prevent the offending action from occurring and has removed the 
offending person from the lease or otherwise banned the offending person from the premises in the future.         

LEASE ADDENDUMEMERGENCY TRANSFER 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance. The 
owner/agent will consider an Emergency Transfer request when a person seeking to exercise VAWA protection 
sfeels that he/she is: 

• In imminent danger 
• Was sexually assaulted on the property within 90 days of the request 

 
The owner will accept the Emergency Transfer request directly from the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections or from an advocate working on their behalf. 

 LEASE ADDENDUM 
Any HUD approved lease addendum will be implemented and provided in accordance with HUD guidance.  
 
 
 

Formatted: English (United States)

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Item No. 5, page 96



Exhibit 5 

Item No. 5, page 97



Texas RioGrande Legal Aid, Inc. 
4920North IH-35 

Austin, Texas 78751 
Telephone (512) 374-2700 

FAX (512) 447-3940   TDD (512) 441-9487 
 TOLL FREE 1-800-369-9270 

         
Fred Fuchs - 512-374-2720 

               Email: ffuchs@trla.org   
         
    July 3, 2017 
 
 
Housing Authority of City of Austin 
Attn: Vice President of Housing and  
  Community Development 
1124 South IH-35 
Austin, Texas 78704    
 
 Re: Comments on Proposed Changes to Tenant Selection 

Plans   
   

Dear Ms. Sanchez:          
 
These comments are submitted in response to the request for 
comments on proposed changes to HACA’s Tenant Selection Plans for 
all Project Based Rental Assistance properties.  We have only a 
few comments.  (The referenced page numbers are from the Tenant 
Selection Plan for Elderly PBRA & LIHTC.) I apologize for not 
getting them to you by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, June 30. 
  
1. Screening for Credit History (Page 32 of Elderly/Disabled PBRA 
& LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan):  
 
Although no changes are proposed here, HACA should add a sentence 
to this section.  It currently provides that credit history will 
be reviewed to determine if there is any debt owed to a prior 
landlord or HUD.  No person should be denied subsidized housing 
for a debt to a prior landlord that resulted from rent 
overburden.   
 
Thus, for example, if an individual owes a debt to a prior 
private market landlord because of an eviction following loss of 
a job, the applicant should not be denied on the basis that a 
debt is owed to a prior landlord.  In addition, applicants who 
owe a debt to a private market landlord should not be required to 
pay the debt. HACA should not act as a collection agency for 
private market landlords.  
 

 1 
Item No. 5, page 98

mailto:ffuchs@trla.org


This concern can be addressed by adding the following sentence to 
this section: “No applicant will be denied on the basis of a debt 
owed to a prior landlord when the debt resulted from rent 
overburden or the applicant suffered a loss of income resulting 
in the unpaid deb to the landlord. An applicant will not be 
required to pay a debt to landlord in order to be approved for 
tenancy.”  
 
2. Appendix B: VAWA Policy (Pages 53-56 of Elderly/Disabled PBRA 
& LIHTC Tenant Selection Plan):  
 

- Failure to Submit VAWA Certification within 14 days of   
Request – Page 55. 

 
In accordance with the VAWA regulations, the proposed policies 
give any person seeking to exercise VAWA protections fourteen 
days to provide documentation.  See p. 55.  The proposed language 
also allows the owner to consider extending the deadline “if 
specific circumstances prevent the person seeking to exercise 
VAWA protections from submitting the form within fourteen (14) 
days.  The owner/agent will not deny a VAWA claim solely due to 
confusion over when the certification form is due.”   
 
This language should be revised because it unduly restricts 
consideration by the owner of a VAWA certification form that is 
not submitted within 14 days.  We have frequently seen clients 
who are victims of domestic violence and who receive a notice of 
proposed lease termination completely overlook the 14 day 
deadline to submit the VAWA certification form. 
 
Individuals who are VAWA victims should not be penalized because 
of failure to meet the 14 day deadline.  The better approach is 
to require the owner to consider the VAWA certification whenever 
it is submitted, but to provide that owners may proceed without 
reviewing any VAWA claim until the certification is submitted.  
Thus, for example, if a tenant receives a thirty-day notice of 
lease termination with notice of the right to submit a VAWA 
certification within 14 days, the owner should be free to proceed 
with eviction if the tenant does not submit the certification 
during the thirty-day termination period.  But, if the tenant 
later submits the VAWA certification, the owner should be 
required to consider it on its merits and not deny it because the 
tenant failed to meet the 14-day timeframe. 
 
Thus, the language should be rewritten as follows:  “The person 
seeking to exercise VAWA protections must provide such 
documentation within fourteen (14) days of the request.  If the 
person does not do so, the owner may proceed with its action of 
denial or termination. If, however, the individual subsequently 
submits a VAWA certification, the owner must consider the request 

 2 
Item No. 5, page 99



on its merits and not deny it merely because it was not submitted 
within 14 days of the request.” 
 

- Right to Appeal Denial of VAWA Request through Grievance 
Procedure – (Page 55): 

 
 
In addition, the proposed language states that if a request is 
denied, the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections may 
appeal. See p. 55. This should be re-written to read as follows:  
“If the request is denied, the person seeking to exercise VAWA 
protections may appeal the decision through the grievance 
procedure.”  Because the grievance procedure applies to owner 
actions under the RAD Program, the policy should specifically 
reference the grievance procedure.  
 

- Lease Bifurcation – Permanent Bar from the Property -- 
Page 56:   

 
The proposed policy provides that if a lease if bifurcated or if 
a resident is evicted from the property because of an offense 
covered under VAWA, the person will be “permanently barred from 
the property.”  It further provides that inviting a person back 
on the property who has been evicted because of an offense 
covered by VAWA is a lease violation. 
 
The permanent bar should be removed from the final policy. This 
should be handled on a case-by-case basis.  Some individuals will 
have other friends or family on the property. The permanent bar 
would unduly restrict the right of these tenants to have visitors 
of their choice.  Also, a permanent bar fails to recognize that 
people change and that rehabilitation is successful.  Finally, it 
fails to recognize that children may also be involved, and 
parental involvement is critical to their well-being. In sum, a 
permanent bar may cause more harm than good. 
 
Importantly, a decision barring an individual from a property is 
subject to the grievance procedure.  Thus, if you include the 
right to bar the offending person in the policy, you must also 
clarify in the policy that the decision is subject to the tenant 
grievance procedure, and the tenant may access the grievance 
procedure to dispute the ban.   
 
In addition, the language providing for a lease violation for 
inviting a person back on the property who has been evicted 
should also be removed from the final policy.  Such a provision 
further victimizes an individual who has been victimized by the 
offender.  It will inevitably lead to issues of whether an 
individual was “invited” or invited themselves. It would be much 
better to eliminate this language and to provide that if it 

 3 
Item No. 5, page 100



appears a resident is inviting a former abuser back on the 
property, the resident will be counseled by a HACA social worker. 
 
We appreciate your opportunity to submit comments.  
 
     Sincerely, 
   
     
 
     _____________________________ 
     Fred Fuchs  
      
      
Sent by Email to Executive@hacanet.org  
 
 
 

 

 4 
Item No. 5, page 101

mailto:Executive@hacanet.org


 

July 6, 2017 

Mr. Fred Fuchs 
Texas RioGrande Legal Aid, Inc 
4920 N IH 35 
Austin, TX 78751 

Re: Comments on the Proposed Changes to HACA’s Tenant Selection Plans 

Dear Mr. Fuchs: 

The Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) received your comments to the proposed changes to 
the Tenant Selection Plans dated July 3, 2017.  HACA appreciates that you took the time to comment on 
the proposed changes and has taken your comments into consideration.  Please find our response to 
each of your comments below. 

1. Screening for Credit History

• Legal Aid Comment:  Although no changes are proposed here, HACA should add a sentence to
this section.  It currently provides that credit history will be reviewed to determine if there is any
debt owed to a prior landlord or HUD.  No person should be denied subsidized housing for a debt
to a prior landlord that resulted from rent overburden.

Thus, for example, if an individual owes a debt to a prior private market landlord because of an
eviction following loss of a job, the applicant should not be denied on the basis that a debt is
owed to a prior landlord.  In addition, applicants who owe a debt to a private market landlord
should not be required to pay the debt. HACA should not act as a collection agency for private
market landlords.

This concern can be addressed by adding the following sentence to this section: “No applicant
will be denied on the basis of a debt owed to a prior landlord when the debt resulted from rent
overburden or the applicant suffered a loss of income resulting in the unpaid debt to the
landlord. An applicant will not be required to pay a debt to landlord in order to be approved for
tenancy.”

• HACA Response:  As noted, there were no proposed changes to this section.  HACA has an 
obligation to address debts owed to federally assisted housing.  With regard to debts owed to 
private landlords, the Tenant Selection Plan indicates that HACA will only deny if “the family has 
a pattern of debts owed to housing and residential programs within the past two (2) years.”  So, 
a family that owes a debt to a single private landlord would not be denied housing.  Likewise a 
family that owes a debt to a private landlord from an eviction occurring more than 2 years ago 
would not be denied housing.  HACA will further review this issue and the comments from Legal 
Aid at the time of the next review of the Tenant Selection Plan.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
Bringing Opportunity Home 

Item No. 5, page 102



2. VAWA – Failure to Submit VAWA Certification within 14 days of Request.

• Legal Aid Comment:  In accordance with the VAWA regulations, the proposed policies give any
person seeking to exercise VAWA protections fourteen days to provide documentation.  See p.
55. The proposed language also allows the owner to consider extending the deadline “if specific
circumstances prevent the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections from submitting the
form within fourteen (14) days.  The owner/agent will not deny a VAWA claim solely due to
confusion over when the certification form is due.”

This language should be revised because it unduly restricts consideration by the owner of a
VAWA certification form that is not submitted within 14 days.  We have frequently seen clients
who are victims of domestic violence and who receive a notice of proposed lease termination
completely overlook the 14 day deadline to submit the VAWA certification form.

Individuals who are VAWA victims should not be penalized because of failure to meet the 14 day
deadline.  The better approach is to require the owner to consider the VAWA certification
whenever it is submitted, but to provide that owners may proceed without reviewing any VAWA
claim until the certification is submitted.  Thus, for example, if a tenant receives a thirty-day
notice of lease termination with notice of the right to submit a VAWA certification within 14
days, the owner should be free to proceed with eviction if the tenant does not submit the
certification during the thirty-day termination period.  But, if the tenant later submits the VAWA
certification, the owner should be required to consider it on its merits and not deny it because
the tenant failed to meet the 14-day timeframe.

Thus, the language should be rewritten as follows:  “The person seeking to exercise VAWA
protections must provide such documentation within fourteen (14) days of the request.  If the
person does not do so, the owner may proceed with its action of denial or termination. If,
however, the individual subsequently submits a VAWA certification, the owner must consider the
request on its merits and not deny it merely because it was not submitted within 14 days of the
request.”

• HACA Response:  The selection of 14 days for response to a request for certification of being a
victim comes from HUD.  Most recently in Housing Notice 2017-05 (June 30, 2017) it says,

“The O/A may require submission of documentation within 14 business days after the 
date that the individual received the written request for documentation.  (See 24 CFR 
5.2007(a)(2).) However, the O/A may extend this period at its discretion.  During the 14 - 
business day period and any granted extensions of that time, no adverse actions, such 
as eviction or termination, can be taken against the individual requesting VAWA 
protection.  For example, O/As must not schedule an eviction to take place during this 
time frame.” 

HACA understands that there may be times that a victim will not be able to provide the 
certification within 14 days due to circumstances outside their control.  HACA has amended its 
proposed changes to state the following: 

“The person seeking to exercise VAWA protections must provide such documentation 
within fourteen (14) days of the request.  The owner/agent will consider extending the 
deadline if requested.  The owner / agent will also extend the deadline if specific 

Item No. 5, page 103



circumstances exist that prevent the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections from 
submitting the form within fourteen (14) days.    The owner /agent will consider these 
requests even if received after the 14 day deadline has passed.  The owner/agent will 
not deny a VAWA claim solely due to confusion over when the certification form is due.” 

3. VAWA – Right to appeal denial of VAWA request through grievance procedure.

• Legal Aid Comment:  In addition, the proposed language states that if a request is denied, the 
person seeking to exercise VAWA protections may appeal. See p. 55. This should be re-written to 
read as follows: “If the request is denied, the person seeking to exercise VAWA protections may 
appeal the decision through the grievance procedure.”  Because the grievance procedure applies 
to owner actions under the RAD Program, the policy should specifically reference the grievance 
procedure.

• HACA Response:  HACA agrees, as this was the original intent of the proposed language.  HACA
has amended the Tenant Selection Plan to match the proposed language from Legal Aid.

4. VAWA – Lease Bifurcation:  Permanent bar from property

• Legal Aid Comment:  The proposed policy provides that if a lease if bifurcated or if a resident is
evicted from the property because of an offense covered under VAWA, the person will be
“permanently barred from the property.”  It further provides that inviting a person back on the
property who has been evicted because of an offense covered by VAWA is a lease violation.

The permanent bar should be removed from the final policy. This should be handled on a case-
by-case basis.  Some individuals will have other friends or family on the property. The permanent
bar would unduly restrict the right of these tenants to have visitors of their choice.  Also, a
permanent bar fails to recognize that people change and that rehabilitation is successful.
Finally, it fails to recognize that children may also be involved, and parental involvement is
critical to their well-being. In sum, a permanent bar may cause more harm than good.

Importantly, a decision barring an individual from a property is subject to the grievance
procedure.  Thus, if you include the right to bar the offending person in the policy, you must also
clarify in the policy that the decision is subject to the tenant grievance procedure, and the tenant
may access the grievance procedure to dispute the ban.

In addition, the language providing for a lease violation for inviting a person back on the
property who has been evicted should also be removed from the final policy.  Such a provision
further victimizes an individual who has been victimized by the offender.  It will inevitably lead to
issues of whether an individual was “invited” or invited themselves. It would be much better to
eliminate this language and to provide that if it appears a resident is inviting a former abuser
back on the property, the resident will be counseled by a HACA social worker.

• HACA Response:  HACA has amended the policy to remove the word “permanently.”  HACA
recognizes that rehabilitation is possible and people can change.  If a tenant is evicted for being
the abuser, he/she can apply at a future date (according to the policy that is in place at the time)
and provide evidence of rehabilitation.

Item No. 5, page 104



With regard to the bar creating problems for co-parenting or the rights of residents to have 
visitors, the bar from the property does not prevent these things.  Legally, if invited (by another 
resident or the co-parent), the individual can still enter the property and go directly to the 
resident’s home.  The bar prevents the person from being an occupant or from using the 
common spaces on property.  HACA feels that this is still important for the safety of all 
residents. 

With regard to the right to have a grievance hearing for being barred, HACA has two responses. 
First, only residents have the right to the grievance hearing process.  An unauthorized occupant 
who is the abuser does not have the right to a grievance hearing, even in cases where HACA 
must go through an eviction process to remove him/her from the property.  Second, in cases 
where the abuser is a resident, he / she will have access to a grievance hearing through the 
regular termination and eviction process. 

Finally, with regard to giving a lease violation to a resident who invites an abuser back onto 
property, HACA and all residents jointly have responsibility to look out for the safety of the 
property.  This particular provision is intended to provide safety for all residents, including the 
victim and her/his family.   

HACA does not feel that this further victimizes the victim.  If the abuser returns against the will 
of the victim, the lease violation gives the family the opportunity to claim their VAWA rights and 
allows HACA to work with them to remove the abuser.  If the family wishes to add the abuser 
back into the household due to a change in circumstance, the family can follow the add-on 
process, which affords the family due process through a grievance or informal review.  
Therefore after consierderation, HACA has decided not to make this change. 

HACA appreciates the comments submitted by Texas RioGrande Legal Aid and looks forward to future 
dialogue on policy issues. 

Regards, 

Pilar Sanchez 
Vice President of Housing and Community Development 

Item No. 5, page 105



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ITEM NO. 6 

Presentation, Update and Discussion on HACA’s Rental 
Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Modernization and 
Redevelopment program (Chalmers Courts presentation) 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board may go into Executive Session (close its meeting to the public) 
Pursuant to: 

a. § 551.071, Texas Gov’t Code, consultations with Attorney
regarding legal advice, pending or contemplated litigation; or
a settlement offer;

b. §551.072, Texas Gov’t Code, discussion about the purchase,
exchange, lease or value of real property;

c. §551.074, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a
complaint or charge against an officer or employee; including
but not limited to the evaluation of the President/CEO

d. §551.087, Texas Gov’t Code, discuss certain economic
development negotiations.

Return to Open Session for discussion, consideration and 
possible action of matters discussed in Executive Session 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

REPORTS 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

ADJOURNMENT 


	Cover
	Agenda
	Call to Order and Roll Call
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Citizens Communication
	Citywide Advisory Board Report
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Item NO. 1A                                                                           Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of a Board Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on May 18, 2017 
	Summary of Minutes

	ITEM NO. 1B 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2505:  Authorizing Signatories for Agency Bank Accounts  
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2505

	ITEM NO. 1C 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2506:  Approval of the Award of Contract for Legal Services Pertaining to Employment Law and Litigation  
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2506
	EXHIBIT 1
	EXHIBIT 2
	EXHIBIT 3
	EXHIBIT 4

	ITEM NO. 1D 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2507:  Approval of the Award of Contract for Agency Wide Pest Control Services  
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2507
	EXHIBIT 1
	EXHIBIT 2
	EXHIBIT 3
	EXHIBIT 4


	ACTION ITEMS
	ITEM NO. 2 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2508:  Approval of the Revision to the 2017 PHA Annual Plan to incorporate the Disposition Activity for Lot 2 of Meadowbrook Courts 
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2508
	EXHIBIT 1
	EXHIBIT 2
	EXHIBIT 3
	EXHIBIT 4
	EXHIBIT 5

	ITEM NO. 3 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2509:  Approval to Submit a Disposition Application for Lot 2 of the Meadowbrook Courts located at 1100 Live Oak Austin, Tx  78704 to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the Conveyance of Ownership to Austin Affordable Housing Corporation
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2509
	EXHIBIT 1
	EXHIBIT 2

	ITEM NO. 4 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2510:  Approval to submit an Amendment to the Disposition Application DDA0003968 to Request the Disposition of 1640 A & B East 2nd Street and to ground lease 1640 A & B East 2nd Street to Pathways at Chalmers Courts, LLP at Less than Fair Market Value for the Creation of Additional Affordable Housing Units 
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2510
	EXHIBIT 1
	EXHIBIT 2
	EXHIBIT 3

	ITEM NO. 5 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 2511:  Approval of the updates to the Tenant Selection Plans for PBRA Family properties, PBRA and LIHTC Family properties, and PBRA and LIHTC Elderly / Disabled properties 
	Summary
	RESOLUTION NO. 2511
	EXHIBIT 1
	EXHIBIT 2
	EXHIBIT 3
	EXHIBIT 4
	EXHIBIT 5

	ITEM NO. 6 
Presentation, Update and Discussion on HACA’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Modernization and Redevelopment program (Chalmers Courts presentation) 
	EXECUTIVE SESSION
	REPORTS
	ADJOURNMENT




